Public Document Pack

Edinburgh Integrafion Joint Board °

Notice of Meeting and Agenda

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board
1.00 pm, Thursday, 21st September, 2023

Main Council Chamber - City Chambers / Microsoft Teams

This is a public meeting and members of the public are welcome to watch the live
webcast on the Council’s website.

The law allows the Integration Joint Board to consider some issues in private. Any
items under “Private Business” will not be published, although the decisions will be
recorded in the minute.

Contacts

Email: andrew.henderson@edinburgh.gov.uk / jacqueline.boyle@edinburgh.gov.uk

NHS .cDINBVRGH- | Working together for a caring,
b\"d THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL healthler, Safer Edlnburgh

Lothian


mailto:andrew.henderson@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:jacqueline.boyle@edinburgh.gov.uk

1. Welcome and Apologies

1.1 Including the order of business and any additional items of
business notified to the Chair in advance.

2. Declaration of Interests

21 Members should declare any financial and non-financial interests
they have in the items of business for consideration, identifying
the relevant agenda item and the nature of their interest.

3. Deputations

3.1 If any.

4. Minutes

4.1 Minute of the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board of 8 August 2023 5-10
- submitted for approval as a correct record

5. Forward Planning

5.1 Rolling Actions Log 11-14

6. Iltems of Strategy

6.1 None.

7. Iltems of Performance

71 Edinburgh Integration Joint Board Audited Annual Accounts 15 - 88
2022-23 — Report by the Chief Finance Officer, Edinburgh
Integration Joint Board

7.2 Committees’ Annual Assurance Report - referral from the Audit 89 -98
and Assurance Committee

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - 21 September Page 2 of 4

2023



8. Items of Governance

8.1 Finance Update — Report by the Chief Finance Officer, Edinburgh 99 - 118
Integration Joint Board

8.2 Membership Proposal - referral from the Strategic Planning 119-130
Group
8.3 Chief Officer Appointment to the Edinburgh Integration Joint 131-134

Board and Edinburgh Health and Social Care Partnership —
Report by the Service Director, Human Resources

Note: The above report will require to be ruled urgent by the
Chair at the start of the meeting if it is to be considered at
this meeting.

9. Committee Updates

9.1 None.

10. Resolution to Consider in Private

10.1  The following item of business is likely to be considered in private
as it falls under the provisions set out under Standing Order 5.9 of
the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board.

11. Private Business

11.1  One Edinburgh — Report by the Interim Chief Officer, Edinburgh 135 - 162
Health and Social Care Partnership

Board Members

Voting

Katharina Kasper (Chair), Councillor Tim Pogson (Vice-Chair), Councillor Euan
Davidson, Elizabeth Gordon, George Gordon, Peter Knight, Councillor Claire Miller,
Councillor Max Mitchell, Peter Murray and Councillor Vicky Nicolson.

Non-Voting

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - 21 September Page 3 of 4
2023



Bridie Ashrowan, Robin Balfour, Heather Cameron, Christine Farquhar, Helen
FitzGerald, Ruth Hendery, Kirsten Hey, Rose Howley, Grant Macrae, Jacqui Macrae,
Mike Massaro-Mallinson, Allister McKillop, Moira Pringle and Emma Reynish.

Webcasting of Integration Joint Board meetings

Please note that that this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via
the Council’s internet site — at the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or part
of the meeting is being filmed.

The Integration Joint Board is a joint data controller with the City of Edinburgh Council
and NHS Lothian under the General Data Protection Regulation and Data Protection
Act 2018. This meeting will be broadcast to fulfil our public task obligation to enable
members of the public to observe the democratic process. Data collected during this
webcast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s published policy.

If you have any queries regarding this and, in particular, if you believe that use and/or
storage of any particular information would cause, or be likely to cause, substantial
damage or distress to any individual, please contact Committee Services
(committee.services@edinburgh.gov.uk).

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - 21 September Page 4 of 4
2023


mailto:committee.services@edinburgh.gov.uk

Agenda Item 4.1

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board ®

Minute

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board

Tuesday 8 August 2023
Virtual Meeting via Microsoft Teams
Present

Board Members

Katharina Kasper (Chair), Councillor Tim Pogson (Vice-Chair), Bridie Ashrowan,
Heather Cameron, Councillor Euan Davidson, Christine Farquhar, Helen
Fitzgerald, Elizabeth Gordon, George Gordon, Kirsten Hey, Peter Knight, Jacqui
Macrae, Mike Massaro-Mallinson, Councillor Claire Miller, Councillor Max
Mitchell, Peter Murray, Councillor Vicky Nicolson and Moira Pringle.

Officers

Tony Duncan, Andrew Henderson (Clerk), Dr Ramon McDermott, Susan
McMillan, Katie McWilliam and David White.

Apologies

Robin Balfour, Ruth Hendery, Rose Howley, Grant Macrae, Allister
McKillop and Emma Reynish.

Page 5



1. Minutes

The minute of the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board of 13 June 2023 was submitted
for approval as a correct record.

Decision

To approve the minute as a correct record.

2. Rolling Actions Log

The Rolling Actions Log updated to August 2023 was presented.
Decision
1) To agree to close the following actions:

e Action 3 - Bed Based Review — Public Consultation on the Future Provision
of Older People’s Care

e Action 4 - EIJB Risk Register
e Action 5 - Access to the ModernGov app for External Members
e Action 7 - Rolling Action Log — Correspondence with the First Minister

¢ Action 8 - Chief Officer Appointment for the Edinburgh Integration
Joint Board and Health and Social Care Partnership

e Action 9 - Medium Term Financial Strategy and 2023/24 Financial
Plan Update

2)  To otherwise note the remaining outstanding actions.

(Reference — Rolling Actions Log August 2023, submitted)
3. Edinburgh Integration Joint Board and Committee Dates 2024

The proposed schedule of meeting dates for the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board,
committees, development workshops and associated working groups for 2024 was
presented.

Decision
To agree the proposed schedule of meeting dates for 2024.

(Reference — report by the Interim Chief Officer, Edinburgh Integration Joint Board,
submitted)

4.  The Joint Edinburgh Carer Strategy Refresh 2023-26

An overview of the draft Joint Edinburgh Carer Strategy Refresh 2023- 26 was
provided. Members took the opportunity to thank officers for the latest version of the
report and acknowledged that consultation had been undertaken with carers’
representatives and stakeholders and that specific areas of concern had been
referenced.

Page 6



Decision

To approve the draft Joint Edinburgh Carer Strategy Refresh 2023-26 for publication
and implementation.

(Reference — report by Service Director, Operations, Edinburgh Health and Social
Care Partnership, submitted)

Declaration of Interests

Christine Farquhar made a transparency statement as an unpaid carer and the carer
representative on the EIJB.

Bridie Ashrowan made a transparency statement as Chief Executive of EVOC which
received funding from Edinburgh Health and Social Care Partnership.

5. Primary Care Improvement Plan (PCIP) 6.0 Tracker
Submission

Members were provided with an update in relation to the progress of the report
which had been submitted to the Scottish Government as part of the governance
process for Primary Care Improvement Plan (PCIP) funding.

The report had initially been approved for submission by the EIJB Performance and
Delivery Committee on 12 April 2023 and thereafter agreed at the Lothian GP Sub-
Committee of the Lothian Medical Committee on 24 April 2023.

Decision

1) To note the summary of progress and associated issues as of March 2023 and
the end of the Primary Care Improvement Plan investment period.

2) To note a new requirement for this (6.0) tracker to be agreed by the NHS Lothian
Chief Executive.

3) To recognise the disconnect between population growth and Primary Care
Improvement Plan share.

4) To agree to progress analysis to cost the impact of not closing the gap in primary
care investment and to continue to press the Scottish Government around the
specific issues for primary care investment for the City.

5) To note with concern that the outstanding investment into mental health capacity
remained a critical gap as highlighted in the report and to note the assurance
from the Interim Chief Officer this issue would be raised for consideration at the
Thrive Programme Board.

(Reference — report by Interim Chief Officer, Edinburgh Integration Joint Board,
submitted)

Page 7



6. Revised EIJB Directions Policy

An overview was provided of the work that had taken place to refresh the Directions
Policy, with reference being made to lessons learned over the last four years and
feedback from the Strategic Planning Group and Performance and Delivery
Committee.

Decision
To approve the revised draft policy on directions.

(Reference — report by Interim Chief Officer, Edinburgh Integration Joint Board,
submitted)

7.  Annual Performance Report 2022/23

The Annual Performance Report 2022/23 was submitted for approval.
Decision
To approve publication of the annual performance report for 2022-23.

(Reference — report by Interim Chief Officer, Edinburgh Integration Joint
Board, submitted)

8. Finance Update

An update on the financial performance of delegated services was provided. It was
acknowledged that given the relatively early point in the financial year, further work
was required to refine the assumptions which underpinned the initial set of results.

It was also highlighted that the level of assurance provided of a break-even position
for 2023/24 was limited, given the remaining budget deficit.

Decision

1) To note the financial position for delegated services to 30 June2023 and
associated year-end forecast.

2) To note the limited assurance provided by the Chief Finance Officer.

(Reference — report by Chief Finance Officer, Edinburgh Integration Joint Board,
submitted)

9. Annual Review of Directions — Referral from the Performance
and Delivery Committee

The Annual Review of Directions referred from the Performance and Delivery
Committee to the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board for consideration with the
Committee’s recommendations was presented.

Page 8



Decision

1) To approve the recommendations for retaining, varying, closing or
superseding existing directions set out in Appendix 1 of the report.

2) To approve the varied direction set out at Appendix 2 of the report.

(References — Performance and Delivery Committee 2 August 2023 (item 5.2);
Report by the Service Director — Strategic Planning, EHSCP, submitted)

10. Chief Officers Update

A summary was provided of key areas of activity that supported the delivery of the
ElJB’s strategic priorities. It was highlighted that the report had been developed with
the objective of providing board members with a comprehensive update on key
issues.

Decision
1) To note the content and format of the update report.

2) To agree to receive future update reports in the form of briefings for members
noting that no items included in the briefings would be for decision.

3) To note that strategic performance and performance relating to high-level
operational matters were already reported through the Performance and Delivery
Committee.

(Reference — report by Interim Chief Officer, Edinburgh Integration Joint
Board, submitted)

11. Committee Update Report

An update on the business of the Committees Edinburgh Integration Joint Board
from June to August 2023 was provided.

Decision:
1) To note the work of the Committees.

2) To agree that the report is sufficient in raising awareness of the Board’s
awareness of committee activity.

(Reference — report by Interim Chief Officer, Edinburgh Integration Joint Board,
submitted)

12. Valedictory remarks

Board members took the opportunity to thank Tony Duncan and Colin Beck for their
work with the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board.

Page 9



13. Date of Next Meeting

Decision

To note that the meeting in September would be rescheduled with a date being
issued to members in due course.

Page 10



Rolling Actions Log
21 September 2023

Agenda item

Action

Action Owner

Expected
completion
date

Comments

TT abed

System
Pressures

Update — report
by the Chief
Officer,
Edinburgh
Integration Joint
Board

18-10-22

1)

To request a briefing note on the
budget setting process between
the 1JB and the Council
specifically addressing
timescales, how the 1JB can
make representations to CEC
and NHSL on staff pay and
conditions ahead of the budget
setting to ensure these views are
taken into account.

Interim Chief Officer,
ElIJB

Contact: Mike
Massaro-Mallinson
mike.massaro-
mallinson@nhslothi
an.scot.nhs.uk

March 2023

Now
amended
to August
2023

September 2023 update

Briefing will be circulated by
the end of this month

June 2023 update

Work on the MTFS has taken
precedence meaning briefing
paper has been delayed.

February 2023 Update

Briefing note is being drafted
and will be circulated by the
end of March.

December 2022 Update
The Board agreed to keep t

action open and to circulate (P
the briefing note to members—3
as requested in decision 1). Q

This was covered in the budget.
working group on 25 Octobefey

Wwo

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board — 21 September 2023

Page 1 of 3

G


https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s49821/6.2%20System%20Pressures%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s49821/6.2%20System%20Pressures%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s49821/6.2%20System%20Pressures%20Update.pdf
mailto:mike.massaro-mallinson@nhslothian.scot.nhs.uk
mailto:mike.massaro-mallinson@nhslothian.scot.nhs.uk
mailto:mike.massaro-mallinson@nhslothian.scot.nhs.uk

Agenda item

Action

Action Owner

Expected

completion
date

Comments

2) To hold a development session
to discuss the workforce
strategy in more detail with
members.

2023

November

Workforce strategy is
scheduled for development
session in November 2023.

2T abed

Chief Social
Work Officer
Annual Report
2021-22 — report

1) To agree the next CSWO update
report would include more detail on the
steps being taken to improve supervision,
awareness and recording.

Chief Social Work Officer
and Service Director for
Children’s and Criminal
Justice Services

October
2023

Agreed a full update will be
provided in the CSWO report. A
review of supervision has been
undertaken. Currently

Liberton High
School

Campus

commitments and the detrimental
impact withdrawal from this project
would have on the provision of
medical services in South-East

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board — 21 September 2023

david.white@nhslothia
n.scot.nhs.uk

by the Chief Contact: Rose Howley supervision focuses
Social Work rose.howley@edinburgh.gov predominantly on staff welfare
,J Officer Uk and not case management and
§ case reflection. Leaders of
N practice across all areas of
u services need training and
support to ensure effective
supervision is in place.
General 1) To agree that the Chair would write  Chair, EIJB Ongoing September update
Medi.cal to the chttish Goverrlment and (?ontact: Tim quson Recommended for closure.
Services NHS Lothian expressing the tim.pogson@edinburgh
Provision in Board’s concerns about the recent | .gov.uk
South-East position of Scottish Government to | Chief Officer, EIJB
Edinburgh — pause all NHS Lothian capital Contact: David White August 2023 update

Letters have now been
circulated.

Page 2 of 3


https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s49823/7.1%20Chief%20Social%20Work%20Officer%20Annual%20Report%202021%20-%202022.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s49823/7.1%20Chief%20Social%20Work%20Officer%20Annual%20Report%202021%20-%202022.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s49823/7.1%20Chief%20Social%20Work%20Officer%20Annual%20Report%202021%20-%202022.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s49823/7.1%20Chief%20Social%20Work%20Officer%20Annual%20Report%202021%20-%202022.pdf
mailto:rose.howley@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:rose.howley@edinburgh.gov.uk
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s54648/6.1%20General%20Medical%20Services%20Provision%20in%20South-East%20Edinburgh%20-%20Liberton%20High%20School%20Campus.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s54648/6.1%20General%20Medical%20Services%20Provision%20in%20South-East%20Edinburgh%20-%20Liberton%20High%20School%20Campus.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s54648/6.1%20General%20Medical%20Services%20Provision%20in%20South-East%20Edinburgh%20-%20Liberton%20High%20School%20Campus.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s54648/6.1%20General%20Medical%20Services%20Provision%20in%20South-East%20Edinburgh%20-%20Liberton%20High%20School%20Campus.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s54648/6.1%20General%20Medical%20Services%20Provision%20in%20South-East%20Edinburgh%20-%20Liberton%20High%20School%20Campus.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s54648/6.1%20General%20Medical%20Services%20Provision%20in%20South-East%20Edinburgh%20-%20Liberton%20High%20School%20Campus.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s54648/6.1%20General%20Medical%20Services%20Provision%20in%20South-East%20Edinburgh%20-%20Liberton%20High%20School%20Campus.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s54648/6.1%20General%20Medical%20Services%20Provision%20in%20South-East%20Edinburgh%20-%20Liberton%20High%20School%20Campus.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s54648/6.1%20General%20Medical%20Services%20Provision%20in%20South-East%20Edinburgh%20-%20Liberton%20High%20School%20Campus.pdf
mailto:tim.pogson@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:tim.pogson@edinburgh.gov.uk
mailto:david.white@nhslothian.scot.nhs.uk
mailto:david.white@nhslothian.scot.nhs.uk

Agenda item Action Action Owner Expected Comments
completion

date

Edinburgh but to iterate that the
Board were open to dialogue in
terms of seeking a positive solution
to the issue.

1) To agree that any response
would be reported back to

the Board.
4 | Bed base 13.06.23 | Officers to share scoping document of |Service Director, September | September update
o review update the bed base review with IJB members Operations, Edinburgh 2023 This has been reframed as the
é\; when available. Health anq Social Care Frailty Pathways Programme.
El Partnership The proposed scope and
w Contact: Mike Massaro governance arrangements of
- Mallinson this work has been developed

and considered at the newly
formed Change Board and are
in the process of being
updated to reflect the
discussion. Following this
they will be shared with the
board. Included in these
arrangements is a Programme
Oversight Board which will be
chaired by a member of the
1JB.

mike.massaro-
mallinson@nhslothian.
scot.nhs.uk

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board — 21 September 2023 Page 3 of 3


https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s58145/7.2%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%20202324%20Financial%20Plan%20Update.pdf
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s58145/7.2%20Medium%20Term%20Financial%20Strategy%20202324%20Financial%20Plan%20Update.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



REPORT

Agenda Item 7.1
'-
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board E:i
°®

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board Audited Annual
Accounts for 2022/23

Integration Joint Board
215t September 2023

Executive

Summary

SN N EVI B The board is asked to:

Directions

This paper presents the audited 2022/23 annual
accounts for the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board.

a) note the ‘amber’ rated Internal Audit opinion for the
year ended 31st March 2023;

b)  approve and adopt the annual accounts for
2022/23;

c) authorise the designated signatories (Chair, Interim
Chief Officer and Chief Finance Officer) to sign the
annual report & accounts on behalf of the board;

and

d) authorise the Chief Finance Officer to sign the
representation letter to the auditors, on behalf of the

board.

Direction to City
of Edinburgh
Council, NHS
Lothian or both
organisations

No direction required v

Issue a direction to City of Edinburgh Council

Issue a direction to NHS Lothian

Issue a direction to City of Edinburgh Council & NHS Lothian

1

Page 15



Edinburgh Infegration Joint Board ]

Report Circulation

1.

The unaudited annual accounts were considered by the Audit and Assurance
Committee on 8" June 2023.

Audited annual accounts along with the external audit annual report and the
internal audit annual opinion were considered by the same committee on 13t
September 2023.

Main Report

Background

Integration Joint Boards (IJBs) are required to produce annual accounts. As
the appointed “proper officer”, it is the responsibility of the Chief Financial
Officer, to prepare the financial statements in accordance with relevant
legislation and the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom. In accordance with this guidance, draft financial statements were
produced and presented to the Audit and Assurance Committee (AAC) on 8%
June 2023. Following this, they were submitted to the appointed external
auditors, Audit Scotland on 29" June 2023.

Over the summer months, the unaudited accounts were considered by Audit
Scotland. As a result of the audit a number of disclosure adjustments were
recommended and these have been reflected in the financial statements
alongside changes to incorporate information not available at the time the
unaudited accounts were prepared. The financial statements for the |JB for
2022/23 are attached as appendix 1 to this report.

Audit Scotland is now in a position to give a proposed independent opinion on
the financial statements and report on the arrangements in place to ensure the
proper conduct of financial affairs and to manage performance and use of

resources.

Page 16



10.

Edinburgh Infegration Joint Board °®

The proposed 2022/23 draft annual accounts audit to the members of
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board and the Controller of Audit from Audit
Scotland is attached at appendix 2. It should be noted that this is a report on
the annual accounts only. The final report will include the wider scope audit
and will be presented to the Audit and Assurance Committee in December
2023.

Representation letter

International Standard on Auditing (ISA 580) requires external auditors to
obtain written confirmation of representations received from management on
matters material to the financial statements when other sufficient audit evidence
cannot reasonably be expected to exist, before their audit report on the annual
report & accounts is issued. A draft letter of representation is included at
appendix 3.

Internal audit opinion

The Chief Internal Auditor has produced an internal audit annual opinion
2022/23. This was presented to and discussed by the Audit and Assurance
Committee on 13" September 2023 and is included as appendix 4 to this
report.

An ‘amber’ opinion has been given for 2022/23. It confirms that ‘reasonable
assurance’ can be placed on the adequacy of the EIJB’s systems of
governance, risk management and internal controls. The opinion reflects
assurance activity performed across the EIJB, the Edinburgh Health and Social
Care Partnership and its partners, the City of Edinburgh Council and NHS
Lothian in the year to 31t March 2023, which concluded there is a generally

sound system of governance, risk, and control in place.

Internal audit work identified a number of issues, areas of non-compliance
and/or scope for improvement throughout the year, which individually do not
significantly impair the EIJB’s system of internal control but may put at risk the
achievement of EIJB objectives if corrective actions are not adequately

addressed.

Page 17



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board ]

Implications for Edinburgh Integration Joint Board

Financial
11. The financial results deal principally with the financial governance on
operational management of existing resources and no resource implications

arise specifically from this report.

Legal/risk implications

12. There are no specific implications arising from this report.

Equality and integrated impact assessment

13. There are no specific implications arising from this report.

Environment and sustainability impacts

14. There are no specific implications arising from this report.

Quality of care

15. There are no specific implications arising from this report.

Consultation

16. The draft financial statements have been produced with the support and co-

operation of both City of Edinburgh Council and NHS Lothian personnel.

Report Author

Moira Pringle
Chief Finance Officer, Edinburgh Integration Joint Board

Email: moira.pringle@nhslothian.scot.nhs.uk

Appendices

Appendix 1 Edinburgh Integration Joint Board Annual Accounts 2022/23

Page 18


mailto:moira.pringle@nhslothian.scot.nhs.uk

Appendix 2

Appendix 3

Appendix 4

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board ]

2022/23 annual accounts audit report to the members of
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board and the Controller of Audit

Letter of representation

Internal audit annual opinion 2022/23

Page 19



°
L 1)

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board : : ]
@

Edinburgh Integration
Joint Board

Annual Accounts 2022/23

Page 20



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

The Annual Accounts of Edinburgh Integration Joint Board for the year ended 31 March 2023, prepared
pursuant to Section 105 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and in accordance with the terms of the
CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 and Service
Reporting Code of Practice.

CONTENTS

MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY ..ottt 3
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILTIES......cciiiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt 14
REMUNERATION REPORT ...ttt 16
ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT ..ot 20
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT .....oociiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciie s 28
BALANCE SHEET ...t bbb aa s s 29
MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT ..ottt 30
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS ...ttt s st 31
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES .....coitiiiiiiiiiii ittt 31
2. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS ...ttt 33
3. CORPORATE EXPENDITURE ..ottt 33
4. SHORT TERM DEBTORS ...ttt 34
5. SHORT TERM CREDITORS ...ttt 34
6. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS ..ottt 34
7. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES @Nd ASSETS ...cuiiiiieiieiieiee ettt et st s s s 34
8. SEGMENTAL REPORTING......oiiiiiiiiiitiiciiic et 35
9. MOVEMENT IN RESERVES .......oiiiiiiiiiiiii s 36
10. FUNDING ANALYSIS....oiiiiiii bbb s 36

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EDINBURGH INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD
AND THE ACCOUNTS COMMISSION ....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciei i 37

Page 21



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY

Introduction

This commentary provides an overview of progress against the objectives and strategy of the Edinburgh
Integration Joint Board (EIJB). It considers our financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2023 and
gives an indication of the issues and risks which may impact upon our organisation in the future.

Role and remit
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board

EIJB was established as a body corporate by order of Scottish Ministers in June 2015 under the Public Bodies
(Joint Working) (Scotland) Act 2014. This legislation brought together the planning and operational oversight
for a range of NHS and Local Authority services under the EIJB as a statutory public body, with the intent to
improve overall health and wellbeing through the delivery of efficient and effective health and social care
services. One of the key levers available to the EIJB to support transformation is that NHS and Local Authority
budgets are no longer separate. We can move resources between the partners in order to deliver new models
of care and ensure the health and care system for Edinburgh is high quality, sustainable and effective.

The board meets bi monthly and has ten voting members: five elected members appointed by City of
Edinburgh Council; and five NHS Lothian non-executive directors appointed by NHS Lothian. Non-voting
members of the Board include the EIJB Chief Officer, Chief Finance Officer, representatives from the third
sector and citizen members. Service and staffing representatives also sit on the Board as advisory members.

Page 22



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

Delegated services

We are responsible for planning the future direction of, and overseeing the operational delivery of, integrated
health and social care services for the citizens of Edinburgh. These services are delegated to EIJB from our
partners, the City of Edinburgh Council and NHS Lothian. They are largely delivered by the Edinburgh Health
and Social Care Partnership (the Partnership), although some are managed by NHS Lothian on our behalf.
These are referred to as “hosted” or “set aside” services. The full range of delegated services is set out in the
table below:

Adult social care Community health Hospital-based services
e Assessment and care e District nursing o A&E
management including e Services relating to an e General medicine
occupational therapy addiction e Geriatric medicine
e Residential care e Services provided by allied e Rehabilitation medicine
e Extra-care housing and health professionals (AHPs) e Respiratory medicine
sheltered housing e Community dental services e Psychiatry of learning
e Intermediate care * Primary medical services (GP)* disability
e Supported housing — learning e General dental services* e Palliative care
disability e Ophthalmic services* e Hospital services provided by
e Rehabilitation — mental health | ¢ Pharmaceutical services* GPs
e Day services e Qut-of-hours primary medical | ¢ Mental health services
e Local area coordination services provided in a hospital with
e Care at home services e Community geriatric medicine exception of forensic mental
e Reablement e Palliative care health services
e Rapid response e Mental health services e Services relating to an
e Telecare e Continence services addiction or dependence on
e Respite services e Kidney dialysis any substance
e Quality assurance and e Prison health care service
contracts e Public health services
e Sensory impairment services
* Drugs and alcohol services * includes responsibility for
those aged under 18

Strategic Plan

Over the past six years, the EIJB has established itself as a board and developed its ambitions and priorities for
change and improvement in the services delegated to it. Throughout this period, despite the pressure of the
Covid pandemic, we have made steady progress in most areas. Nonetheless, we expect to face more testing
times ahead as demand and complexity increases are set against pressure on budgets and staffing levels.
Edinburgh’s population of almost half a million accounts for 9% of the total population of Scotland and is
projected to increase faster than any other area of the country over the next ten years. The rate of growth is
higher in some age groups than others. Whilst this expansion has many social and economic advantages, it
also presents challenges. Although a relatively affluent city, Edinburgh has areas of significant inequality and
‘deprivation’ and one of our key priorities is to work with our partners to reduce health and social inequalities.

In August 2019 we agreed our strategic plan for 2019-2022. The plan defines our vision for the future of
health and social care in Edinburgh, explains how we intend to transition towards this and highlights the
resources and enablers we must manage to achieve our objectives. There remains much to do, but together
we can create the conditions to deliver a sustainable health and social care model and improve outcomes for
the citizens of Edinburgh.

We are now engaged in the next planning cycle, building on our strategic ambitions through an innovation and
sustainability lens. The current strategic plan was originally due to be replaced in March 2022 but was

4

Page 23



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

deferred for 12 months because of systems pressures and local elections. In March 2023, it was decided to
further delay publication of the strategic plan in light of budget pressures leading to the medium-term
financial strategy (MTFS) and our response to recent social care inspections which led to the production of an
improvement plan. The improvement plan and 2023/24 savings and recovery programme were both approved
by the EIJB in June 2023.

The 2023 strategic plan remains in draft and the latest version was presented to the Strategic Planning Group
in August 2023. Further refinement is likely in the months ahead, including a planned development session
with the board in October. Final submission to the EIJB is scheduled for December.

The core strategic objectives and underlying work plans remain virtually unchanged. The current strategic plan
can be found here and the strategic framework is captured in the schematic below:

Vision: To deliver together a caring, healthier and safer Edinburgh

What means do we have? How will we get there? Where do we want to get to?

Scottish Government Direction Implementation of Strategic Plan An affordable, sustainable and trusted
and Change Programme aligned to health and social care system
SR SR D priorities A clearly understood and supported

‘Edinburgh Offer’ which is fair,

Budget Develop modern Edinburgh Offer
proportionate and manages
Workforce Roll out Three Conversations expectations
Approach A person centred, people first and
Infrastructure home first approach

Strong Partnership ethos with

stakeholders and partners A motivated, skilled and representative

Data and Performance workforce
Management Framework i
Shift balance of care to An optimised partnership with the

iti .
Technology communtties voluntary and independent sectors

Tackling Inequality Care supported by the latest technology
Communications, Engagement

and Co-production Unity of purpose and momentum A culture of continuous improvement

Home First, integration, Engagement, Respect,
Fairness, Affordable and Sustainable, Safer

Empowering, Inclusive, Working Together,

Our Values

Principles

Honest and Transparent

Our intent, as encapsulated in the strategic plan, is to further develop integration to deliver a sustainable and
trusted health and social care system for Edinburgh. We seek to shrink bureaucracy, reduce waiting lists,
improve choice and assist people to remain at home for as long as they can under the principle of home first.
Working closely with our partners, including housing providers and the voluntary and independent sectors, we
seek to optimise all available resources in the community and to support and enhance our locality framework
and redefine the Edinburgh health and social care offer entitled the Edinburgh Wellbeing Pact.

We will strive to support carers and our workforce and seek to grow a culture of collaboration, maximising
capacity, driving out inefficiencies and enshrining continuous improvement. We will seek to better align and
integrate our planning and commissioning process, financial planning, market facilitation approach and ways
of working. We will make best use of existing and emerging technology and the three conversations approach
will be introduced across the city to advance our strategic priorities. Delivering these vital changes will take
time and will need positive leadership and drive at all levels.

Page 24


https://www.edinburghhsc.scot/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/Strategic-Plan-2019-2022-1.pdf

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

We have six strategic priorities which are critical to our success in implementing the changes envisaged
through integration. They will shape our thinking and guide decision making as we navigate through an
increasingly challenging strategic environment. These six strategic priorities are:

Prevention Managing Making best
and early Tackling Person- our use of

Right care,
right place,

intervention Inequalities centred care resources capacity : :
right time

effectively across the

Change programme

To deliver the vision set out in the strategic plan, we designed a comprehensive programme of redesign and
transformation, working in tandem with other core strategies such as carers, Thrive Edinburgh (mental health)
and the primary care improvement plan (PCIP). Our transformation programme, established in early 2020, has
been a key delivery mechanism for the ambitions set out in the strategic plan. It is a wide-ranging and
ambitious programme of whole system change, which is transforming ways of working and delivering high
quality and sustainable health and social care services for our citizens. Delivery of the programme has been
supported by a dedicated team of project management professionals, recognising the need for ongoing
change and transformation.

In early 2022, we recognised that whilst transformation projects have delivered some key successes, more was
required to ensure that health and social care services in Edinburgh are sustainable in the longer term and fit
for the future. With this in mind, we transitioned our transformation programme into a new “Innovation and
Sustainability Portfolio”, bringing together all of our major change and innovation work, with a clear focus on
driving efficiency and delivering sustainability — not just in relation to finance, but also in terms of future
workforce and service/care capacity. Programmes and projects within the Innovation and Sustainability
Portfolio also play a key role in our emerging medium term financial strategy (MTFS), which is discussed in
more detail later on in this management commentary.

Throughout 2022/23, the Innovation and Sustainability Portfolio has considered to drive forward change and
improvement in existing projects, whilst also working to develop a pipeline of new projects and initiatives to
address challenges and improve performance. Some of the key developments are outlined below:

The 3 Conversations approach remains one of our key strategic pillars and has been rolled out widely across
locality assessment and care management teams. It has evidenced positive impacts in in terms of much
quicker response times and our ability to support people towards good outcomes without the need for formal,
paid-for services. Where teams were using the 3 conversations approach, 53% of people who contacted us for
the first time in 2022/23 benefitted from personalised short-term support rather than formal long-term care
services being required or increased. Examples of these supports included building community connections
and providing equipment, advice or information. This compares to 35% for the previous year. The number of
people without formal long/term care services requiring repeat support remains low, and when required has
been due to unforeseen changes to their circumstances. Further work is planned to actively support roll-out
across the remaining teams, embedding the ethos and ensuring consistency of practice and approach.

The home first project is helping avoid the need for hospital admission and supports people to get home as
quickly as possible once it is safe for them to do so. The discharge without delay (DwD) workstream is
delivering improvements in relation to active discharge planning, using multi-disciplinary team approaches to
reduce the length of stay in both the Western General Hospital (WGH) and the Royal Infirmary of Edinburgh.

Page 25



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

These initiatives have contributed to an increase in the number of adults with intensive needs receiving care at
home (indicator 18). Our performance in this indicator has improved compared to the previous year and is
now at the highest level in the last six years. Our ranking compared to other partnerships improved from 20t
to 12" (out of 32), moving us into the second quartile. Our DwD collaboration was particularly successful on
the WGH wards, with data showing a 50% reduction in bed occupancy by patients in delay over a 12-month
period and when directly comparing winter periods. They also reported a 9-day reduction in median length of
stay and a 35% increase in discharge rate when comparing quarter one of 2023 with the same period in 2022.

We have made good progress with our home based care transformation, working closely with independent
sector providers in the development of a “One Edinburgh” approach to care at home services, which will focus
on quality outcomes and creating additional capacity. Excellent progress has been made with the
implementation of our new mobile scheduling system, which will support more efficient deployment of our
workforce. The system has now been implemented in two of our localities with almost 600 devices being
issued to staff. Roll out to the other localities will be completed by the end of the year. In tandem, plans are
being developed for the redesign of our internal homecare teams, with a shift towards a reablement approach,
offering the opportunity to maximise independence and support people to achieve their personal outcomes,
whilst right-sizing ongoing packages of support. The work undertaken to date has led to significant
improvements, with a reduction from January 2022 to March 2023 of 83% in the number of people delayed in
hospital waiting for a package of care and an average reduction of 84% in the number of days people wait for
care at home support arrangements to be put in place. For the same period in the community, there has been
a reduction of 72% in people waiting for care at home support arrangements, and an average reduction of 36%
in the number of days waiting for these arrangements to be put in place.

Our digital transformation strategy is nearing completion, setting out a wide range of improvements in
relation to data, people, process and infrastructure. The strategy will seek to maximise the use of existing and
emerging technologies to support citizens to remain independent at home for longer, and to appropriately
equip our frontline staff and optimise capacity, while also addressing issues with systems and data. Specific
examples of progress include the implementation of remote blood pressure monitoring in GP surgeries
supported by the long-term conditions team and the continuing analogue to digital programme which will
ensure compatibility with the update digital telephony network.

As we further develop our MTFS, there will be a renewed focus on workforce support and transformation. Our
inaugural workforce strategy, ‘Working Together’, was approved by the EIJB in February 2022 and aims to
ensure that we have skilled and capable staff that can deliver our vision of ‘a caring, healthier and safer
Edinburgh’. Recognising current challenges in relation to recruitment and retention across the health and
social care sector, this will be a key priority area moving forward.

Under the banner of our Edinburgh wellbeing pact and as part of our wider approach to community
mobilisation, we have invested in a number of community-based supports and initiatives. Specific programmes
such as the Community Taskforce Volunteer Programme, the Fit and Active Programme for people with
learning disabilities and the Enliven Edinburgh - Addressing Loneliness and Isolation campaign, provide
prevention and early intervention support in line with the aims set out in the strategic plan. We continue to
work in collaboration with community partners to develop community commissioning approaches which will
build on the success of our long-standing community grants programme.

The first of our pipeline projects, the redesign of learning disability services, is now in delivery stages.
Throughout 2022/23, a wide stakeholder engagement exercise helped to inform the development of a range
of proposals aimed at improving services for people with a learning disability. Working groups are now taking
forward changes including the review and redesign of our existing services and structures to address gaps and
remove duplication, the redesign of services for those with complex care needs and support for young people
with low and moderate needs.

Whilst many of our programmes can evidence progress, the two recent inspections have highlighted that the
impact on performance is not always evident. Both the joint inspection of adult support and protection and
7

Page 26



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

the Care Inspectorate review of adult social work and social care highlighted significant weaknesses and areas
for improvement. Although the latter report also recognised some positives, the findings have been taken
very seriously and accepted. In response, plans were developed to prioritise key actions to deliver good
quality social work and social care services to keep people safe from harm. These actions were cross
referenced against other programmes of work and, in June 2023, the EIJB agreed a consolidated improvement
plan. This plan aims to takes stronger cognisance of early intervention and prevention, be linked to improved
performance and aligned with the medium-term financial strategy.

There remains much to do and over the next stage of the strategic planning cycle, our priorities and planned
actions will be refined and adjusted where necessary.

Operational overview
Annual performance report

We published our seventh annual performance report at the end of August 2023 in which we outline our
challenges and achievements in 2022/23 as well as our progress against the six strategic priorities in our
strategic plan 2019-22, and against the Scottish Government’s national health and wellbeing outcomes and
associated indicators.

2022/23 was another challenging year for the health and social care sector throughout Scotland and this has
been felt across our services in Edinburgh. Health, care and wellbeing continue to be affected by the
aftermath of the pandemic, with an ongoing ‘cost of living crisis’ exacerbating existing inequalities. After a
difficult few years responding to the pandemic and ensuing pressures across the system, we have seen positive
improvements across a wide range of indicators covered in the annual performance report. 13 out of 15
indicators have seen an improved or steady ranking on benchmarked performance compared to last year and
we remain in the top half of partnerships for 9 of the indicators with an update in the report. Improvements
have been seen in a number of other areas as well. In particular, we have seen positive movement in our
levels of bed days spent in delay for over 75s this year. Edinburgh is one of only four partnerships that saw
improved performance in delays in 2022/23, with a 6% reduction in Edinburgh compared to a 23% increase
nationally, although challenges remain to reduce our level of delays to sustainable levels.

Despite these improvements and the positive stories of our service delivery and innovation shown throughout
this report, there remains work to be done. The Care Inspectorate undertook two inspections of our services
this year: Adult Support and Protection and Adult Social Care and Social Work. We welcome careful and
ongoing scrutiny of our work and that of our partners to ensure that systems and practices are working
effectively — and to make improvements when they are not. While these inspection reports highlight areas
where we are getting it right, they also highlight key areas for improvement and reflect broader challenges
that are common to health and social care partnerships across Scotland. In particular, the inspection reports
highlighted concerns around the design, structure, implementation and oversight of key processes, social work
workforce capacity, quality assurance and approaches to early intervention and prevention.

Despite the challenges we face, particularly in resourcing and recruitment, we need to build on our strengths —
most obviously the commitment of our hard-working colleagues who give their all working in the Edinburgh
Health and Social Care Partnership (EHSCP), supporting needs of those who have deeply complex and difficult
lives. We have developed an improvement plan, approved by the EIJB in June 2023, to support frontline
colleagues and respond to areas for improvement highlighted by the Care Inspectorate. Our priorities within
this improvement plan are:

° A focus on early intervention, prevention and demand management;
. Reducing waiting lists and improving access to services;
. Best use of resources to meet demand and an improved structure;
. Getting basic and key processes right;
8

Page 27



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

. Workforce — improving recruitment, retention and governance; and

° Better governance, including professional supervision, manager oversight and quality assurance.

Alongside this improvement plan, the EIJB approved a budget savings programme in June 2023 to enhance
financial sustainability of our services within a difficult financial environment and demographic pressures. By
using a person-centred approach, the EIJB can deliver better results for people more efficiently over the course
of the strategy. In addition, through the use of stronger commissioning and an improved ‘digital front door’
for people looking to access services, the deficit reduction will be made through creating a modern service, fit
for the future.

The annual performance report can be found here.

Financial Overview
Annual accounts

The annual accounts report the financial performance of EIJB. Their main purpose is to demonstrate the
stewardship of the public funds that have been entrusted to us for the delivery of our vision and strategic
priorities. The requirements governing the format and content of 1JBs’ annual accounts are contained in The
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the code). These annual accounts have
been prepared in accordance with this code.

2022/23 financial plan

Each year we produce a financial plan which sets out how we ensure our limited resources are targeted to
maximise the contribution to our objectives in the year ahead. For 2022/23 our financial plan (agreed by the
board in March 2022) assumed funding from our partners totalling £750m and estimated costs for the year at
£779m, giving an initial gap of £29m. To bridge this deficit, we agreed a savings and recovery programme of
£6m and further mitigating actions totalling £6m, leaving a residual shortfall of £17m. Partners supported the
view that this remaining budget gap was at a level where it could feasibly be addressed as the year progressed.

The board agreed the budget on this basis, recognising a number of complex inter related factors, namely:
improvements in performance; the likely negative impact on outcomes for people and performance more
generally of any further savings initiatives; the ongoing uncertainty as we emerged from the Covid pandemic;
and the underlying structural deficit.

EIJB officers worked closely with partners to identify options to bridge the financial gap as the year progressed.
Regular updates on the financial position were provided to the Performance and Delivery Committee as well as
to the ElJB itself. Included in these regular updates were details of the financial impact of the pandemic and
progress with the savings and recovery programme.

Financial Performance

EIJB’s financial performance for the year is presented in the comprehensive income and expenditure
statement, which can be seen on page 28. The balance sheet (page 29) sets out the liabilities and assets at
31st March 2023.

Financial performance is disclosed in the annual accounts on a different basis from that used to report the
ongoing financial performance monthly to the board. The latter considers actual costs against budget and the
former captures income and expenditure.

For the year, we are reporting a deficit of £58m in the 2022/23 annual accounts. This compares to a surplus of
£57m for the previous year. These contrasting results are effectively the result of timing differences. Funding

Page 28


https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/documents/s59412/8.1%20Annual%20Performance%20Report%20202223.pdf

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

was allocated by the Scottish Government in 2021/22 for use in the following financial year. Thus, the in year
deficit was caused by timing differences, with income received in the previous year being spent in 2022/23.

EIJB’s financial performance against its “in year” delegated budgets resulted in a break-even position in both
health and social care services. This was achieved following an additional one off allocation of £4m from NHS
Lothian to support the position with set aside services.

Overall, we incurred costs of £923m during the year, £13m of which were attributable to the pandemic.
Detailed in the table below are some of the initiatives and responses funded as a direct consequence of Covid.
Further information on the components of the total costs of £923m is given in the segmental analysis in note
8.

Costs incurred by City of Edinburgh Council

Staff costs 1,115
PPE 365
Provider sustainability payments 5,801
Loss of income 1,000
Shortfall on funding for interim care beds 2,900
Sub total Council costs 11,181
Costs incurred by NHS Lothian
GP prescribing 1,867
Additional FHS contractor costs 70
Sub total NHS costs 1,937
Total 13,118

Funding for these costs was received during 2021/22, £44m of which was carried forward in an earmarked EIJB
reserve. The unspent balance (£32m) was returned to the Scottish Government during the year. This was
effected by a reduction in the income received from NHS Lothian during the year.

As described above the comprehensive income and expenditure statement is recording a deficit of £58m.
Comparing the actual costs for the year to the delegated budget gives a balanced position. The underlying
financial pressures facing us have not materially changed, these include:

. Externally purchased services where demographic factors continue to drive demand for these
services, this is also evidenced in the continuing growth in direct payments and individual service
funds. Asin previous years we have seen a significant increase in the levels of services during
2022/23. This, in turn, has led to an increase in cost;

. Medicines prescribed by General Practitioners cost £84m in 2022/23. This is an area where,
although Edinburgh has one of the lowest costs per head of population, we see costs rising year on
year as volumes increase and costs fluctuate; and

. Expenditure in set aside which continues to be one of the main financial issues facing NHS
delegated services. NHS Lothian agreed a one-off additional allocation to reflect this.

These pressures have been offset in year by high levels of vacancies across a number of services in both the
City of Edinburgh Council and NHS Lothian. Professions particularly impacted include nursing, allied health
professionals and social care workers. We continue to face significant challenges in recruiting and retaining
staff and, given the impact on service delivery, operational staff continue to prioritise recruitment.

10

Page 29



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

Whilst it is positive that we are able to report a break even position against our in year budget, the continued
reliance on one-off measures to achieve financial balance remains a concern. As a board we face a number of
material and long-standing financial pressures and a baseline gap in our financial plan which we struggle to
address on a recurring basis. Our medium term financial strategy (MTFS) begins to set out what a path to
financial sustainability could look like and this will continue to be developed in the coming financial year.

All funding received during the year but not yet spent has been transferred to reserves. Following the return
of the unspent Covid reserve (£32m) to the Scottish Government, our reserves have reduced to £24m at 31%
March 2023. Detail of these reserves including those which are ‘ring fenced’ for specific purposes, with the
opening and closing balances are shown in note 9.

Medium term financial strategy

We continue to face unprecedented challenges to the sustainability of our health and care system; an ageing
population; an increase in the number of people living with long term condition; a reduction in the working
age population which compounds the challenge in workforce supply and fundamentally resource availability
cannot continue to match levels of demand. These challenges are enduring and well recognised.

In the case of Edinburgh this is evidenced by the structural deficit which the IJB inherited from partners
(particularly for social care services). Since its inception the EIJB has routinely faced an underlying budget gap
of between £10m and £18m which we are unable to bridge on a sustainable basis. Our recent financial
performance has been underpinned by material levels of non-recurring solutions with the factors outlined
above directly impacting our ability to set a budget which is balanced on a recurring basis.

The EIJB has a total budget of circa £800m that comprises the annual financial settlements received from both
NHS Lothian and the City of Edinburgh Council to fund delivery of the services delegated to it. Our current
approach to financial planning focuses firstly on quantifying the in year shortfall between projected income
and expenditure. Subsequently we identify, and then deliver, savings and recovery schemes to address the
gap. Each year, developing savings proposals which will have limited impact on performance, quality and
outcomes becomes more difficult. It is recognised that the opportunities for developing and effectively
delivering significant savings proposals within a single financial year has become unsustainable and would
require significant service cuts which would lead, mostly likely, to a worsening experience for people and
poorer performance.

To address sustainability in the longer term and avoid the need to relentlessly develop savings programmes
that lead to inefficient ‘salami slicing’, there is an acknowledged requirement to evolve our thinking and
approach. As a result, the board has supported the development of our MTFS. This is effectively a set of
longer-term transformation change programmes and projects, expected to deliver improved care and financial
benefits as part of a multi-year programme. It sets out longer term strategic change proposals, service
redesign plans and operational efficiency workstreams. The MTFS is also closely tied in with our developing
improvement plans responding to recent Care Inspectorate inspections. These three key strands have been
brought together into one coherent change programme, aiming to deliver improved performance, better
outcomes and financial benefits. This improvement plan was agreed by the EIJB in June 2023 and the MTFS
itself will be presented to the board by December 2023.

The MTFS is the vehicle to move the 1JB towards sustainability, but the planning and implementation of such
large-scale, strategic change takes time and many of the financial benefits will only be realised over a number
of years. At its core, the MTFS presents the building blocks of a major transformation programme to improve
services. Key elements include redesigning the ‘front door’ (ie how services are initially accessed), review and
assessment practice, and commissioning, all of which are fundamental to a well-functioning care system.
These workstreams represent the start of a large-scale change, incorporating operational, cultural, digital and
structural elements.

11

Page 30



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

Risk

The Audit and Assurance Committee oversee the risk management arrangements; including receipt, review,
and scrutiny of reports on strategic risks and escalation of any issues that require to be brought to the
attention of the EIJB.

We continue to develop our risk framework and risk register to manage, mitigate, and identify risk. As a key
part of our governance process, the risk register examines the risks that impact the EIJB’s ability to deliver its
strategic plan, and identifies, assesses risks, and clearly associates their owners and controls to manage them.
We undertook an exercise through 2022/23 to review and revise our risks, to ensure they are clear and
remove any duplication. As a result, the risks recorded on our register reduced from twelve down to nine. We
are continually looking at ways to strengthen our risk management approach and work has started to develop
a risk matrix which will clearly articulate why a particular risk rating has been choose and well as a revision of
the EIJB risk appetite statement and it is anticipated this work will be completed in line with the 23/24
accounts timeline.

The nine risks are captured under 3 headings: strategic planning and commissioning; issuing of directions; and
management and role of the IJB. A summary extract of the register as at March 2023 is included below:

Path
Risk Target to
Appetite Rating | target
risk

Risk Type

Strategic Planning and Commissioning

Strategic & Medium — There is a risk that the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board

1.1 People Very High (EIB) is unable to deliver its strategic objectives.
. . There is a risk that the EIJB is not able to influence decision-
Strategic & Medium — . . .
1.2 . making over delegated services that are not managed by High Med
People Very High .

the Partnership.
There is a risk that the NHS Lothian and City of Edinburgh

1.3 Financial Low - High | Council cannot deliver delegated services within available High High N/A

budgets.

Issuing of Directions
. There is a risk that NHS Lothian and City of Edinburgh
Medium —

2.1 Strategic Very High Council do not deliver directions set by the EIJB. High Med

Management and Role of the EIJB

. There is a risk that the EIJB is unable to operate effectively
Medium —

3.1 Strategic Very High as a public body. Med Low
. There is a risk that the EIJB’s workforce strategy is not
3.2 Strategic Medium = delivered High Med
’ Very High ’
Medium — There is a risk that the EIJB doesn’t have an appropriate

33 Strategic Very High level of infrastructure delegated from NHS Lothian and the High Med
City of Edinburgh Council to operate effectively.

There is a risk that the EIJB has insufficient assurance from

3.4 Regulatory Low assurance providers to support effective delivery of scrutiny Low Low N/A

responsibilities.

There is a risk that the EIJB does not comply with the

3.5 Regulatory Low necessary legislative and regulatory requirements. Low Low N/A

12

Page 31



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

During 2022/23, we continued to develop our risk management framework including our governance of risk
reporting ensuring that we are identifying potential threats preventing us from achieving the EIJB’s strategic
objectives and directly relaying their impact to the EIJB and in terms of outcomes for the people of Edinburgh.
We continue to utilise ‘risk profile cards’ format for all our risks which:

. identifies the risk, states the objective (what the 1B is trying to achieve) and the source of that
objective (key document or relevant legislation);

. names a risk owner who is responsible for actions;

. explains how the risk would happen and the potential outcomes;

° illustrates the historic and current risk score and how it relates on the risk assessment matrix;

. provides a recent update on risk management activities;

. identifies what we are currently doing to reduce the risk; and

° summarises the planned actions to reduce the risk score.

This systematic risk management approach has been endorsed by both the Audit and Assurance Committee
and the board itself and will support the more dynamic nature of the risk register.

Conclusion

Throughout the public sector finances are under more pressure than ever before and the impacts of the wider
economy and consequent cost of living crisis bring further uncertainty. It is therefore crucial that we focus on
early intervention, prevention and recovery if we are to work within the total annual budget. Moving into
2023/24, we are working to proactively address the funding challenges presented while, at the same time,
improving outcomes for the residents of Edinburgh.

We are facing the twin challenges of: increasing demand for services; and a climate of constrained financial
resources. In this context, the development and implementation of a strategic approach to financial planning
over the next 3-5 years is essential to support the sustainability of health and social care delivery in Edinburgh.

Mike Massaro-Mallinson Katharina Kasper Moira Pringle
Interim Chief Officer Chair Chief Finance Officer

13

Page 32



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILTIES

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENTS OF ACCOUNT
Responsibilities of the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board

The Edinburgh Integration Joint Board is required:

. to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that it has
an officer responsible for the administration of those affairs. In this Integration Joint Board, that
officer is the Chief Finance Officer;

° to manage its affairs to achieve best value in the use of its resources and safeguard its assets;

. ensure the Annual Accounts are prepared in accordance with legislation (The Local Authority
Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014), and so far as is compatible with that legislation, in
accordance with proper accounting practices (section 12 of the Local Government in Scotland Act
2003); and

. to approve the Annual Accounts.

| confirm that these Annual Accounts were approved for signature by the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board on
215t September 2023.

Katharina Kasper
Chair of the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board

14

Page 33



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer

As Chief Finance Officer, | am responsible for the preparation of the EIJB’s statement of accounts which, in
terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (“the Code
of Practice”), is required to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the EIJB at the financial year
end and its income and expenditure for the year then ended.

In preparing the financial statements | am responsible for:

. selecting suitable accounting policies and then applying them consistently;
. making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
. complying with the Code of Practice and legislation

| am also required to:

. keep proper accounting records which are up to date; and

. take reasonable steps to ensure the propriety and regularity of the finances of the EIJB.

Statement of Accounts

| certify that the Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position of the Edinburgh
Integration Joint Board at the reporting date, and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March
2023.

Moira Pringle
Chief Finance Officer

15

Page 34



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

REMUNERATION REPORT

This Remuneration Report is provided in accordance with the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations
2014. It discloses information relating to the remuneration and pension benefits of specified 1B members and
staff.

The Chief Officer of the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board (EIJB) is a joint appointment between City of
Edinburgh Council, NHS Lothian and the EIJB. The terms and conditions, including pay for the post, are those
set by the City of Edinburgh Council, who employ the post holder directly and recharge the costs to EIJB and
NHS Lothian.

The EIJB Chief Financial Officer is appointed by the EIJB and is supplied without charge by NHS Lothian and the
associated costs are included in the support costs disclosed in note 3.

The voting members of the EIJB are appointed by the respective partner bodies (NHS Lothian and City of
Edinburgh Council). The voting members from NHS Lothian and City of Edinburgh Council in the period April
2022 to March 2023 were:

S. Chandran (resigned 31/05/22) NHS | R. Aldridge (resigned 04/05/22) CEC
E. Gordon (appointed 01/08/22) NHS | P. Doggart (resigned 04/05/22) CEC
G. Gordon (appointed 01/06/22) NHS | E. Davidson (appointed 26/05/22) CEC
P. Knight (appointed 01/05/22) NHS | G. Gordon (resigned 04/05/22) CEC
A. McCann (Vice Chair) NHS | R. Henderson (Chair) (resigned 04/05/22) CEC
P. Murray NHS | M. Main (resigned 04/05/22) CEC
R. Williams (resigned 31/07/22) NHS | C. Miller (appointed 30/06/22) CEC

M. Mitchell (appointed 26/05/22) CEC

T. Pogson (Chair) (appointed 26/05/22) CEC

V. Nicolson (appointed 26/05/22) CEC

The current voting members from NHS Lothian and City of Edinburgh Council are:

K. Kasper (Chair) (appointed 05/04/23) NHS | T. Pogson (Vice Chair) (appointed 26/05/22) CEC

E. Gordon (appointed 01/08/22) NHS | E. Davidson (appointed 26/05/22) CEC

G. Gordon (appointed 01/06/22) NHS | C. Miller (appointed 30/06/22) CEC

P. Knight (appointed 01/05/22) NHS | M. Mitchell (appointed 26/05/22) CEC

P. Murray NHS | V. Nicolson (appointed 26/05/22) CEC
16

Page 35



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

Remuneration for the Chair and Vice Chair in relation to their additional duties is set out in the table below.
The full year allowance is £17,128. No allowances were paid to other voting members during the year.

Year to Year to
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Additional Additional

remuneration

(£)

remuneration

(£)

R. Henderson (Chair to

04/05/22) 1,658 16,281
T. Pogson (Chair from

26/05/22) 15,041 0

A. McCann (Vice Chair) 9,922 9,687

The remuneration and pension benefits received by all voting members in 2022/23 are disclosed in the
remuneration reports of their respective employer. Voting members can, through their parent bodies, reclaim
any expenses. In the year to 31 March 2023, no expense claims were made in relation to work on the EIJB.

Remuneration Paid to Senior Officers

Year to Year to
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
Sala ar\r/],dfees _— ot
allowances remuneration remuneration
£ £
(£) (£) (£)
J Proctor,
ENB Chief Officer 170,148 170,148 162,747
M Pringle,
EIIB Chief Finance Officer 94,629 94,629 92,424

Pension benefits

Pension benefits for the Chief Officer and Chair of the EIJB are provided through the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS). Pension benefits for the Chief Finance Officer are provided through the NHS New
Pension Scheme (Scotland) 2015. In respect of officers’ pension benefits the statutory liability for any future

contributions to be made rests with the relevant employing partner organisation. On this basis there is no
pensions liability reflected on the 1B balance sheet for the Chief Officer or any other officers.

Local Government Pension Scheme

For local government employees, the Local Government Pension Scheme LGPS became a career average pay
scheme on 1 April 2015. Benefits built up to 31 March 2015 are protected and based on final salary. Accrued
benefits from 1 April 2015 will be based on career average salary.

The scheme’s normal retirement age is linked to the state pension age (but with a minimum age of 65).

17

Page 36



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

From 1 April 2009, a five-tier contribution system was introduced with contributions from scheme members
being based on how much pay falls into each tier. This is designed to give more equality between the cost and
benefits of scheme membership.

The contribution rates for 2022/23 were as follows:

Whole Time Pay Contribution rate
On earnings up to and including £23,000 (2021/22 £22,300) 5.50%
On earnings above £23,001 and up to £28,100 (2021/22 £22,300 to £27,300) 7.25%
On earnings above £28,101 and up to £38,600(2021/22 £27,300 to £37,400) 8.50%
On earnings above £38,601 and up to £51,400 (2021/22 £37,400 to £49,900) 9.50%
On earnings above £51,401 (2021/22 £49,900) 12.00%

If a person works part-time their contribution rate is worked out on the whole-time pay rate for the job, with
actual contributions paid on actual pay earned.

The value of the accrued benefits has been calculated based on the age at which the person will first become
entitled to receive a pension on retirement without reduction on account of its payment at that age; without
exercising any option to commute pension entitlement into a lump sum; and without any adjustment for the
effects of future inflation.

NHS Pension Scheme

The NHS Superannuation Scheme (Scotland) is an unfunded statutory public service pension scheme with
benefits underwritten by the UK Government. The scheme is financed by payments from employers and from
those current employees who are members of the scheme and paying contributions at progressively higher
marginal rates based on pensionable pay, as specified in the regulations. The rate of employer contributions is
set with reference to a funding valuation undertaken by the scheme actuary. The last four-yearly valuation was
undertaken as at 31t March 2016. This valuation informed an employer contribution rate from 1t April 2019
of 20.9% of pensionable pay and an anticipated yield of 9.6% employees’ contributions.

The new NHS Pension Scheme (Scotland) 2015

From 1% April 2015 the NHS Pension Scheme (Scotland) 2015 was introduced. This scheme is a career average
revalued earnings (CARE) scheme. Members will accrue 1/54 of their pay as pension for each year they are a
member of the scheme. The accrued pension is re-valued each year at an above inflation rate to maintain its
buying power. This is currently 1.5% above increases to the Consumer Prices Index (CPI). This continues until
the member leaves the scheme or retires. In 2017/18 members paid tiered contribution rates ranging from
5.2% to 14.7% of pensionable earnings. The normal pension age (NPA) is the same as the state pension age.
Members can take their benefits earlier but there will be a deduction for early payment.

The existing NHS Superannuation Scheme (Scotland)

This scheme closed to new joiners on 315 March 2015, but any benefits earned in either NHS 1995 or NHS
2008 sections are protected and will be paid at the section’s normal pension age using final pensionable pay
when members leave or retire. Some members who were close to retirement when the NHS 2015 scheme
launched will continue to earn benefits in their current section. This may affect members who were paying
into the scheme on 1% April 2012 and were within 10 years of their normal retirement age. Some members
who were close to retirement but did not qualify for full protection will remain in their current section beyond
15t April 2015 and join the 2015 scheme at a later date. All other members automatically joined the NHS 2015
scheme on 1% April 2015.

18

Page 37



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

Accrued Benefits

The pension figures shown below relate to the benefits that the person has accrued as a consequence of their
total local government service, and not just their current appointment.

The pension entitlements of senior officers and current voting members for the period to 31 March 2023 are
shown in the table below, together with the employer contribution made to the employee's pension during
the year. Where accrued pension benefits are not shown in the table below, this indicates the employee has
been a member of the pension scheme for less than 2 years.

Employer . .
In-Year Contribution Accrued Pension Benefits
Diff
For year to For year to As at ! ff;fnnce
31/03/23 31/03/22 31/03/23 31/03/22
£ £ £000 £000
Pension 11 3
J Proctor, EIJB Chief Officer 38,624 36,830
Lump Sum 0
i i i Pension 37 4
I(\)/Iffl?rlngle, ElJB Chief Finance 19,777 19358
Icer Lump Sum 64 1
R Henderson, Chair 206 2919 Pension 9 0
(Resigned 04/05/2022) ’ Lump Sum 5 0
T Pogson, Chair 2315 0 Pension n/a n/a
(Appointed 04/05/2022) ¢ Lump Sum o/a o/

The Chair has been in the pension scheme for less than two years, therefore not currently entitled to pension.

The Vice Chair is not a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme or the NHS Pension scheme;
therefore, no pension benefits are disclosed.

All information disclosed in the tables in this remuneration report has been audited by Audit Scotland. Audit
Scotland has reviewed other sections of the report to ensure that they are consistent with the financial
statements.

Mike Massaro-Mallinson Katharina Kasper
Interim Chief Officer Chair

19

Page 38



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Scope of Responsibility

The Edinburgh Integration Joint Board (EIJB) is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and appropriate standards, that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted
for, and that arrangements are in place to secure best value.

In discharging this responsibility, the EIJB and the Chief Officer have put in place arrangements for governance
which include robust internal controls, including the management of risk.

The Edinburgh Health and Social Care Partnership is the partnership between the City of Edinburgh Council
and NHS Lothian which delivers the majority of services that the EIJB directs. Although the Partnership will be
referenced in the statement, only the EIJB’s arrangements will be analysed.

2022/23 saw the EIJB continue to deal with the impact of the Covid pandemic, which continued to have a
detrimental impact on service delivery, resources as well as impact on the citizens of Edinburgh. The EIJB had
to manage the considerable impact, with the cumulative strains and pressures on resources caused by the
pandemic response extending into its third year.

Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems, processes, culture and values by which the EIJB is
controlled and directed. It enables the EIJB to monitor the progress with its strategic priorities and to consider
whether those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money.

A key element of the EIJB’s governance framework is its formal Board and committees. These committees
provide additional layers of governance, scrutiny and rigour to the business of the EIJB. Their different roles,
covering the wide spectrum of the EIJB’s business, allow increased scrutiny and monitoring and the focus and
capability to provide the EIJB with the necessary assurance.

Board and Committee Structures

The EIJB has been responsible for health and social care functions in Edinburgh since 1 April 2016. The Board
consists of 10 voting members, of which five are non-executive directors of NHS Lothian and five are
councillors from the City of Edinburgh Council. There are also a number of non-voting members appointed,
both to comply with statutory requirements and to provide more varied experience and knowledge to the
Board. The chair of the Board rotates every two years between NHS Lothian and the City of Edinburgh Council.

The EIJB has several committees which support the board fulfil its duties as a public body the committee
model is as follows:

. Audit and Assurance — advise the EIJB on the adequacy of financial reporting arrangements,
governance activities, internal and external audit provisions and the implications of assurances
provided in respect of risk and internal control.

. Clinical and Care Governance — Monitors, reviews, and reports to the Board on the quality of care
to the local population, specifically in relation to patient safety, clinical effectiveness and patient
experience.

. Performance and Delivery — to provide advice and assurance to the EIJB on the effectiveness on
the financial management and service performance for services delegated to the EIJB.

20

Page 39



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

. Strategic Planning Group — Monitors, reviews, and reports to the Board on the strategy, plans and
delivery of services delegated to the EIJB.

The committee terms of reference for Audit and Assurance, Strategic Planning Group and Performance and
Delivery have been reviewed, with the terms of reference for the Clinical and Care Governance Committee
under review. All updated terms of reference will be presented to the EIJB in October 2023.

A log of all statutory, legislative, and regulatory requirements is included as an appendix to the terms of
reference for each committee. This ensures that each committee covers all necessary requirements and
allows members to have oversight and visibility of those requirements that the EIJB need to comply with. To
support transparency, committee actions notes are included as part of the papers of the EIJB and are made
available to members of the public.

Internal Controls

As required by the legislation, the EIJB has appointed a Chief Officer and a Chief Finance Officer. It has also
appointed a Chief Internal Auditor, a Standards Officer and a Data Protection Officer. The Chief Officer left her
post on 19t May 2023. An Interim Chief Officer was appointed on 12t June 2023 and a permanent
appointment was agreed by the EIJB on 21 September 2023.

The EIJB has agreed the following governance documentation:

. Financial Regulations — Section 95 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 requires all 1JBs to
have adequate systems and controls in place to ensure the proper administration of their financial
affairs. The EIJB has agreed a set of financial regulations which are supported by a series of
financial directives and instructions with clear lines of delegation to the Chief Finance Officer to
carry out that function.

. A Code of Conduct for the members of the EIJB has been agreed and made available to all
members. Compliance with the Code of Conduct is regulated by the Standards Commission for
Scotland. Training is provided to members on the Code of Conduct. A new Code of Conduct was
agreed following the changes to the Model Code in December 2021.

. A set of Standing Orders has been agreed which sets out the rules governing the conduct and
proceedings at the EIJB and its committees. The Standing Orders include rules on the notice of
meetings and how voting and debate should be conducted. The Standing Orders were reviewed by
the EIJB on 19*" April 2022.

The EIJB has a rolling action log which helps the groups monitor the implementation of decisions, there has
also been the introduction of an EIJB annual cycle of business which gives both board members and the public
an indication of when key workstreams/papers will be presented to the EIJB.

A deputation process has been agreed by the EIJB which allows and encourages groups to directly address the
Board on issues under consideration.

The Audit and Assurance Committee is responsible for oversight of the risk management arrangements and
considers the risk register quarterly. This is in turn referred to the EIJB twice a year.

The Health and Social Care Partnership Procurement Board exercises oversight of all proposals to award,
extend or terminate contracts with third party providers.

Insurance against legal liability for neglect, error or omission by any employee in the performance of their
duties in relation to work on the 1JB is arranged through CNORIS (NHS Lothian’s self-insurance scheme). This is
reviewed on an annual basis.

21

Page 40



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

A Savings Governance Board meets monthly and oversees financial savings and is chaired by the Chief Officer.
It monitors progress against targets and identifies appropriate remedial action. The Performance and Delivery
Committee also monitors the Savings and Recovery Programme with regular reporting to the Board.

EIJB has information governance responsibilities in relation to strategic planning and delegated functions
which it determines and directs with its partners. To achieve appropriate governance in this area, a
memorandum of understanding (MOU) has been agreed between the EIJB, NHS Lothian and the City of
Edinburgh Council that ensures responsibilities are clearly set out and understood. A pan-Lothian information
sharing protocol has also been put in place.

In November 2019, the EIJB agreed a Business Classification Scheme and its Records Retention Rules. The EIJB
records management plan was submitted and signed off by the Keeper of Records in October 2021.

The EIJB Records Management Plan was agreed in October 2021. The EIJB were able to demonstrate evidence
of compliance across 13 of the 15 areas within the Records Management Plan. The two areas assessed at
amber are because the EIJB rely on the Council for its record management infrastructure and the Council’s
Records Management Plan for these two areas were assessed as amber therefore the EIJB submission for
those two also remain at amber. The Council are currently undertaking a self-assessment in relation to their
own Records Management Plan and are addressing the two amber elements (audit trail and assessment and
review) and are engaging with the Operations Manager to ensure that the EIJB comply with any process
improvements developed.

The Equalities Act 2010 requires all public bodies to provide a progress report at least every two years with
equality outcomes published every four years. The EIJB equality outcomes were initially published in 2019 and
a progress was reported to Performance and Delivery Committee in 2021, and the next iteration is due in
2023.

The EIJB has a directions policy in place, and an annual review was undertaken by Performance and Delivery
Committee in July and endorsed by EIJB in August 2022. The directions tracker is reviewed on a regular basis at
Performance and Delivery Committee.

The EIJB has a reserves policy in place ensure that reserves are identified for a purpose and held against
planned expenditure, with timescales or held as a general contingency in the event of an emergency. It is
reviewed annually by the Performance and Delivery Committee on behalf of the board with the most recent
review taking place in May 2023.

The EIJB as a public body must ensure in exercising its functions:
a. contribute to the delivery of Scotland’s climate change targets; (mitigation)
b. help deliver any Scottish adaptation programme (adaptation)

c. act in a way that it considers most sustainable (act sustainability)

The EIJB has no direct responsibility for the delivery of service, employs only two members of staff and has no
delegated capital assets (buildings, fleet nor IT equipment) and as such has no responsibilities for complying
with the climate change duties in these key areas. The Board does however have a responsibility to ensure
compliance with the climate change duties in respect of the strategic and financial planning of delegated
health and social care services. All public bodies must also prepare an annual report with the 2022 submission
presented to the Performance and Delivery Committee on 30 November and was submitted to the Scottish
Government on 30 November.

In April 2021, the EIJB adopted a complaints handling procedure based on the model complaints handling
procedure designed by the Scottish Public Services Ombudsman and an annual report was presented to the
Audit and Assurance Committee confirming that there has been no EIJB complaints in the last year.

22

Page 41



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

In April 2021 the EIJB agreed a protocol for responding to consultations. These arrangements, which remain in
place, require any consultation with a significant impact to be approved by the board. A number of
consultation responses have been submitted, one in 2022/23.

An annual assurance process for the 2022/23 cycle has now concluded. This provides assurance on how
effective the committees are operating to discharge their remits. All committee members are asked a range of
questions, covering membership, training, induction. These are presented to committees for endorsement and
then presented to Audit and Assurance Committee alongside the annual accounts.

In line with the CIPFA guidance 'Code of practice on managing the risk of fraud and corruption' the EIJB
acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring that the risks associated with fraud and corruption are managed
effectively across all parts of the organisation. To support this, we utilise the Council's fraud and corruption
procedures and/or NHS Lothian fraud arrangements depending on where the spend/costs sit.

Review of Effectiveness

The EIJB has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of its governance arrangements, including its
internal controls.

The pandemic extending into its third year has continued to have a significant impact on the EIJB and the
services it commissions. The cumulative impact and strain on resources and the increased demand on services
has meant significant pressures for the EIJB to manage. Whilst this has had little impact on the governance of
the ElJB, there has been significant pressures facing the Edinburgh Health and Social Care Partnership. This is
seen particularly through increased demand for services, and an inability to recruit to key roles in the
Partnership. This resulted in the Audit and Assurance Committee escalating their risk rating for workforce to
very high in 2021/22. Similarly, the Edinburgh Health and Social Care Partnership and the City of Edinburgh
Council increased their risk rating for support for vulnerable people to ‘critical’. These ratings remained in
place during 2022/23. Whilst a range of workstreams was put in place to address these issues, whole scale
change is required to fully address the challenges.

Whilst there is good governance within the EIJB, there is a need to strengthen the relationship between EIJB
and Council and NHS Lothian committees and clarify responsibility for the scrutiny of services. This will ensure
a streamlined process of reporting and governance and provide a structure to ensure that services are
adequately scrutinised, and risks are managed. Process improvements are also needed if a partner cannot
deliver direction(s) and how this should be reported through the EIJB and/or partner bodies. This will be
delivered through the 2023/24 cycle.

This review of effectiveness is informed by:

° The Chief Officer’s annual assurance statements for the EIJB and the Health and Social Care
Partnership;

° Officer management activities;

. The Chief Internal Auditor's annual report and internal audit reports;
. Reports from the EIJB’s external auditor; and

. Reports by external, statutory inspection agencies.

23

Page 42



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

The evidence of effectiveness from these sources includes:

. The EIJB good governance handbook, which is intended to be a live document that lays out the
fundamentals of good governance for the EIJB. The handbook covers a wide range of sections and
provides clarity on the role of the EIJB and the role of members. It also sets out the key principles
of good governance and for example what good scrutiny looks like. This is an important document
that shows that the EIJB is committed to good governance and sees the value in a robust and clear
framework.

. Our review of the EIJB’s governance arrangements to address weaknesses in scrutiny of
performance and clarify the relationship between committees.

. An EIJB induction and further development opportunities are in place for all voting and non-voting
members.
. Standing Orders that are reviewed annually in a report to the EIJB, to ensure they are up to date

and relevant.

. A performance report that is considered monthly by Health and Social Care Partnership
management. Performance on local indicators that is reported regularly to the Board and its
committees and an annual performance report that is also considered by the Board.

. The Annual Performance Report that was presented to the EIJB in September 2022 as per
legislative requirements.

. Regular financial monitoring reports that are presented to the EIJB and Council and NHS
committees. Monitoring arrangements have been effective in identifying variances and control
issues and taking appropriate action. This has included allocating funds to offset unachieved
savings plans.

. The EIJB in March 2022 agreed a budget with a budget deficit of £29.3m. This recognised that
further savings had the potential to negatively impact on services, service users and staff. The
board agreed that officers would work collaboratively to identify the means to address the gap. In
December 2022 the Chief Finance Officer gave moderate assurance that there would be a break-
even position for 2022/23. This suggests that this approach has been successful and there is
considerable merit in adopting a longer-term strategic approach to savings. However, there is
considerable risk in adopting unbalanced budgets from the outset and the success in year 2022/23
of this approach does not automatically lead to assurance that this will be repeated. The current
financial position for 23/24 highlights an initial £47m budget gap and a medium-term financial
strategy (MTFS) is being developed to address this gap on a sustainable basis.

. The EIJB annually reviews its direction policy through its Performance and Delivery Committee. This
review examines the directions agreed in the previous year and determines whether to retain, vary
or close them. This allows a close monitoring of directions which are the primary method through
which the ElJB instructs the City of Edinburgh Council and NHS Lothian to carry out the delegated
functions.

. A quarterly internal audit update detailing Internal Audit activity on behalf of the EIJB is submitted
to the Audit and Assurance Committee.

. The EIJB Internal Audit Charter that was approved by the EIJB Audit and Assurance Committee in
August 2022 states that internal audit will remain free from interference from anyone within the
ElJB in relation to audit selection, scope, procedures, frequency, timing, and report content. The
charter is based on Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and details the responsibilities of both
management and internal audit to support delivery of EIJB audit assurance.
24

Page 43



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

Internal Audit has reported an ‘amber’ rated opinion for the year, concluding that reasonable
assurance can be placed upon the adequacy and effectiveness of the EIJB’s governance, risk
management and internal control systems in the year to 31 March 2023. This reflects that
assurance activity has assessed the EIJB as having a generally sound system of governance, risk
management and control in place. Internal Audit work identified a number of issues, areas of non-
compliance and/or scope for improvement throughout the year, which individually do not
significantly impair the EIJB’s system of internal control but may put at risk the achievement of
objectives if corrective actions are not adequately addressed.

The EIJB introduced risk cards in 2020, to simplify the risk management process, with risk cards
now in place for all risks. The aim was to better understand how the EIJB is exposed to those risks
and the controls necessary to mitigate them. This new approach results in a more detailed and
comprehensive risk register, and it is expected that this will support a more dynamic approach.
Work has continued to enhance the risk cards and develop a risk appetite statement for the EIJB.

The EIJB agreed in December 2021 to create a permanent programme and project management
capability which will help ensure an experienced resource is available to manage the governance of
major projects within the EIJB. Recruitment to this team on a permanent basis started throughout
2022/23.

The Chief Officer and Executive Management Team continue to drive improvement in the number
of internal management actions overdue by allocating additional resource to co-ordinate the
implementation of EIJB management actions and this is delivering improvement with a significant
number of management actions closed over 2022/23, with all historic overdue now closed. The
previous Chief Internal Auditor observed an improving trend, but it was recognised that work was
necessary to continue and sustain this improvement. Concern had been raised previously by the
Audit and Assurance Committee over the number of historic actions, however, management had
provided up to date positions on the risks and revised completion dates. Scrutiny is carried out at
the Audit and Assurance Committee on internal audit actions on a quarterly basis.

The transformation programme launched in February 2020 and was established with a
comprehensive governance structure which included four programme boards feeding into an
overall portfolio board. This team, whilst delivering significant change, was not established to meet
all the financial challenges in the medium term. In March 2022, a new programme called the
Innovation and Sustainability Programme was approved which seeks to develop an approach to
evolve how to work with the staff and the people of Edinburgh to shape and reimagine the delivery
of services. The programme aims to redesign systems to facilitate earlier interventions at lower
costs and sustained outcomes supporting health and wellbeing. The first of the pipeline of
proposals for this programme was considered by the board in 2022.

External Audit had previously highlighted that there was a risk that the lack of professional,
administrative and technical support provided by the Council and NHS Lothian may lead to failures
in governance, scrutiny and performance. The EIJB has reviewed the support resources it requires
and has highlighted this in the risk register.

In December 2022, the board via Audit and Assurance agreed its process for the board assurance
framework, reflecting on the learning from the 2021/22 process. This process has now concluded
and, following a review of the committee assurance statements, the Audit and Assurance
Committee has provided the EIJB with a moderate level of assurance on how effectively the
committees are discharging their remits.

25

Page 44



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

. A joint inspection of adult support and protection was undertaken during the year and the findings
were published on 14™ February 2023. While the Adult Support and Protection Inspection was
underway, a further inspection of adult social work and social care in Edinburgh was announced
and undertaken by the Care Inspectorate. The report on this inspection was published on 21
March 2023. Recommendations from both inspections and other relevant actions have been
consolidated into one clear plan for improvement. This was approved by the EIJB in June 2023.

Last Year’s Actions

Progress with the actions identified in the 2021/22 governance statement is summarised in the table below:

Responsible Party Progress

. S ) Initial project
Innovation and Sustainability Programme — first set of proj

1 roposals Chief Officer agreed by Board
prop in Sept 2022
. . ] Completed in
2 Review of Board Assurance Framework Chief Officer
Dec 2022
. . ) Completed in
3 Agreement of risk management strategy Chief Officer

Dec 2022

Completed as
Chief Finance part of the
Officer review of terms
of reference
No outstanding
internal audit
actions as at
Aug 2023

4 Annual review of regulatory and legislative requirements

5 Continue to address EIJB management actions Chief Officer

26

Page 45



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

Further Improvement — Action Plan

Following the review of the assurance statements from the 4 EIJB committees, the Audit and Assurance
Committee has agreed a set of actions. These are set out below:

Responsible Party Reporting date

Development of a supported training programme for . .
. . . Interim Chief
1 committee members, alongside a clear process for training Officer March 2024
opportunities
5 Development of succession plans so that committee Chair March 2024
changes are handled smoothly
. . Operations
3 Askills audit to be undertaken December 2023
Manager
4 Tra|n|n.g for officers to ensure consistency in quality of Interlm Chief December 2073
reporting Officer
5  Recruitment of Chief Risk Officer '”te””.’ Chief December 2023
Officer
Recommend to EIJB that committee membership is . .
. . . Interim Chief
6 increased for the Audit and Assurance, Clinical and Care . October 2023
. Officer
Governance and Performance and Delivery.

Certification

As evidenced above, the EIJB continues to improve its governance structures, implementing the committee
structure, reviewing its consultation, communications, and risk management arrangements, and creating a
more robust assurance framework. Whilst the recommendations presented by the Good Governance Institute
have been implemented, there does require to be improvement made in how the EIJB interacts with its own
committees as well as those of partner organisations. There is also further work required to improve the
directions process, specifically when partners are unable to deliver a direction set by the EIJB. The Covid
pandemic continued to put considerable pressure on the organisation and the services it is responsible for, but
the governance arrangements helped it deliver and keep services running. However it is acknowledged that
there are further improvements that can be made.

The EIJB is committed to good governance and continues to look at ways to improve how it operates and
delivers services. The organisation continues to face considerable financial challenges and annually struggles
to deliver a balanced budget with an unbalanced budget being set for three years in a row. Work is ongoing to
address this through the medium-term financial strategy, but the challenges are set to remain, and long-term
financial sustainability will remain ambitious.

Mike Massaro-Mallinson Katharina Kasper
Interim Chief Officer Chair

27

Page 46



COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

This statement shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted

accounting practices
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
2021/22 2022/23
Net Gross . Net
. . Gross income .
Expenditure expenditure Expenditure
£000 Note £000 £000 £000
Health Services 8
322,801 Core services 310,483 0 310,483
107,622 Hosted services 114,037 0 114,037
64,942 Non-cash limited 67,952 0 67,952
109,506 Set aside services 119,957 0 119,957
604,871 612,429 0 612,429
Social Care Services 8
188,684 External purchasing 215,434 0 215,434
29,866 Care at home 29,809 0 29,809
14,693 Day services 16,599 0 16,599
20,593 Residential care 21,001 0 21,001
Social work assessment and care 0
15,140 management 15,485 15,485
423 Corporate services 420 0 420
7,094 Other 11,672 0 11,672
276,493 310,420 310,420
403 Corporate services 3 420 0 420
881,767 Cost of services 923,269 0 923,269
(938,516) :I'axatlon and non-sr.)eCIflc grant 2 0 (865,143) (865,143)
income and expenditure
(56,749) (Sur?lus)/DeﬁCIt on provision of 923,269 (865,143) 58,126
services
28

Page 47



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value, as at 31 March 2023, of the assets and liabilities recognised by the Board.
The net assets of the Board are matched by the reserves held.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

31/03/2022 Notes 31/03/2023
£000 £000
Current assets
82,201 Short term debtors 4 24,088

Current liabilities

-42 Short term creditors 5 -55
82,159 Net assets 24,033
-82,159 Usable reserves MIRS -24,033
-82,159 Total reserves -24,033

The unaudited financial statements were issued on 29t June 2023 and the audited financial statements were
authorised for issue by the Chief Finance Officer on 21 September 2023.

Moira Pringle
Chief Finance Officer

29

Page 48



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This statement shows the movement in the year on the different reserves held by the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board.

Notes 31/03/2023  31/03/2022

£000 £000
Usable reserves — General Fund brought forward -82,159 -25,410
Deficit/(surplus) on the provision of services 58,126 -56,749
Total comprehensive income and expenditure -24,033 -56,749
Balance, as at 31 March, carried forward 9 -24,033 -82,159

30

Page 49



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

1.

11

1.2

1.3

14

15

1.6

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General Principles

The 1JB was established under the requirements of the Public Bodies (Joint Working) (Scotland) Act 2014
and is a Section 106 body as defined in the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973.

The Annual Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared in accordance with the Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 (the Code) and the Service
Reporting Code of Practice. This is to ensure that the accounts 'present a true and fair view' of the
financial position and transactions of the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board (EIJB).

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

The revenue accounts have been prepared on an accruals basis in accordance with the Code of Practice.
Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place, not simply when cash payments are made or

received. In particular:

e all known specific and material sums payable to the 1JB have been brought into account;

e suppliers are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed. Expenses in relation to services
received are recorded as expenditure when the service is received rather than when payments
are made; and

e where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a
debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the balance sheet. Where it is doubtful
that debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue
for the income that might not be collected.

VAT Status
The EIJB is a non-taxable person and does not charge or recover VAT on its functions.
Going Concern

The accounts are prepared on a going concern basis, which assumes that the EIJB will continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future.

Funding

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board receives contributions from its funding partners, namely NHS Lothian
and the City of Edinburgh Council to fund its services.

Expenditure is incurred in the form of charges for services provided to the EIJB by its partners.
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the accounting statements. Where there is a probable inflow of
economic benefits or service potential, this is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

31

Page 50



1.7

1.8

1.9

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the accounting statements. Where there is a possible
obligation that may require a payment, or transfer of economic benefit, this is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements

The value of provisions is based upon the Board’s obligations arising from past events, the probability
that a transfer of economic benefit will take place and a reasonable estimate of the obligation.

Employee Benefits

The Chief Officer is regarded as an employee of the EIJB, although her contract of employment is with
City of Edinburgh Council. The LGPS is a defined benefit statutory scheme, administered in accordance
with the Local Government Pension Scheme (Scotland) Regulations 1998, as amended. The post is
funded by the EIJB however the statutory responsibility for employer pension liabilities rests with the
employing partner organisation (City of Edinburgh Council).

The Chief Financial Officer is regarded as an employee of the EIJB, although her contract of employment
is with NHS Lothian. NHS Lothian participates in the NHS Superannuation Scheme (Scotland) which is a
defined benefit statutory public service pension scheme, with benefits underwritten by the UK
Government.

The remuneration report presents the pension entitlement attributable to the posts of the EIJB Chief
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Vice Chair of the EIJB although the EIJB has no formal ongoing pension
liability. On this basis, there is no pension liability reflected on the EIJB balance sheet for these posts.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The EIJB does not hold a bank account or any cash equivalents. Payments to staff and suppliers relating
to delegated services will be made through cash balances held by the partner organisations (NHS Lothian
and City of Edinburgh Council). On this basis, no Cash Flow statement has been prepared in this set of
Annual Accounts.

Reserves

The Integration Joint Board is permitted to set aside future amounts of reserves for future policy
purposes. These reserves normally comprise: funds which are set aside for specific purposes; and funds
which are not earmarked for specific purposes but are set aside to deal with unexpected events or
emergencies. They are created by appropriating amounts out of revenue balances. When expenditure to
be funded from a reserve is incurred, it is charged to the appropriate service in that year and thus
included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Movements in reserves are reported
in the Movement of Reserves Statement.

The EIJB has one usable reserve, the General Fund which can be used to mitigate financial consequences
of risks and other events impacting on the Boards resources.

The Board’s reserves policy was approved on 20 August 2019 and is reviewed annually by the
Performance and Delivery Committee. The most recent review took place in May 2023. Reserves will be
reviewed through the annual budget process and the level and utilisation of reserves will be formally
approved by the EIJB.

1.10 Support Services

Support services are not delegated to the EIJB through the Integration scheme, and are instead provided
by NHS Lothian and the City of Edinburgh Council free of charge, as a ‘service in kind’. Support services
provided mainly comprise the provision of financial management, human resources, legal services,
committee services, ICT, payroll and internal audit services.

32

Page 51



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

1.11 Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty

The cost of services provided by NHS Lothian is based on the NHS Lothian Director of Finance’s
assessment of the split of costs between the four Integration Authorities in the NHS Lothian area. This
assessment is underpinned by a financial model which is reviewed at least annually and supported by the
four Chief Finance Officers. As such this is an area of key judgement and estimation uncertainty within
these annual accounts.

2. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Edinburgh Integration Joint Board was established on 27 June 2015 as a joint board between City of
Edinburgh Council and NHS Lothian. The income received from the two parties was as follows:

31/03/2023 31/03/2022

(Restated*)
£000 £000
NHS Lothian -583,493 -677,166
City of Edinburgh Council -281,650 -261,350
Total -865,143 -938,516

* The 2021/22 City of Edinburgh Council figure has been restated to include income for pension costs

Expenditure relating to the two parties was as follows; 31/03/2023 31/03/2022
£000 £000
NHS Lothian 612,617 605,052
City of Edinburgh Council 310,197 276,258
Total 922,814 881,310

Details of creditor and debtor balances with the partner bodies are set out in the subsequent notes (4 and
5).

3. CORPORATE EXPENDITURE

31/03/2023 31/03/2022

£000 £000
Staff costs 386 370
Other fees 3 3
Audit fees 31 30
Total 420 403

Staff costs relate to the Chief Officer, Chief Finance Officer, EIJB Chair and Vice-Chair.
33

Page 52



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

EIJB is in receipt of support services from NHS Lothian and City of Edinburgh Council, both organisations
have agreed to provide support services, without an onward recovery. Support services to a value of

£0.743m (£0.725m 2021/22) have been provided.

4. SHORT TERM DEBTORS

31/03/2023 31/03/2022
£000 £000
NHS Lothian 17,704 70,823
City of Edinburgh Council 6,384 11,378
Total 24,088 82,201
5. SHORT TERM CREDITORS
31/03/2023 31/03/2022
£000 £000
External audit fees -55 -42
Total -55 -42

6. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

No material events have occurred post the balance sheet reporting date.

7. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES and ASSETS

There are no contingent liabilities or assets to disclose.

34

Page 53



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

8. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Expenditure on services commissioned by the EIJB from its partner agencies is analysed over the
following services:

2022/23 2021/22
Actual Actual
Expenditure Expenditure
(restated*)
£000 £000
SERVICES PROVIDED BY NHS LOTHIAN
Core services
Community hospitals 13,444 12,489
District nursing 13,122 12,154
General medical services 98,617 94,619
Prescribing 84,224 80,885
Primary care management 24,694 65,175
Primary care services 13,819 11,859
Other core services 62,563 45,620
Total core services 310,483 322,801
Hosted services
Mental health, substance misuse and learning disabilities 53,794 48,474
Other hosted services 60,243 59,148
Total hosted services 114,037 107,622
Non- Cash Limited
Dental 36,182 33,374
Ophthalmology 9,941 9,932
Pharmacy 21,829 21,636
Total Non-Cash Limited 67,952 64,942
Set aside services
General medicine 31,981 28,818
Geriatric medicine 20,506 17,935
ED and minor injuries 12,122 10,751
Other set aside services 55,348 52,002
Total set aside services 119,957 109,506
TOTAL SERVICES PROVIDED BY NHS LOTHIAN 612,429 604,871
SERVICES PROVIDED BY CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL
External purchasing 215,434 188,684
Care at home 29,809 29,866
Day services 16,599 14,693
Residential care 21,001 20,593
Social work assessment & care management 15,485 15,140
Other services provided by City of Edinburgh Council 12,092 7,517
TOTAL SERVICES PROVIDED BY CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL 310,420 276,493
Corporate expenditure 420 403
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 923,269 881,767

* 2021/22 expenditure restated to provide consistent allocation of costs

35

Page 54



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

9. MOVEMENT IN RESERVES

Earmarked reserves
Covid and winter
Funding for specific initiatives
Other balances
Sub total
General reserves
Surplus for the year
Total

10. FUNDING ANALYSIS

01/04/2022 Movement 31/03/2023
£000 £000 £000
50,332 (48,025) 2,307
13,029 (2,437) 10,592
15,647 (4,513) 11,134
79,008 (54,975) 24,033
3,151 (3,151) 0
82,159 58,126 24,033

The expenditure and funding analysis shows how annual expenditure is used and funded from resources in
comparison with how those resources are consumed or earned in accordance with generally accepted

accounting practice. In essence this demonstrates the difference between expenditure on an accounting basis
and a funding basis. For EIJB no such difference applies and the information required is disclosed elsewhere in

the financial statements

36

Page 55



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EDINBURGH
INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD AND THE ACCOUNTS COMMISSION

Reporting on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion on financial statements

| certify that | have audited the financial statements in the annual accounts of Edinburgh Integration Joint
Board for the year ended 31 March 2023 under Part VIl of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973. The
financial statements comprise the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet,
Movement in Reserves Statement and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting
policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and UK
adopted international accounting standards, as interpreted and adapted by the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 (the 2022/23 Code).

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of Edinburgh Integration Joint Board as at 31 March
2023 and of its income and expenditure for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards, as
interpreted and adapted by the 2022/23 Code; and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Scotland) Act
1973, The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, and the Local Government in
Scotland Act 2003.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)), as required by the Code of Audit Practice approved by the Accounts Commission for Scotland. My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of my report. | was appointed by the Accounts Commission on 3 April 2023. My
period of appointment is five years, covering 2022/23 to 2026/27. | am independent of Edinburgh Integration
Joint Board in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial
statements in the UK including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and | have fulfilled my other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. Non-audit services prohibited by the Ethical
Standard were not provided to Edinburgh Integration Joint Board. | believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern basis of accounting

| have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate.

Based on the work | have performed, | have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on Edinburgh Integration Joint Board’s
ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from
when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

These conclusions are not intended to, nor do they, provide assurance on Edinburgh Integration Joint Board’s
current or future financial sustainability. However, | report on Edinburgh Integration Joint Board’s
arrangements for financial sustainability in a separate Annual Audit Report available from the Audit Scotland
website.

37

Page 56


https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/uploads/docs/report/2021/as_code_audit_practice_21.pdf
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits
http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/our-work/annual-audits

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

Risks of material misstatement

| report in my Annual Audit Report the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement that | identified
and my judgements thereon.

Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer and Edinburgh Integration Joint Board for the financial
statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting
framework, and for such internal control as the Chief Finance Officer determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Finance Officer is responsible for assessing Edinburgh
Integration Joint Board’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless there is an intention to discontinue
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board’s operations.

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. | design procedures
in line with my responsibilities outlined above to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,
including fraud. Procedures include:

e using my understanding of the local government sector to identify that the Local Government
(Scotland) Act 1973, The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, and the Local
Government in Scotland Act 2003 are significant in the context of Edinburgh Integration Joint Board;

e inquiring of the Chief Finance Officer as to other laws or regulations that may be expected to have a
fundamental effect on the operations of Edinburgh Integration Joint Board;

e inquiring of the Chief Finance Officer concerning Edinburgh Integration Joint Board’s policies and
procedures regarding compliance with the applicable legal and regulatory framework;

e discussions among my audit team on the susceptibility of the financial statements to material
misstatement, including how fraud might occur; and

e considering whether the audit team collectively has the appropriate competence and capabilities to
identify or recognise non-compliance with laws and regulations.

The extent to which my procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is affected by the
inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the effectiveness of Edinburgh Integration Joint Board’s controls,
and the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures performed.

Irregularities that result from fraud are inherently more difficult to detect than irregularities that result from
error as fraud may involve collusion, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. The capability of the audit to detect fraud and other irregularities depends on factors such as the
skilfulness of the perpetrator, the frequency and extent of manipulation, the degree of collusion involved, the
relative size of individual amounts manipulated, and the seniority of those individuals involved.

38

Page 57



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the

Financial Reporting Council's website www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of
my auditor’s report.

Reporting on other requirements
Opinion prescribed by the Accounts Commission on the audited parts of the Remuneration Report

| have audited the parts of the Remuneration Report described as audited. In my opinion, the audited parts of
the Remuneration Report have been properly prepared in accordance with The Local Authority Accounts
(Scotland) Regulations 2014.

Other information

The Chief Finance Officer is responsible for the other information in the annual accounts. The other
information comprises the Management Commentary, Annual Governance Statement, Statement of
Responsibilities and the unaudited part of the Remuneration Report.

My responsibility is to read all the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If | identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, | am required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this
regard.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon except on the Management Commentary and Annual Governance Statement to
the extent explicitly stated in the following opinions prescribed by the Accounts Commission.

Opinions prescribed by the Accounts Commission on the Management Commentary and Annual Governance
Statement

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

e theinformation given in the Management Commentary for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been
prepared in accordance with statutory guidance issued under the Local Government in Scotland Act
2003; and

e theinformation given in the Annual Governance Statement for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and that report has been
prepared in accordance with the Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework
(2016).

Matters on which | am required to report by exception
I am required by the Accounts Commission to report to you if, in my opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

e the financial statements and the audited part of the Remuneration Report are not in agreement with
the accounting records; or

e | have not received all the information and explanations | require for my audit.

39

Page 58


https://www.frc.org.uk/Our-Work/Audit-and-Actuarial-Regulation/Audit-and-assurance/Standards-and-guidance/Standards-and-guidance-for-auditors/Auditors-responsibilities-for-audit/Description-of-auditors-responsibilities-for-audit.aspx

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board - Annual Accounts 2022/23

I have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
Conclusions on wider scope responsibilities

In addition to my responsibilities for the annual accounts, my conclusions on the wider scope responsibilities
specified in the Code of Audit Practice, including those in respect of Best Value, are set out in my Annual Audit
Report.

Use of my report

This report is made solely to the parties to whom it is addressed in accordance with Part VIl of the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and for no other purpose. In accordance with paragraph 108 of the Code of
Audit Practice, | do not undertake to have responsibilities to members or officers, in their individual capacities,
or to third parties.

Michael Oliphant FCPFA

Audit Director

Audit Scotland

4th Floor, 102 West Port, Edinburgh, EH3 9DN

40

Page 59



Edinburgh Integration
Joint Board

2022/23 Annual Accounts audit

DRAFT

V/AUDITSCOTLAND

Prepared for Edinburgh Integration Joint Board and the Controller of Audit

13 September 2023

Page 60



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board DRAFT | 2

Contents

Introduction 3

Audit of 2022/23 annual accounts 4

Page 61



Introduction | 3

Introduction

1. This report summarises the significant matters arising from the 2022/23
annual audit of Edinburgh Integration Joint Board’s (EIJB) annual accounts. The
scope of the audit was set out in an annual audit plan presented to the 20
March 2023 meeting of the Audit and Assurance Committee. Our Annual Audit
Report covering all aspects of the 2022/23 audit will be published later this year.

2. This report is addressed to the board of EIJB and the Controller of Audit and
will be published on Audit Scotland's website www.audit-scotland.gov.uk in due
course.

Audit appointment from 2022/23

3. The 2022/23 financial year was the first of our five-year appointment. Our
appointment coincides with the new Code of Audit Practice which was
introduced for financial years commencing on or after 1 April 2022.

4. We would like to thank the Chief Finance Officer and finance staff from the
partner bodies for their cooperation and assistance during our audit.

Responsibilities and reporting

5. EIJB has primary responsibility for ensuring the proper financial stewardship
of public funds. This includes preparing annual accounts that are in accordance
with proper accounting practices. EIJB is also responsible for compliance with
legislation, and putting arrangements in place for governance and propriety that
enable it to successfully deliver its objectives.

6. The responsibilities of the independent auditor are established by the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and the Code of Audit Practice 2021, and
supplementary guidance and International Standards on Auditing in the UK.

7. Weaknesses or risks identified are only those which have come to our
attention during our normal audit work and may not be all that exist.
Communicating these does not absolve management from its responsibility to
address the issues we raise and to maintain adequate systems of control.

8. This report contains an agreed action plan at Appendix 1. It sets out specific
recommendations, the responsible officers, and dates for implementation.

Auditor independence

9. We can confirm that we comply with the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical
Standard. We can also confirm that we have not undertaken any non-audit
related services. We are not aware of any relationships that could compromise
our objectivity and independence.

Page 62


http://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/publications/code-of-audit-practice-2021
https://www.audit-scotland.gov.uk/publications/code-of-audit-practice-2021

Audit of 2022/23 annual accounts | 4

Audit of 2022/23 annual
accounts

Public bodies are required to prepare annual accounts comprising
financial statements and other related reports. These are the principal
means of accounting for the stewardship of public funds.

Main judgements
Our audit opinions on the annual accounts of the joint board are unmodified.

The management commentary, annual governance statement and remuneration
report were consistent with the financial statements and properly prepared in
accordance with the applicable guidance. In future years, EIJB should take action
to improve the management commentary to provide a better overview of service
performance.

Audit opinions on the annual accounts are unmodified

10. The board approved the annual accounts for Edinburgh Integration Joint
Board for the year ended 31 March 2023 on 21 September 2023. As reported in
the independent auditor’s report:

e the financial statements give a true and fair view and were properly
prepared in accordance with the financial reporting framework

o the audited part of the remuneration report was prepared in accordance
with the financial reporting framework

e the management commentary and annual governance statement were
consistent with the financial statements and properly prepared in
accordance with the applicable requirements.

Overall materiality was assessed as £18.5 million

11. Broadly, the concept of materiality is applied by auditors to determine
whether misstatements identified during the audit could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users of the financial statements, and
hence impact their opinion set out in the independent auditor’s report. Auditors
set a monetary threshold when considering materiality, although some issues
may be considered material by their nature. It is ultimately a matter of the
auditor’s professional judgement.

Page 63



Audit of 2022/23 annual accounts | 5

12. Our initial assessment of materiality was carried out during the risk
assessment and planning phase of the audit. This was reviewed and revised on
receipt of the unaudited annual accounts and is summarised in Exhibit 1.

Exhibit 1
Materiality values

Materiality level Amount

Overall materiality £18.5 million
Performance materiality £13 million
Reporting threshold £250,000

13. The overall materiality threshold for the audit of the annual accounts of EIJB
was set with reference to gross expenditure, which we judged as the figure
most relevant to the users of the financial statements.

14. Performance materiality is used by auditors when undertaking work on
individual areas of the financial statements. It is a lower materiality threshold,
set to reduce the probability of aggregated misstatements exceeding overall
materiality. Performance materiality was set at 70% of overall materiality. In
assessing performance materiality, we have considered factors such as audit
findings from previous audits, any changes in business processes and the
entity’s control environment including fraud risks.

15. It is our responsibility to request that all misstatements, other than those
below our reporting threshold, are corrected, although the final decision on
making the correction lies with those charged with governance.

Significant findings and key audit matters

16. Under International Standard on Auditing (UK) 260 we communicate
significant findings from the audit to the board, including our view about the
qualitative aspects of the body’s accounting practices.

17. The Code of Audit Practice also requires all audits to communicate key
audit matters within the annual audit report under International Standard on
Auditing (UK) 701. These are matters that we judged to be of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements.

18. The significant findings are summarised in Exhibit 2.

Page 64



Audit of 2022/23 annual accounts | 6

Exhibit 2

Significant findings and key audit matters from the audit of the annual accounts

Issue Resolution

1. Values of funding provided by 1JB
partners

The amount disclosed in the accounts for
expenditure on health services provided by
NHS Lothian (£612.429 million) is £24.201
million less than the income from EIJB as
reported by NHS Lothian in their annual
accounts (636.630 million). There is a similar
corresponding increase in the amount
attributable to the City of Edinburgh Council’s
funding share as compared to the authority’s
unaudited accounts, with the net effect on the
ElJB being immaterial. We understand this is
due to the historic treatment of allocating
responsibility for specific commissioned
services.

The draft accounts should include further
disclosure to provide clarity and reasons for
these differences.

It is important that the financial statements in
EIJB and its partners provide clarity and
consistency, particularly when values of
funding allocations are concerned. While we
are content the EIJB accounts are not
materially misstated, the joint board should
work with its partners to ensure income and
expenditure amounts are classified correctly
and reported accurately and consistently.

Recommendation 1
(Refer Appendix 1, action plan)

Source: Audit Scotland

There is scope to improve the management commentary

19. The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014 require the
annual accounts to include a management commentary prepared in accordance
with statutory guidance. Management commentaries should provide information
on the joint board's main objectives and the principal risks faced. It should
provide a fair, balanced and understandable analysis of an organisation’s
performance — both financial and non-financial - as well as helping stakeholders

understand the financial statements.

20. We identified scope for improvement in the narrative section of the annual
accounts. While the guidance allows flexibility in terms of the level of
performance information included, the draft version did not provide sufficient
detail to allow a reader to assess the joint board's overall performance.

21. While the guidance allows flexibility in terms of the level of performance
information included, there is an expectation that the commentary gives an
overview of service performance in the year and the inclusion of relevant
indicators should enhance the service ‘story’. The commentary should include
both positive and negative aspects, but the version of the accounts presented
for audit did not include, for example, findings from recent care commission

Page 65



Audit of 2022/23 annual accounts | 7

reports, or provide clarity on timescales for key commitments such as the
medium-term financial strategy.

22. Following discussions with the chief financial officer, the revised set of
annual accounts contained enhanced disclosures.

Recommendation 2

The management commentary should provide a clear and balanced narrative on
the performance of the joint board during the year and be supported by financial
and non-financial performance information.

Our audit work responded to the risks of material misstatement
we identified in the annual accounts

23. We have obtained audit assurances over the identified significant risks of
material misstatement in the annual accounts. Exhibit 3 sets out the significant
risks of material misstatement to the financial statements we identified in our
2022/23 Annual Audit Plan. It also summarises the further audit procedures we
performed during the year to obtain assurances over these risks and the
conclusions from the work completed.

Exhibit 3

Significant risks of material misstatement in the annual accounts
Audit risk Assurance procedure Results and conclusions

Risk of material Owing to the nature of this We received assurances from
misstatement due to fraud  risk, assurances from constituent body auditors in
caused by management management are not relation to the financial
override of controls applicable in this instance information provided, controls

As stated in International
Standard on Auditing (UK)
240, managementisin a
unique position to perpetrate
fraud because of
management’s ability to
override controls that
otherwise appear to be
operating effectively.

in place and results of testing
at constituent bodies.

The results of our audit work,
and from discussions with
key staff and board members,
did not identify any instances
of management override of
controls.

Conclusion: We did not
highlight any instances of
fraud, or management
override of controls.

Charges for services
provided by NHS Lothian

A mapping table is used by
NHS Lothian to allocate the

The allocation of costs
between the four
integration boards is
underpinned by a financial

Internal audit completed a
report on set aside budgets
during 2022/23. They
reported there is no annual

Page 66



Audit of 2022/23 annual accounts | 8

Audit risk Assurance procedure Results and conclusions
set-aside budgets across the model maintained by NHS  exercise performed to ensure
four 1JBs within Lothian. We Lothian. that the 'mapping table’
consider the cost allocation e The model is reviewed remains up-to-date and
model to be a significant annually and supported by ~ reflective of actual patient
accounting estimate and the four chief finance activity. The report

identified a significant risk of officers. recommended that EIJB
misstatement in the financial should request that NHS
statements in our Annual Lothian performs an annual
Audit Plan. exercise to review the

allocation of set-aside costs
and budgets across the four
Lothian 1JBs, in compliance
with the requirements of the
integration scheme. This will
require the input and support
of the other chief financial
officers in Lothian 1JBs.

Conclusion: As costs have
been agreed between the
partners, we are content that
this issue does not present a
risk of material misstatement
in the 2022/23 annual
accounts.

We support the annual review
of the cost allocation model
and will monitor progress in
this area in 2023/24.

Source: Audit Scotland

Other areas of audit focus

24. In addition, we identified an “area of audit focus” in our 2022/23 Annual
Audit Plan where we considered there to be risks of material misstatement to
the financial statements. The area of specific audit focus was in relation to
reserves. At the start of 2022/23, EIJB held an earmarked reserve balance for
Covid-19 funding carried forward from 2021/22, totalling £44.937 million. The
Scottish Government instructed |JBs that unused Covid-19 reserve balances
should be returned to them. We reviewed the accounting entries and
disclosures in the annual accounts and considered that they are appropriate
and in line with government guidance.

25. We did not identify any material misstatements. Our audit identified several

presentational and disclosure issues which were discussed with management.
These were adjusted and reflected in the audited annual report and accounts.

Page 67



Audit of 2022/23 annual accounts | 9

26. The unaudited annual accounts were received in line with our agreed audit
timetable on 29 June 2023.

Page 68



Appendix 1. Action plan 2022/23 | 10

Appendix 1. Action plan
2022/23

2022/23 recommendations

Issue/risk Recommendation Agreed management

action/timing

1. Values of funding It is important that the Agreed. This will be built into

provided by IJB partners financial statements in the the plan for producing the
integration joint board and its  2023/24 accounts.

The funding amounts : )
disclosed in the [JB's NHS ~ Partners provide clarity and et rinance Officer, June
and local authority partners consistency. T_he _jomt board 2024
are not consistent due to should wo_rk with its partners
differences in how services to ensure income and
have been classified. expen_dlture amounts are

classified correctly, and

reported accurately and

consistently.

2. Management The management Agreed. During the audit
commentary commentary should provide a process the management
While guidance allows clear and balanced narrative commentary was updated to
flexibility in terms of the level on the perform_ance of the refle_,-ct |nformat|o_n not
of performance information joint board during the year avallat_ale at the time the
included in the management and be su_pport_ed by financial unaudited accounts were
commentary, the initial and non-flnan0|al _ produced. These timing

’ performance information. challenges will be considered

version of the annual .
accounts submitted for audit as part of the planning for the
did not provide sufficient 2023/24 accounts.

detail to allow a reader to fully Chief Finance Officer, June
assess the joint board's 2024

overall performance.

Page 69



Edinburgh Infegration Joint Board o

Michael Oliphant, Audit Director 21t September 2023

Audit Scotland
4th Floor

102 West Port
Edinburgh

Dear Michael

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board Annual Accounts 2022/23

1.

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the annual
accounts of Edinburgh Integration Joint Board for the year ended 31 March
2023 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial
statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the financial reporting
framework, and for expressing other opinions on the remuneration report,
management commentary and annual governance statement.

| confirm to the best of my knowledge and belief and having made appropriate
enquiries of the Integration Joint Board, the following representations given to

you in connection with your audit of Edinburgh Integration Joint Board’s annual
accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023.

General

3.

The Integration Joint Board and | have fulfilled our statutory responsibilities for
the preparation of the 2022/23 annual accounts. All the accounting records,
documentation and other matters which | am aware are relevant to the
preparation of the annual accounts have been made available to you for the
purposes of your audit. All transactions undertaken by Edinburgh Integration
Joint Board have been recorded in the accounting records and are properly
reflected in the financial statements.

| confirm that the effects of uncorrected misstatements are immaterial,

individually and in aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. | am not
aware of any uncorrected misstatements other than those reported by you.

NHS .cDINBVRGH- | Working together for a caring,
m’land THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL health'er, Safer Edlnburgh

Page 70



Financial Reporting Framework

5. The annual accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022/23 (2022/23
accounting code), mandatory guidance from LASAAC, and the requirements of
the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973, the Local Government in Scotland
Act 2003 and The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014.

6. In accordance with the 2014 regulations, | have ensured that the financial
statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Edinburgh
Integration Joint Board at 31 March 2023 and the transactions for 2022/23.

Accounting Policies & Estimates

7.  All significant accounting policies applied are as shown in the notes to the
financial statements. The accounting policies are determined by the 2022/23
accounting code, where applicable. All accounting policies applied are
appropriate to Edinburgh Integration Joint Board circumstances and have been
consistently applied.

8. The significant assumptions used in making accounting estimates are
reasonable and properly reflected in the financial statements. Judgements used
in making estimates have been based on the latest available, reliable
information. Estimates have been revised where there are changes in the
circumstances on which the original estimate was based or as a result of new
information or experience.

Going Concern Basis of Accounting

9. | have assessed Edinburgh Integration Joint Board'’s ability to continue to use
the going concern basis of accounting and have concluded that it is
appropriate. | am not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt on Edinburgh Integration Joint Board’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

Liabilities

10. All liabilities and contingent liabilities at 31 March 2023 of which | am aware
have been recognised in the annual accounts.

11. There are no plans or intentions that are likely to affect the carrying value or
classification of the liabilities recognised in the financial statements.

Fraud

12. | have provided you with all information in relation to

e my assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially
misstated as a result of fraud

e any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the financial statements
e fraud or suspected fraud that | am aware of involving management,

employees who have a significant role in internal control, or others that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Page 71



Laws and Regulations

13. | have disclosed to you all known instances of non-compliance or suspected
non-compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered
when preparing financial statements.

Related Party Transactions

14. All material transactions with related parties have been appropriately accounted
for and disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with the 2022/23
accounting code. | have made available to you the identity of all Edinburgh
Integration Joint Board’s related parties and all the related party relationships
and transactions of which | am aware.

Remuneration Report

15. The Remuneration Report has been prepared in accordance with the Local
Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2014, and all required information of
which | am aware has been provided to you.

Management commentary

16. | confirm that the Management Commentary has been prepared in accordance
with the statutory guidance and the information is consistent with the financial
statements.

Corporate Governance

17. | confirm that the Integration Joint Board has undertaken a review of the system
of internal control during 2022/23 to establish the extent to which it complies
with proper practices set out in the Delivering Good Governance in Local
Government: Framework 2016. | have disclosed to you all deficiencies in
internal control identified from this review or of which | am otherwise aware.

18. | confirm that the Annual Governance Statement has been prepared in
accordance with the Delivering Good Governance in Local Government:
Framework 2016 and the information is consistent with the financial statements.
There have been no changes in the corporate governance arrangements or
issues identified, since 31 March 2023, which require to be reflected.

Balance Sheet

19. All events subsequent to 31 March 2023 for which the 2022/23 accounting code
requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

Yours sincerely

Moira Pringle
Chief Finance Officer

Page 72



Internal Audit
£2022/23 Annual Report and Opinion

o
L 1
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board :: ®
]

\l
WAugust 2023
There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management and control in place. While
Overall Reasonable some issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were identified which may put at risk the
Opinion Assurance achievement of objectives, individually these do not significantly impair the Edinburgh Integration
Joint Boards system of internal control.




Contents

PR 111 0o [ o 1o o 3
B =Y U 1)Y= 0 T o 4T =T Y/ 4
B T 0 T [ Q= o) o foT=Ted a =T Lo I =1 o] E=] o] 111 1= 5
S 10 410 0 F= Yo Yo T4 Qo] 4] =1 =Y o 6
5. Audit OUICOMES AN KEY MESSAUES .. uuuttttttttissneeesssrassee e s s s e s s s s s s e e e s s s s s s e e e e s s st s e e e e e s s s s s s e e e e e s s s a e e e e e e s s s s n e e e s s s nannns 7

TO7. Progress with implementation of ManagemeEnt @CHONS ... s e 9

%8. Consideration of other information and emerging areas Of FISK ... e s e s e s e e s 11

B S R 1 1 (= 1 = I 11 U 3T o] o 12
10.  Conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit StANards ........uiieeiiii i e s e 13
Appendix 1 — 2022/23 City of Edinburgh Council audits impacting the EIJB ......coiiiiiiiiiiiii e s s nnnnsnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnns 14
Appendix 2 — 2022/23 NHS Lothian audits impacting the EIJB ........oviiiiiiiiiiiiiii i snnnnnsnnnnnssnnssnnsnnsnnssnnnsnnnnsnsnnnnnnnnnnns 15
Appendix 3 — Overall Assurance and Priority DefinitiONS ......uviiiiiiiiiiiiii e asssaansannnnssssnnnssnnnssnsnnnssssssssssssssssssssssssnsnnnsnnnnnnns 16
2

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion



1. Introduction

The Scottish Government Integrated Resources Advisory Group (IRAG)
issued ‘Guidance for Integrated Financial Assurance’ in support of the
Public Bodies (Joint Working) (Scotland) Act 2014.

The guidance requires Integration Joint Boards (IJBs) to establish
adequate and proportionate internal audit arrangements for the review of
risk management, governance and control of the delegated resources.
The guidance further states that the IJB has a responsibility for
reviewing the effectiveness of the governance arrangements including
the system of internal control.

The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) requires the Chief
Audit Executive to deliver an annual report which provides a summary of

internal audit activity for the year, and an annual opinion which
gpncludes on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Edinburgh
@tegration Joint Board’s (EIJB) governance, risk management and
®ontrol framework.

\l
The annual report includes consideration of:

e asummary of the information that supports the opinion
e disclosure of any impairments to scope and / or independence

e a statement of conformance with the PSIAS including the results of
the quality assurance and improvement programme and progress
against any improvement plans, and

e consideration of any other relevant issues.

Integration Joint Boards are also required to approve an Annual
Governance Statement. The Internal Audit Annual Opinion supports the
EIJB’s Annual Governance Statement which is included within the
Annual Accounts.

Basis for the opinion

The opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the EIJB’s systems of
control is achieved through delivery of a risk-based audit and assurance
programme aligned to the EIJB’s key risks which is approved by the Audit
and Assurance Committee.

Audit assurance to the EIJB is not provided in isolation; the internal audit
teams of both the City of Edinburgh Council (the Council) and NHS
Lothian (NHSL) deliver assurance to their respective organisations which
should also be considered by the EIJB where relevant.

Consequently, the annual opinion reflects audit activity performed across
the EIJB, the Edinburgh Health and Social Care Partnership (the
Partnership) and its partners, the Council and NHSL during the period 1
April 2022 to 31 March 2023.

The opinion also considers reports issued by the External Auditor, the
results of other assurance activities performed during the year and the
effects of any significant issues or changes impacting the EIJB’s control
environment.

It also reflects progress with implementation of management actions from
previously completed audits which contributes to strengthening the overall
governance, risk, and control environment.

In March 2023, as part of the review of the Internal Audit Charter, the
Committee approved adoption of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) standard definitions for audit opinions. Details
of the overall definitions are provided within Appendix 3.

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion


https://www.gov.scot/publications/integration-financial-assurance-guidance/pages/2/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asp/2014/9/contents/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asp/2014/9/contents/enacted
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/standards/public-sector-internal-audit-standards
https://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/reports/setting-common-definitions

2. Executive Summary

Overall opinion and summary of key findings

The 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Opinion confirms that ‘reasonable
assurance’ can be placed on the adequacy of the Edinburgh Integration
Joint Board’s (EIJB) systems of governance, risk management and
internal controls.

The opinion reflects assurance activity performed across the EIJB, the
Edinburgh Health and Social Care Partnership and its partners, the City
of Edinburgh Council (the Council) and NHS Lothian (NHSL) in the year
to 31 March 2023, which concluded there is a generally sound system of
governance, risk, and control in place.

Internal Audit work identified a number of issues, areas of non-
compliance and/or scope for improvement throughout the year, which
ydividually do not significantly impair the EIJB’s system of internal
‘%ontrol but may put at risk the achievement of EIJB objectives if
Gprrective actions are not adequately addressed.

92} . .
Internal audit activity

The EIJB Internal Audit plan typically includes three/four audits, however
reflecting the continued pressures placed on delivery of health and
social care services as they recover from the impacts of the Covid-19
pandemic, the approved EIJB 2022/23 Internal Audit plan included a
total of two engagements.

Follow-up of audit actions

In addition, the plan included follow-up of managements progress with
implementing actions raised in previous internal audits. The opinion also
reflects the progress in addressing management actions raised.
Significant improvement was made during the year with EIJB audit
actions closed on time and no overdue actions outstanding as at 31
March 2023. Performance in addressing audit actions across the
Partnership has also improved, with one action overdue at year end.

4

Reasonable
Assurance

Overall
Opinion

Council / NHSL annual opinions

The EIJB opinion also considers the 2022/23 annual audit opinions of the
Council and NHSL which remain aligned at ‘reasonable assurance’ and
‘moderate assurance’ respectively. Links to these opinions are provided in
the covering report.

Other assurance providers and other areas of consideration

The opinion also considers the results of other assurance activities
performed during the year. During the year two inspections were
undertaken by the Care Inspectorate across areas of health and social
care services provided in Edinburgh, with a range of areas for
improvement highlighted.

The opinion also considers the effects of any significant changes or
issues during the year. The EIJB continues to face challenges in the
sustainability and ability to meet demand for health and social care
services with significant financial implications. The challenges are
acknowledged, and a medium term financial strategy which is expected to
deliver improved care and financial benefits over a number of years is
being developed.

The internal audit assurance outcomes, minimal findings raised, and
performance in addressing audits would indicate that substantial
assurance could be provided to the EIJB, however as the opinion reflects
the outcomes of other assurance work, an opinion of reasonable
assurance which recognises scope for improvement in the governance,
risk and control environment is provided.

The 2022/23 overall opinion remains aligned to the 2021/22 opinion of
‘some improvement required’.

It should be noted that the opinion does not imply that Internal Audit has
reviewed all risks and assurances relating to the EIJB.

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion



3. Audit approach and responsibilities

Internal Audit Objectives and responsibilities

The objective of Internal Audit is to provide independent and objective
assurance and a systematic and disciplined approach to evaluating
and improving the effectiveness of the EIJB’s governance, risk
management and control environment.

This is achieved through development of a risk-based internal audit
plan which is based on the EIJB’s audit universe, strategic objectives
and an assessment of risks and emerging issues affecting the EIJB
and its partners (where relevant), with input from management,
committee members, and other key stakeholders such as the Care
Inspectorate and External Audit.

Internal Audit performs audit engagements throughout the year in line

with the agreed plan and emerging areas of risk. Internal Audit
g-?reports on the findings and observations for each review and where
% areas of improvement are identified, findings and recommendations
~Jare raised, and management agree actions and timescales by which
\‘they will address the gaps identified.

It is the responsibility of the EIJB’s Chief Audit Executive to provide an
independent and objective annual opinion on the adequacy and
effectiveness of the EIJB’s governance and risk management and
control frameworks. The opinion is provided to the Audit and
Assurance Committee and should inform the Annual Governance
Statement.

Management responsibilities

The presence of an effective internal audit team contributes towards,
but is not a substitute for, effective control. It is the responsibility of
management to establish adequate internal controls so that the
activities are conducted in an efficient and effective manner, in
adherence with legislation, policies and procedures, and that assets
and records are safeguarded.

It is also management’s responsibility to address and rectify the
weaknesses identified by Internal Audit via timely implementation of
agreed management actions.

Audit and Assurance Committee

In line with the terms of reference the Committee monitors the internal
audit plan and reviews all audit and inspection work towards the plan,
scrutinises internal audit and external audit reports and monitors
governance, risk management and internal control.

Other Assurance Providers

Internal Audit is not the only source of assurance provided to the EIJB.
There are several additional assurance sources including: external
audit, regulators, and inspectorates, that the Committee should
equally consider when forming their view on the adequacy of the
ElJB’s systems of governance, risk management and control.

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion



4. Summary of work completed

2022/23 EIJB Internal Audit Plan

The 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan was approved by the EIJB Audit and
Assurance Committee in September 2022.

Planned and actual audit coverage

Reflecting the continued pressures placed on delivery of health and
social care services as they recover from the impacts of the Covid-19
pandemic, the EIJB 2022/23 internal audit plan included a total of 2
engagements as follows:

e Governance of Directions - review of governance
arrangements for directions to ensure they are associated with
EIJB decisions; are revised in response to transformation,
service redesign, and financial developments; and partner
implementation and performance is monitored.

g/ obed

e Set aside budget setting and monitoring — review of
established processes including identification of services and
their associated costs; underlying budget assumptions; and
financial reporting to the 1JB on ongoing set aside budget
management.

A total of 50 days were planned for delivery of the audit work during
2022/23 with 49 days delivered. One audit was delivered by internal
auditors from the Council’s internal audit team, and one by the NHSL
audit team. The Chief Audit Executive for the EIJB retained oversight
and supervision of all work completed including work performed by
NHSL auditors.

Alignment to risk management

The annual plan was based on the EIJB risk register as at February
2022, and the plan was designed to provide assurance across the
following very high and high rated risks at that time:

e Failure of NHSL and the Council to deliver directions leading to
services not aligned to strategic intentions — Very High

e Failure of NHSL and the Council in delivering directions leading
to confusion and inefficiency — High

e Failure to deliver delegated services within available budgets
leading to a requirement to revise the Strategic Plan - High

Audit management and committee reporting

A further 10 days were used for audit administration including time for
the Chief Audit Executive to perform the annual risk assessment and
development of the annual plan, preparation of committee reports, the
annual report and opinion and attendance at Committees. Training for
new Committee members was also delivered during 2022/23.

Follow-up of recommendations

In addition, the plan included follow-up of management’s progress with
implementing management actions raised in previously completed
internal audits.

Circa 100 hours (15 days) were used by Internal Audit to review and
validate information and evidence provided by management to support
closure of management actions previously raised in internal audits.

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion



6/ obed

Outcomes for the two EIJB audits completed during 2022/23 are set
out below with the total number of audit recommendations by priority
rating. Performance for the previous two years is also provided for
comparison.

Overall Rating

Governance of

Directions

Set-Aside Reasonable i 5 i 5
Budgets Assurance

Total 2022/23 — 2 reports

1 substantial assurance, 1
reasonable assurance

3 1
(75%)  (25%)

Total 2021/22 — 3 reports

1 substantial assurance, 2
reasonable assurance

- 6 1 7
(85%) | (15%)

Total 2020/21 — 3 reports
1 substantial assurance, 2

- 4 1 5
(80%) | (20%)

reasonable assurance

No audit outcomes with limited assurance or high priority findings were
reported during 2022/23, a continued trend over the past 3 years. This
demonstrates there is sound system of governance, risk management

and control in place for the areas audited.

5. Audit outcomes and key messages

Areas where improvements are required

The following areas of improvement were identified during audit
engagements, which, if not adequately addressed may have a medium
or low impact on achievement of related EIJB objectives.

Governance of Directions

e Directions Policy and Performance Measurement (medium)
The requirement for detailed and SMART performance measures
and monitoring arrangements for each direction should be clearly
set out within the policy.

¢ |ssuing and confirmation of receipt of Directions (low)
Directions should be issued timeously (within 4 weeks) with formal
acknowledgement is sought from Partners to confirm that issued
Directions have been received, understood, and actioned.

Set-aside budgets

¢ Annual Review of Set-Aside Allocation Across 1JBs (medium)
The EIJB should request that NHSL perform an annual exercise to
review the allocation of set-aside costs and budgets across the
Lothian IJBs, in line with requirements of the Integration Scheme,
and should seek assurance that cost and budget allocations for set
aside services are being reviewed to ensure that they are
reasonable and reflective of patient activity.

e Set-Aside Financial Recovery Reporting (medium)
The EIJB should review NHSL overspend recovery actions to
determine if these are appropriate with any action required formally
requested, and progress on recovery of overspends should be
reported to the board or relevant governance forum.

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion



6. Audit work completed by partner organisations

In addition to the EIJB audit engagements, audits were completed by the Internal Audit functions of the EIJB partner organisations, NHSL and the
Council, with audit work in the Council including coverage of the Edinburgh Health and Social Care Partnership. Outcomes of assurance work
where control gaps identified have a direct impact core |JB activities, or an indirect impact on ancillary IJB activities form part of the overall

governance, risk, and control environment for the EIJB and inform the basis of the EIJB annual opinion.

The tables below provide a summary of the EIJB and Partner audit outcomes, with a details of previous year performance for comparison. The
number of audits completed across all three organisations remains aligned to previous years. The number of audits with overall limited assurance
has reduced, with reasonable assurance remaining stable and slight increase in the number of audits providing substantial assurance. There has
been an increase in the number of findings raised during 2022/23, however the proportion of high and medium rated findings has reduced, and the
proportion of low rated findings is increasing.

Full details of audits completed for each partner, outcomes and links to reports are provided in Appendices 1 and 2.

08 abed

Audit Outcomes

No of Findings Raised

Ao o Critical* M Total
EIJB i i 1 1 2 i i 3 1 i 4
City of
Edinburgh - 3 4 5 12 - 7 13 14 - 34
Council
NHS Lothian i 1 7 2 10 i 5 19 16 2 42
Total 2022/23 (1;%) (5:5/0) (3:%) 24 (1;2:/0) (4?;?4) (3?;?%) (2§A;) 80
Total 2021/22 - @ . %) (5:)%/0) (2;%) 24 } (1171/0) (5%/0) (2171/0) } 63
Total 2020/21 (1 85%) (41324,) (33%) 21 (3§/o) (2234,) (5124,) (1;14,) } 7

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion



o
jabl
Q
D

7. Progress with implementation of management actions

A total of 7 management actions were raised across the two EIJB audit
reports completed during the year.

Timely and effective implementation of audit actions by management is
important to prevent the EIJB being exposed for longer than necessary
to the potential risks associated with the control gaps or deficiencies
identified in audits.

Performance in progress with implementing management actions are
reported quarterly to the Audit and Assurance Committee for scrutiny.
Overdue audit actions for the Partnership are also referred to the EIJB
Audit and Assurance Committee for review and scrutiny, where
relevant.

A total of 23 audit actions raised across 9 previous EIJB audits were
closed during 2022/23, and all actions for the following 8 audits are now
closed. As a result, impacts resulting from exposure to the risks

'og originally raised these audits are reduced:

Purchase Budget Management (2017)

Social Care Commissioning 2017)

Strategic Planning (2018)

Capital and Workforce Planning (2020)

Management Information (2020)

Covid-19 Strategic Lessons Learned (2021)

Delivery of Legislative and Statutory Requirements (2021)
¢ Risk Management and Induction (2021)

In addition, 2 of the 4 management actions raised in the Governance of
Directions audit completed in 2022 have been closed on time.

Actions closed due to management’s acceptance of risk

A total of 4 actions were closed across 2 audits during the year due to
management’s acceptance of the risks. All risk acceptances are
reported to the Audit and Assurance Committee for scrutiny. Details of
the audits where actions were risk accepted are provided below:

Audit Action Date closed
Purchase Budget | ISF payments June 2022
Management ISF returns June 2022

Funding allocation model August 2022
Covid-19 Strategic | Long term financial impacts of | August 2022
Lessons Learned | Covid-19

Overdue Management Actions

As at 31 March 2023, there were no EIJB overdue management actions
which were passed their original implementation date. This is a
reduction of 6 when compared to the closing position for the previous
year (2021/22).

Additionally, performance in addressing overdue actions for the
Partnership has improved with only one overdue audit action
outstanding as at 31 March 2023.

The improved performance is attributable to an increased focus and
resource within the EIJB and Partnership to support coordination and
implementation of assurance actions including audit actions.

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion



28 abed

Annual validation review of previously implemented actions

An annual validation review which assesses ongoing adequacy and
effectiveness of a sample of previously implemented actions was
performed during 2022/23 across the Council, and included actions for
the Partnership.

The audit reviewed a total of 45 actions which had been implemented
by management between 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2021. Of
the 45 actions reviewed, 43 (96%) were functioning as originally
validated or had received reasonable changes to be in line with new
circumstances.

Controls weaknesses and resulting improvement were identified in the
findings for the remaining two previously completed audit actions which
directly impact the EIJB:

e Quality, governance, and regulation (actions closed December

2019) — the validation audit highlighted that a review of the approach

to quality, assurance and compliance is required to ensure it
provides a quality assurance framework which is aligned to the
needs of both children’s and adult social work services.

e Edinburgh Alcohol and Drugs Partnership Contract
Management (actions closed June 2019) — the validation audit
highlighted that verification checks to confirm the management
information provided by suppliers to evidence meeting their
contractual obligations, which is submitted quarterly to the
Edinburgh Alcohol and Drugs Partnership (EADP) are needed to
ensure these are complete and accurate.

10

Rebased audit actions — Health and Social Care Partnership

In March 2023, the rebasing of 2 overdue historical actions across 2
Council audits which had longstanding revised future dates was
reported to the GRBV Committee to enable a focus on review and
scrutiny of new overdue actions or actions where sufficient progress is
not being made.

Details of the audits with rebased actions are provided below:

Corporate Resilience (September 2018)

22 of 28 action complete. 1 high actions outstanding relating to
review and testing of resilience protocols across directorates
including the Health and Social Care Partnership. Staged completion
is planned with the final action expected to be complete by
31/03/2025.

Health and Social Care Partnership - Lone Working (July 2020)

17 of 18 actions complete. 1 medium action outstanding to update
Lone Working operational procedures and monitoring controls
following approval of a business case to support technology
investments needed. Date revised to 31/03/2024 to recognise the
continued challenges and pressures faced across the HSCP.

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion


https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/33223/cw2209-annual-validation-review
https://democracy.edinburgh.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=6830&Ver=4
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/32947/cw1702-resilience-internal-audit-report
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/32965/hsc1902-health-and-social-care-lone-working

T

cg abe

8. Consideration of other information and emerging areas of risk

The Care Inspectorate

In 2022, the Care Inspectorate undertook a joint inspection of adult
support and protection with a report setting out their findings published
in February 2023. The inspection highlighted weaknesses in the
following areas in the Health and Social care partnership: requests for
capacity assessments, case related chronologies, quality of case
conferences, quality assurance activity, social work workforce capacity
and consistency of support and protection for all people when required.

During 2022/23, the Care Inspectorate undertook a further inspection of
adult social work and social work services delegated by the Council to
the Health and Social Care Partnership. The outcomes were reported in
March 2023 and highlighted improvements were needed across the
following areas:

design, implementation, and oversight of key processes

approaches to early intervention and prevention

implementation of Self-directed Support
support for unpaid carers

strategic leadership and management oversight of key
processes

embedding approaches to self-evaluation for improvement and
quality assurance.

Improvement plans in response to the Care Inspectorate
recommendations have been developed and progress will be reported
to relevant the EIJB and partner Committees. Internal Audit will monitor
progress of the actions via Committee reporting and where necessary
may undertake additional work to verify completion of actions.

11

It is noted that many of the areas of improvement highlighted by the
Care Inspectorate are aligned to some of the findings and observations
highlighted by Internal Audit across Council and Partnership audits
such as policy and procedure management, data management, quality
assurance, capacity planning and management oversight.

Financial challenges and governance

The EIJB continued to face significant financial challenges during
2022/23 with a continued reliance on one-off measures to achieve
financial balance. The EIJB recognises the need to develop a
sustainable plan which moves away from delivery of single year savings
to a medium term financial strategy which aims to deliver improved care
and financial benefits and is linked to strategic change, service

redesign and operational efficiencies. The strategy will also link to the
Care Inspectorate improvement plans and focus on improved
performance and better outcomes as well as financial benefits.

During 2022/23, governance concerns relating to the EIJB bed based
review and handling of, and reporting on Drumbrae Care Home were
raised by the Council. A number of reports including a full timeline of
decisions were subsequently provided to Full Council and the GRBV
Committee. The EIJB is currently undertaking a strategic
commissioning exercise on older people’s bed services.

Internal Audit priorities for 2023/24 will focus on providing assurance
across these areas with EIJB audits considering: hosted services,
workforce optimisation, and the innovation and sustainability
programme (with specific focus on the bed based review and
community mobilisation projects).

In addition, a focused audit of financial sustainability for the Health and
Social Care Partnership will be performed during 2023/24.

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion


https://www.careinspectorate.com/images/documents/6974/Edinburgh%20adult%20support%20and%20protection%20report.pdf
https://www.careinspectorate.com/images/documents/6997/City%20of%20Edinburgh%20inspection%20report%20March%202023.pdf

9. Internal Audit Function

o
jabl
Q
D

(0]
AN

Internal Audit Structure

Internal Audits for the EIJB are delivered by the Internal Audit functions

of the EIJB’s partners (the Council and NHSL). Typically, the Council
completes two audits, while NHSL completes one. The Chief Audit

Executive role for the EIJB is fulfilled by the Council’s Head of Internal
Audit (with a secondment agreement in place). All audit work completed

for the EIJB is reviewed by the Chief Audit Executive whether
performed by the Council or NHSL.

The Chief Audit Executive also completes the risk assessment process
to support the annual plan, attends the Audit and Assurance Committee

regularly and prepares the annual report and opinion.
Learning and development

In line with audit Standard 1240, all practicing internal auditors are
required to maintain their skills, knowledge, and other competencies
through continuing professional development. In August 2022, the

general approach to learning and development across the Council audit

team was reviewed, and targeted learning provided across several

areas including technology auditing, fraud awareness and investigation

techniques, supply chain, resilience, and quality improvement.

12

Revised audit processes

In August 2022, the Council’s Internal Audit implemented several
changes to internal audit processes with an aim of streamlining these
and enabling efficiencies to support timely audit delivery. This included:

streamlined audit methodology

e revised approach to scoping audits and developing terms of
reference to ensure a focus on key risks and controls

new audit reporting format including one page executive summary

¢ streamlined management and Committee reporting

e development and roll out of colleague wide controls training

e dedicated Orb pages providing key information on the audit process

e publishing Council audit reports on the Council website

e revision to the audit journey map and key performance indicators to
support timely delivery while recognising capacity challenges across
services.

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion


https://orb.edinburgh.gov.uk/legal-risk-internal-audit/internal-audit-role-council/2
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/internalauditreports

10. Conformance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

Independence and limitations of scope

In line with PSIAS, Internal Audit must be independent, and all internal
auditors must be objective in performing their work. To ensure
conformance with these requirements, Internal Audit has established
processes to ensure that both team and individual independence is
consistently maintained and that any potential conflicts of interest are
effectively managed.

We do not consider that we have faced any impairments to our
independence during 2022/23, nor do we consider that we have faced
any scope or resource limitations when completing our work.

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme

U Ongoing reviews to ensure quality on an audit by audit basis are in
g place. This includes Chief Audit Executive review and sign-off of

® planning and reporting for all audit work, and ongoing supervision and
% review of fieldwork throughout by a manager.

Periodic assessments are conducted through self-assessments and
Internal Quality Assessments (IQA) on an annual basis. An IQA which
reviewed the quality of completed audits, and a self-assessment of
PSIAS compliance was performed during 2022/23, led by a Principal
Audit Manager and supported by a Senior Auditor.

The assessment team concluded that IA complied with PSIAS

requirements during the period 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023. Several

minor improvements were identified, mainly linked to efficiency and

workflow. These will be mitigated through implementation and ongoing

development of the new audit system implemented in May 2023.

13

External Quality Assessments

An External Quality Assessment (EQA) should be completed every five
years. In 2021/22, an EQA was performed by the Chartered Institute of
Internal Auditors (ll1A) and the results reported to Committee in
December 2022.

The EQA concluded that overall, the Council’s Internal Audit function
generally conforms with the PSIAS. Two recommendations were made
by the IIA to address partial conformance with standards. The
recommendations and progress as at 31 March 2023 are set out below:

1) undertaking a review of the methodology for development of the
audit plan to ensure a focused risk-based approach. Complete - the
internal audit methodology was reviewed to ensure a more focused
risk-based approach. The plan is now reviewed on a quarterly basis
to ensure it remains aligned to business critical risks.

2) consideration of other assurance sources that Internal Audit can
place reliance on such as second line governance activity. Partially
complete — an initial mapping exercise was undertaken to inform
the 2023/24 plan. Further work in conjunction with the newly
established Governance and Assurance team will be undertaken
and an assurance map developed to inform the 2024/25 audit plan.

The EQA also identified a series of continuous improvement
opportunities and suggestions to support the future development of the
function. During 2022/23 Internal Audit implemented a range of
improvement actions to take forward these opportunities which were
reported to Committee in December 2022 and March 2023.

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion



Appendix 1 — 2022/23 City of Edinburgh Council audits impacting the EIJB

Findings Raised

Overall Report Outcome m Total

1 X:jaur;fisﬁggizrcga\r(gm%égl;Its with a Disability from Children’s Services to Direct Reasonable Assurance 0 3 1 4
2. |Sensory Loss Support Services (HSCP) Direct 2 3 0 5
3. |Council Emissions Reduction Plan (audit closed) Indirect 0 1 0 1
4. |Application Technology Controls — SWIFT Indirect 1 0 0 1
5. |CGI Security Operations Centre (confidential report) Indirect 2 1 1 4
6. |CGI Technology Risk Management Indirect Reasonable Assurance 1 1 1 3
7. |CGl Enterprise Architecture Indirect 0 0 3 3
Q8. |Records Management and Statutory Requests (audit closed) Indirect 0 1 3 4
£D9 Induction and Ongoing Learning for Elected Members Indirect 0 0 2 2
0. | Role Specific Learning and Development for Council Officers Direct Reasonable Assurance 0 2 2 4
11. |Insurance Services Indirect 0 0 1 1
12.|Annual Validation Review Direct Reasonable Assurance 1 1 0 2
Total 2022/23 — 12 reports (3 (25%) Limited Assurance; 4 (33%) Reasonable Assurance; 5 (42%) Substantial Assurance ! 13 14 34
(20%) | (38%) | (42%)
Total 2021/22 — 12 reports (3 (25%) Significant Improvement Required); 4 (42%) Some Improvement Required; 4 (33%) 6 17 6
Effective) (21%) (58%) (21%)
Total 2020/21 — 16 reports (3 (19%) Significant Improvement Required; 9 (56%) Some Improvement Required; 4 (25%) 7 23 6 36
Effective) (19%) | (64%) | (17%)
14

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion



https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/33629/hsc2201-transitions-for-young-adults
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/33629/hsc2201-transitions-for-young-adults
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/33627/hsc2202-sensory-loss-support-services
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/32943/cw2202-swift-application-technology-controls
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/33628/cs2206-cgi-technology-risk-management
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/33221/cs2207-cgi-enterprise-architecture
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/32945/cw2208-induction-and-ongoing-learning-for-elected-members
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/32946/cw2208-role-specific-learning-and-development-for-council-officers
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/33626/cs2203-insurance-services
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/33223/cw2209-annual-validation-review

Appendix 2 — 2022/23 NHS Lothian audits impacting the EIJB

Findings Raised

Advisory
Overall Report Total
Outcome
1. Property Transaction Monitoring Indirect | Moderate Assurance - 1 - - 1
2. Freedom of Information Requests Indirect | Moderate Assurance 3 2 - 1 6
3. Critical Infrastructure Systems — Ventilation Direct Limited Assurance 2 5 1 - 8
4, Core Financial Controls - Budgeting Direct - - - 2 i 2
5. Use of Bank Staff and Agency Staff Direct Moderate Assurance - 4 4 - 8
6. Information Sharing Indirect | Moderate Assurance - - 4 - 4
8 7. Remobilisation and Recovery of Scheduled Care Direct Moderate Assurance - 2 4 - 6
) . . . . .
I h Whistlebl Pol -
o3 8. Compliance wit istleblowing Policies and Indirect | Moderate Assurance i 1 i 1
hy Procedures
9. Information Security Indirect | Moderate Assurance - 4 1 - 5
10. | Statutory and Mandatory Training Direct - - - 1 1
Total 2022/23 — 10 reports 5 19 16 42
1 (10%) limited assurance, 7 (70%) moderate assurance, 2 (20%) significant assurance (12%) | (45%) (38%)

Total 2021/22 — 9 reports 4 12 10
2 (22%) limited assurance, 4 (44%) moderate assurance, 3 (34%) significant assurance (15%) (46%) (39%)

Total 2020/21 — 8 reports 15 13 4
2 (25%) limited assurance; 2 (25%) moderate assurance; 4 (50%) significant assurance (44%) | (38%) | (12%)

* ‘critical’ ratings are no longer applied to NHS Lothian reports which effect from 2021/22 audit reports onwards

15
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion


https://org.nhslothian.scot/keydocuments/wp-content/uploads/sites/28/2023/05/NHS-Lothian-Internal-Audit-2022-23-Property-Transaction-Monitoring-Final-Report.pdf
https://org.nhslothian.scot/keydocuments/wp-content/uploads/sites/28/2023/05/NHS-Lothian-Internal-Audit-202223-Communications-Freedom-of-Information-Requests-Final-Report.pdf
https://org.nhslothian.scot/keydocuments/wp-content/uploads/sites/28/2023/05/NHS-Lothian-Internal-Audit-2022-23-Critical-Infrastructure-Systems-Ventilation-Final-Report.pdf
https://org.nhslothian.scot/keydocuments/wp-content/uploads/sites/28/2023/05/NHS-Lothian-Internal-Audit-2022-23-Core-Financial-Controls-Budgeting-Final-Report.pdf
https://org.nhslothian.scot/keydocuments/wp-content/uploads/sites/28/2023/05/NHS-Lothian-Internal-Audit-2022-23-Use-of-Bank-and-Agency-Staff-Final-Report.pdf
https://org.nhslothian.scot/keydocuments/wp-content/uploads/sites/28/2023/06/12.-NHS-Lothian-Internal-Audit-202223-Information-Sharing-Final-Report.pdf
https://org.nhslothian.scot/keydocuments/wp-content/uploads/sites/28/2023/07/5.-NHS-Lothian-Internal-Audit-202223-Remobilisation-and-Recovery-of-Scheduled-Care-Final-Report-1.pdf
https://org.nhslothian.scot/keydocuments/wp-content/uploads/sites/28/2023/05/11.-NHS-Lothian-Internal-Audit-2022-23-Information-Security-Final-Report.pdf
https://org.nhslothian.scot/keydocuments/wp-content/uploads/sites/28/2023/05/11.-NHS-Lothian-Internal-Audit-2022-23-Information-Security-Final-Report.pdf

g abed

Appendix 3 — Overall Assurance and Priority Definitions

Reasonable
Assurance

No Assurance

EIJB /CEC Overall Assurance Ratings

A sound system of governance, risk management and control
exists, with internal controls operating effectively and being
consistently applied to support the achievement of EIJB objectives.

There is a generally sound system of governance, risk
management and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance
or scope for improvement were identified which may put at risk the
achievement of EIJB objectives.

Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified.
Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk
management and control to effectively manage risks to the
achievement of EIJB objectives.

Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps,
weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of
governance, risk management and control is inadequate to
effectively manage risks to the achievement of EIJB objectives.

NHS Lothian Assurance Ratings

Limited Assurance

The Board can take some assurance from the systems of control in
place to achieve the control objective, but there remains a significant
amount of residual risk which requires action to be taken.

16

Moderate Assurance

EIJB /CEC Finding Priority Ratings

Advisory

A finding that does not have a risk impact but has been raised
to highlight areas of inefficiencies or good practice.

Low Priority

An issue that results in a small impact to the achievement of
objectives in the area audited.

Medium Priority

Critical Priority

The Board can take reasonable assurance that controls upon which the
organisation relies to achieve the control objective are in the main
suitably designed and effectively applied. There remains a moderate
amount of residual risk.

An issue that results in a moderate impact to the achievement
of objectives in the area audited.

An issue that results in a severe impact to the achievement of
objectives in the area audited.

An issue that results in a critical impact to the achievement of
objectives in the area audited. The issue needs to be resolved
as a matter of urgency.

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board: 2022/23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion




Agenda Item 7.2

®
1]

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board : :i
®

REFERRAL REPORT

Committees Annual Assurance Report — Referral from the Audit and
Assurance Committee

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board
Tuesday, 21 September 2023

SO [t/ This report provides the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board
(ENB) with a condensed report on the annual assurance
statements for the EIJB committees.

Recommendations The Edinburgh Integration Joint Board is asked to note the
report.

Terms of Referral

1. Committee assurance statements were presented to the Audit and Assurance
Committee (AAC) for scrutiny on 13 September 2023 (Clinical and Care Governance
Committee, Performance and Delivery Committee, Strategic Planning Group and Audit
and Assurance Committee).

2. Members noted that monitoring of implementation and progress of the proposed
outcomes would be undertaken by each Committee and reported back through the
Audit and Assurance Committee.

3. Members also requested that officers give consideration to aligning audit and
assurance terminology going forward in terms of consistency and transparency of
reporting.

Page 89



Edinburgh Infegration Joint Board ]

4.  The Committee agreed:

4.1 To note the moderate assurance following the review of the committee
assurance statements which were stored in the City of Edinburgh Council and
NHS Lothian Teams site for interest.

4.2 To note there had been no suspension of the standing orders in 2022/23.
4.3 To note no breaches of the code of conduct had been recorded for 2022/23.

4.4 To note the due date for recruitment of the Chief Risk Officer was December
2023.

4.5 To request that an appendix be added to the report prior to submission to the
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board setting out definitions of assurance levels for
the purposes of clarification.

4.6 To note the ongoing work with internal audit to align audit and assurance
terminology used by the City of Edinburgh Council and NHS Lothian and that a
paper detailing this work would be brought to the Audit and Assurance
Committee for consideration at its next meeting scheduled for 13 December
2023.

4.7 To note that the Chief Finance Officer would revisit the committees’ assurance
returns and feedback on any further emerging themes, improvements or actions
required.

4.8 To refer the report to the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board.

Report Author

Peter Murray
Chair, Audit and Assurance Committee
Contact for further information:

Name: Lesley Birrell, Committee Services
Email: lesley.birrell@edinburgh.gov.uk

Appendix

Appendix 1 Committees’ Annual Assurance Report (including additional appendix
with definitions of assurance levels) — report by the Chief Finance
Officer, Edinburgh Integration Joint Board

Page 90


mailto:lesley.birrell@edinburgh.gov.uk

®
1)
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board ::i
®

REPORT

Committees’ Annual Assurance Report

Audit and Assurance Committee
13 September 2023

S CIANOCRT [ ETa This report provides the Audit and Assurance Committee
with a condensed report on the annual assurance
statements for the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board
(EIJB) committees.

R The Audit and Assurance Committee is asked to:

a) note the moderate assurance following the review
of the committee assurance statements which are
stored in the CEC and NHS L teams’ site for
interest;

b) note that there were no suspension of the
standing orders in 2022/23; and

c) note that no breaches of the code of conduct have
been recorded for 2022/23;

d) refer this report to the EIJB.

Directions
Direction to City | No direction required v
of Edinburgh Issue a direction to City of Edinburgh Council
Council, NHS — ,
: Issue a direction to NHS Lothian
Lothian or both
organisations Issue a direction to City of Edinburgh Council & NHS Lothian

Report Circulation

1.  This report is based on the assurance statements presented to the respective
committees between June and August 2023.

Page 91



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board o

Main Report

Assurance Process

2.

The Edinburgh Integration Joint Board (EIJB) through its Audit and Assurance
Committee agreed its annual assurance process for the 2022/23 cycle.

In summary, members of each of the EIJB committees were asked to
complete a board assurance template which asked a range of questions
covering specific areas such as membership, knowledge, skills, and support
for their committee. It also requested members provide details of any good
practice and areas for improvement. Lastly it invited committee members to
state an assurance level based on the reports that have been submitted to the
committee throughout 2022/23. The definition of the assurance levels, as
previously approved by the EIJB, is attached at appendix 1.

The committee board assurance statements have now been considered and
agreed by their own committees (e.g., AAC statement was submitted to AAC
in the first instance).

Once all committees agreed their committee annual statements, they were
scrutinised at AAC on the 13 September 2023. The purpose of the review by
AAC is to provide the EIJB with assurance (or otherwise) on the effectiveness
of the EIUJB committee structure and how well the committees are fulfilling their
duties. This in turn will be subsequently presented to the EIJB for
endorsement as part of the annual accounts process at the 21 September
2023 meeting.

In addition to the statements submitted by the committees, further assurance
can be taken from a review of suspension of the EIJB’s standing orders and
breaches code of conduct occurred in 2022/23. This was carried out by
colleagues in the Council’s Committee Services team who have confirmed that
there were no such suspension or breaches recorded in 2022/23.

Key themes from the 2022/23 assurance cycle

7.

Copies of all assurance statements have been stored in the EIJB teams’ site
for reference (both CEC and NHSL sites), with the main themes coming
through the assurance statements included in appendix 2. Based on these,
the following actions are proposed:

» Development of a supported training programme for committee
members, alongside a clear process for training opportunities.

» Development of succession plans so that committee changes are
handled smoothly and do not impact on the work of the committee.

+ A skills audit of the committee is carried out so that any shortfalls can
be addressed.

+ Training for officers to ensure consistency in quality of reporting.
* Recruitment of Chief Risk Officer (CRO).

Page 92



&
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board :i

* Recommend to EIJB that committee membership is increased for the
Audit and Assurance, Clinical and Care Governance and Performance
and Delivery Committee. In line with current terms of reference this
will mean an additional three members for each committee (two voting
and one non-voting).

3. Based on the assurance statements submitted from the committees, the AAC
can provide a moderate level of assurance which is the same assurance level
as last year.

Next Steps

4. Where improvements or actions have been identified within the annual
assurance statements, they will be collated together into an action plan, with
proposed improvement actions developed (where possible) as part of the
development of the EIJB committee structure. Additionally, formal reports on
progress with the actions agreed will be presented on a six monthly basis to
each of the committees.

Implications for Edinburgh Integration Joint Board

Financial
5.  There are no specific financial implications arising from this report.
Legal/risk implications

6. The process agreed by the EIJB is designed to provide appropriate assurance
to the board, thus reducing risk.

Equality and integrated impact assessment

7.  There are no specific implications arising from this report.
Environment and sustainability impacts

8.  There are no specific implications arising from this report.
Quality of care

9. There are no specific implications arising from this report.

Consultation

14. There are no specific implications arising from this report.

Report Author

Moira Pringle
Chief Finance Officer

Contact for further information:

Name: Angela Brydon
Email: angela.brydon@edinburgh.gov.uk

Page 93



®
1)

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board ::i
®

Appendices

Appendix 1 — Definition of assurance levels

Appendix 2 - Key themes/actions highlighted via committee assurance returns

Page 94



Appendix 1

DEFINITION OF ASSURANCE LEVELS

Definition

Most likely course of action by the IJB or
committee

LEVEL - SIGNIFICANT

The 1JB (or committee) can take reasonable assurance
that the system of control achieves, or will achieve, the
purpose that it is designed to deliver. There may be an
insignificant amount of residual risk or none at all.

Examples of when significant assurance can be taken
are:

The purpose is quite narrowly defined, and it is
relatively easy to be comprehensively assured.
There is little evidence of system failure and the
system appears to be robust and sustainable.
The 1JB/committee is provided with evidence from
several different sources to support its conclusion.

If there are no issues at all, the IJB or committee
may not require a further report until the next
scheduled periodic review of the subject, or if
circumstances materially change.

In the event of there being any residual actions
to address, the IJB or committee may ask for
assurance that they have been completed at a
later date agreed with the Chief Officer or
relevant executive lead, or it may not require
that assurance.

LEVEL — MODERATE

The IJB/committee can take reasonable assurance that
controls upon which the organisation relies to manage
the risk(s) are in the main suitably designed and
effectively applied. There remains a moderate amount of
residual risk.

Moderate assurance can be taken where:

In most respects the “purpose” is being achieved.

e There are some areas where further action is
required, and the residual risk is greater than
“insignificant”.

The report includes a proposed remedial action plan,
the committee considers it to be credible and
acceptable.

LEVEL - LIM

The IJB/committee can take some assurance from the
systems of control in place to manage the risk(s), but
there remains a significant amount of residual risk which
requires action to be taken.

Examples of when limited assurance can be taken are
where:

e There are known material weaknesses in key areas.

It is known that there will have to be changes to the
system (e.g. due to a change in the law) and the
impact has not been assessed and planned for.

The report has provided incomplete information, and
not covered the whole purpose of the report.

The proposed action plan to address areas of
identified residual risk is not comprehensive or
credible or deliverable.

The IJB/committee will ask the Chief
Officer/executive lead to provide assurance at
an agreed later date that the remedial actions
have been completed. The timescale for this
assurance will depend on the level of residual
risk. If the actions arise from a review conducted
by an independent source (e.g. internal audit, or
an external regulator), the IJB/committee may
prefer to take assurance from that source’s
follow-up process, rather than require the Chief
Officer/executive lead to produce an additional
report.

ITED

The IJB/committee will ask the Chief
Officer/executive lead to provide a further paper
at its next meeting, and will monitor the situation
until it is satisfied that the level of assurance has
been improved.

Page 95




Appendix 1

DEFINITION OF ASSURANCE LEVELS

Definition Most likely course of action by the IJB or
committee
LEVEL — NONE
The IJB/committee cannot take any assurance from the The IJB/committee will ask the Chief
information that has been provided. There remains a Officer/executive lead to provide a further paper
significant amount of residual risk. at its next meeting, and will monitor the situation

until it is satisfied that the level of assurance has
been improved.

Additionally the chair of the meeting will notify
the Chair of the issue.

LEVEL — NOT ASSESSED YET

This simply means that the 1JB/ committee has not received a report on the subject as yet. In order to cover
all aspects of its remit, the 1JB/committee should agree a forward schedule of when reports on each subject
should be received (perhaps within their statement of assurance needs), recognising the relative
significance and risk of each subject.

Page 96



KEY THEMES/ACTIONS HIGHLIGHTED VIA COMMITTEE ASSURANCE

RETURNS

Action / Issue

Audit and Assurance — moderate assurance

1.

AU S

Development of succession plans so that committee changes are handled
smoothly and did not impact on the work of the committee.

A skills audit of the committee is carried out so that any shortfalls can be
addressed

Improve interactions between committees and escalations to the EIJB.
Consideration of additional membership having either audit or risk expertise.
Recruitment of Chief Risk Officer (CRO).

Process to monitor national policy/direction/ technical developments.

Clinical and Care Governance — limited assurance

1.

2.

3.

4.
5.

Development of a supported training programme for committee members,
alongside a clear process for training opportunities.

Development of succession plans so that committee changes are handled
smoothly and did not impact on the work of the committee.

A skills audit of the committee is carried out so that any shortfalls can be
addressed.

Clarity on where the committee sits within the EIJB structure should be obtained.

Consistency in quality of reporting should be explored.

Performance and Delivery — moderate assurance

1.

N

o O b~ W

Development of a supported training programme for committee members,
alongside a clear process for training opportunities.

. Development of succession plans so that committee changes are handled

smoothly and did not impact on the work of the committee.

. A skills audit of the committee is carried out so that any shortfalls can be

addressed.

. Propose an increase in membership.
. More detailed performance information to support appropriate scrutiny.

. Further training/induction sessions on Partnership services.

Strategic Planning Group — moderate assurance

1. Development of a supported training programme for committee members,
alongside a clear process for training opportunities.

2. Development of succession plans so that committee changes are handled
smoothly and did not impact on the work of the committee.

3. A skills audit of the committee is carried out so that any shortfalls can be
addressed.

4. Consistency in quality of reporting should be explored.

Membership

Appendix 2

Owner

ICO

ICO

oM
ICO
ICO
oM

ICO

IcO

oM

om
IcO

ICO

IcO

om

ICO
CFO
ICO

ICO

ICO

oM

ICO

Due Date

Mar 24

Dec 23

Mar 24
Oct 23
Dec 23
Mar 24

Mar 24

Mar 24

Dec 23

Mar 24
Dec 23

Mar 24

Mar 24

Dec 23

Oct 23
Mar 24
Mar 24

Mar 24

Mar 24

Dec 23

Dec 23

Several committees (Audit and Assurance, Clinical and Care Governance and Performance and Delivery)

indicated they would like an increase in membership. It should be noted that this will require an increase of
an additional three members to the Committee (two voting and one non-voting). If agreed this would mean
an additional time commitment for the equivalent of 9 EIJB members.

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8.1

o0
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board ::'
°®

REPORT

Finance update
Integration Joint Board
215 September 2023

Executive The report provides the Integration Joint Board with an

update on the financial performance of delegated

Summary

services. The level of assurance provided of a break-
even position for 2023/24 is limited, given the remaining
budget deficit. Should no resolution be identified over the
coming weeks, a recovery plan will be presented to the

October meeting of the board.

=l=Yelo 00101 1=als Aile s ol |t is recommended that the board notes the:

a) financial position for delegated services to 315t July
2023 and associated year end forecast; and

b) limited assurance provided by the Chief Finance

Officer.
Directions
Direction to No direction required v
City of L . . .
Edinburgh Issue a direction to City of Edinburgh Council
CO”F‘C"’ NHS 1 |ssue a direction to NHS Lothian
Lothian or both
organisations | Issue a direction to City of Edinburgh Council & NHS Lothian

Page 99



Report Circulation

1. The content of this paper was considered at the Performance and Delivery
Committee on 6™ September 2023. Further, the financial positions highlighted
within this report have been considered through the appropriate governance
structures of our partners, the City of Edinburgh Council (the Council) and NHS
Lothian.

Main Report

Background

2. In March 2023, the Integration Joint Board (1JB) considered the 2023/24

financial plan and agreed the first phase of the associated savings and
recovery programme (SRP). The second phase of the SRP, along with further
mitigating actions, was subsequently agreed in June 2023. At this point the
plan remained unbalanced with a deficit of £14.2m. The board accepted the
recommendation from officers that bridging this residual budget gap would
require a series of measures which would have significantly negative in-year
and future year consequences for people and performance more generally. On
the request of the board, the Chair wrote to Scottish Ministers setting out the
challenge posed by the financial position and the potential implications of
delivering additional savings. Whilst the response acknowledged the significant
challenges currently facing the health and social care sector due to workforce
shortages, financial constraints and increased demand it highlighted that
agreeing budgets is the responsibility of partnerships. The response and

subsequent letter from the Chair are attached as appendices 1 and 2.

Overview of financial position

3.

In line with the integration scheme, the IJB “directs” budgets back to our partner
organisations who provide the associated services. Most of these services are
delivered through the Edinburgh Health and Social Care Partnership (EHSCP),
with the balance being managed by NHS Lothian under the strategic direction
of the 1JB. Management of financial performance is undertaken through the

governance arrangements in the 2 partner organisations and the Partnership.

Page 100



4.  Budget monitoring is undertaken by the finance teams within the Council and
NHS Lothian who have responsibility for working with budget holders to prepare
information on financial performance. Both partners provide the required
information on operational budget performance from their respective financial
systems, under the co-ordination of the 1IJB Chief Finance Officer, to provide

reports to the board on delegated health and social care services.

i

The information in this report is based on the period 4 (July 2023) monitoring
reports from the Council and NHS Lothian. A potential year end overspend of

£29.0m is forecast, as summarised in table 1 below. This is an overall

deterioration of £0.9m over the position reported to the 1JB in August 2023.

269,316 279,697 (10,381)

Table 1: financial position for delegated services

Page 101

Annual To July 2023 Year
Budget Budget Actual Variance foreencist
£k £k £k £k £k
NHS services
Core 312,267 100,286 | 101,628 | (1,342) (1,670)
Hosted 93,339 33,889 | 33,731 157 498
Set aside 111,913 34,404 | 38,034 (3,630) (11,139)
Pay award funding 2,423 2,423 2,427 (4) (0)
Sub total NHS services 519,942 171,001 | 175,820 | (4,818) (12,312)
CEC services 294,943 98,314 | 103,878 | (5,563) (16,690)




6. Whilst clearly a significant figure, the advice given to the board in August is
that, overall it was not materially different from the financial plan. After
finalising the month 4 reporting this position has slightly changed. Although in
total the projected overspend has increased by £1m, this reflects a combination
of an anticipated improvement in the NHS results and a worsening of the
Council’s. Table 2 below summarises the differences to the financial plan and
shows the currently identified mitigations:

Financial Forecast
Pressure plan Mitigation
£m £m
o Identification of further saving
Budget deficit (14.1) (14.1) | and ongoing discussions with
partners, including SG
Set aside Additional funding assumed from
(8.0) (11.1) NHS Lothian
Anticipated funding for pay uplifts
Core partnership 0.0 (1.7) to come and discussion on
' ' allocation of new medicines and
sustainability monies
Net Council Will need to be addressed via
" (2.5) recovery plan if position does not
position
recover
Other 0.4 | N/A
Total 21 281
Table 2: drivers and mitigation of financial position

7.  Further detail is included in appendices 1 (NHS Lothian) and 2 (the Council),
with narrative explanations in paragraphs 8 to 21.

NHS Lothian

8. Delegated health services are forecasting a £12.3m overspend for the year, an

improvement of £1.4m from the position reported to the 1JB in August.
Members will recall that NHS Lothian undertook to work collaboratively with the
4 Lothian integration authorities to deliver a balanced outturn. On this basis,

financial plan assumed that set aside services would be fully funded. This
4

Page 102



additional investment from NHS Lothian will reduce the forecast overspend to
£1.2m.

This in turn should be managed through potential sources of additional funding
as reported to the board in August. An update on these is given below:

e The Scottish Government (SG) issued funding for the 22/23 and 23/24
pay awards associated with baseline budgets. To date uplifts linked to in
year allocations for the primary care improvement fund and the alcohol
and drug partnership have been confirmed. These adjustments have
now been reflected in the forecast, improving the core position by
c£1.8m. Still outstanding is the pay award funding linked to action 15
(mental health) and multi-disciplinary teams. The forecast will be

updated once the values have been advised by the SG.

¢ In June 2023, the SG allocated further funding to boards to support the
2023/24 financial position. There are two parts to the funding - new
medicines and NRAC parity/sustainability. NHS Lothian received £15m
for new medicines funding and £18m for NRAC parity/sustainability. The
allocation of these additional resources still has to be decided and at this
point no impact has been reflected in the 1JB's forecast. However, the
clear expectation is that an element of new medicines funding will be
allocated to delegated services given the pressures reported on drugs
budgets within set aside services. It is also likely that a proportion of the
sustainability funding will also be allocated to delegated services given
the impact of demographic growth and corresponding demand pressures
on health services. The process to allocate this additional funding
should have concluded by September at which point the impact of any
additional funding will be reflected in the updated year end forecast

position for delegated services.

Page 103



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Notwithstanding the issues raised above, the underlying drivers remain as
previously reported to the board, namely:

Core health services

Services which are operationally managed by the EHSCP and are projecting an
overspend of 1% or £1.7m. This is an improvement over the previous forecast
following the allocation of pay award funding referenced in paragraph 9 above.

Prescribing remains the major financial pressure in core services with a current
projected year end overspend of £5.0m. Limited data was available to inform
the forecast, hence it is currently based on the financial plan. This is a national
issue for which a resolution is being pursued via NHS Directors of Finance.
Given the volatility of the prescribing position this lack of information on which

to base estimates presents a risk.

This is offset by continuing high levels of vacancies across a number of
services - including community hospitals, district nursing, mental health, and
allied health professionals. Overall nursing is showing a gap against
establishment of 8%, with the most significant vacancies in district nursing
(22%) and mental health & substance misuse services (21%). AHP vacancies
within core service mainly relate to locality teams within the hubs as well as

community physiotherapy services.

Share of pan Lothian hosted services

Represented by the element of hosted services delegated to the 1JB, the
majority of which are operationally managed out with EHSCP. As for core
services, vacancies are a key factor in the financial position especially across
Rehab Medicine where the establishment gaps for nursing and AHPs combined
is over 11%. This is offset by a range of pressures (mainly in primary care and
psychology). The primary care pressure mainly relates to community
continence services where we have seen a sharp increase in prices linked to a
new national contract. Psychology has been impacted by the reduction of
funding from SG for the mental health outcome framework which has left some

specialist, supervision and support posts unfunded.

Page 104



15.

Share of acute set aside services

The 1JB's share of acute hospital services which although delegated, are
operationally managed by NHS Lothian. At an overspend of £11.1m, set aside
remains the primary driver of the forecast outturn. This will reduce at the next
monitoring update once the additional SG funding for new medicines and
sustainability has been allocated. The remaining balance will be funded by
NHS Lothian. A separate report on the financial position for set aside services
was considered by the Performance and Delivery Committee on 6th September
2023.

City of Edinburgh Council

16.

17.

18.

Council delegated services are forecasting an overspend of £16.7m. In arriving

at this position some key assumptions have been agreed:

e Purchasing — further growth for the remainder of 23/24 has been

assumed in line with the financial plan;

e Transport — given the lack of available data for 23/24 spend has been

assumed in line with last year’s levels (less savings delivery); and

e Savings — for schemes which are still in the planning stage, full
achievement has been assumed in line with the plan. Where projects
have started, actual delivery is reflected in the forecast. It should be
noted that no material variance from plan has been identified at this point

in the financial year.

The majority of the overspend equates to the budget shortfall of £14.1m
referenced at paragraph 2 above. The balance of £2.6m is a combination of

factors set out below.
Employees

Underspend due to previously reported recruitment challenges. These are
mainly in disability services, but also assessment and care management and

homecare and reablement teams.

Page 105



19.

20.

21.

Transport

As discussed above, there is limited data available at month 4 and so a
prudent forecast, assuming levels of spend in line with last year, has been
assumed. Sufficient 23/24 data will be available at month 5 and a more detailed

forecast will be completed.
Purchasing

Projected in year overspend is partly related to timing issues, which a
combination of last year’s costs coming through the financial ledger this year
and some provisions created pre-April 23 not yet invoiced. The Council’s
finance team is working with locality leads and customer colleagues on a data

cleansing exercise.
Income

An over-recovery of residential client receipts is forecast, potentially as a result

of achieving gross funding targets.

Savings and recovery programme

22.

23.

The savings and recovery programme (SRP) for 2023/24 was approved by the
EIJB at its meetings on 21st March 2023 and 13th June 2023. The SRP was
developed as part of the medium-term financial strategy for the EIJB, which
aims to provide a structured approach to reaching financial balance and
sustainability through delivery of a multi-year programme of change and
efficiency. The 2023/24 SRP will deliver in year savings of £20.68m. The RAG
status used to evaluate project progress and financial progress is provided in

appendix 5.

As of August 2023, 22 projects have been reported as either low, moderate or

high risk. Highlights include:

e 3 projects have achieved their savings targets and close reports for
these projects have been submitted and logged with SGB. These are

set out in appendix 4.

e 2 projects are on track and delivering savings beyond plan.

Page 106



e A further 2 have achieved their savings and are likely to be closed

shortly.

e 14 Projects are on track, present low financial risk and are forecast to

deliver full savings under the 23/24 savings and recovery programme.
e 1 projectis on hold whilst internal HR processes are completed.

Conclusion

24. This paper sets out the high-level financial forecast for 23/24, based on the
actual results for the first 4 months of the financial year. Nonetheless it should
be recognised that the forecast reported in this paper reflects a worsening of
the IJB's financial position from that identified in the financial plan. Some
mitigations are in place but it is not clear at this point whether they are sufficient

to bring the position back in line with the financial plan.

25. Whilst discussions with partners on proposals to bridge the remaining £14.2m
budget deficit have been positive, no solution has yet been identified. On this
basis the Chief Finance Officer can give limited assurance at this point in the
year.

26. Further, in line with the requirements of the integration scheme, if no solution is
identified to address the financial gap, the Chief Officer will present a recovery
plan to the October meeting of the board. As highlighted through the financial
planning process, the opportunities to deliver savings which do not impact on
service delivery, and which can be realised by the end of the financial year
have now been exhausted. Thus, any such recovery plan will set out proposals
for service reductions which will inevitably lead to poorer outcomes for people,

worsen performance and endanger delivery of the improvement plan.

Implications for Edinburgh Integration Joint Board

Financial

27. Outlined elsewhere in this report.

Page 107



Legal/risk implications

28. Like any year end projection, the IJB’s relies on a number of assumptions and
estimates each of which introduces a degree of risk. These assumptions will
be closely monitored as the year progresses, in particular in those areas which

present the highest risk. These include:

e Delivery of the agreed savings and recovery programme. This will be
governed via the newly established EHSCP change board with further

scrutiny undertaken by P&D;

e External purchasing costs, with a particular focus on the built in level of

growth;

e Prescribing which is the area of greatest financial pressure in EHSCP
core services and where there has been a delay with the availability of
data to inform the position. Both prescribing and purchasing expenditure
will be closely monitored via the newly introduced performance meetings

and scrutiny from P&D; and

e Additional funding for outstanding pay uplifts. It is anticipated that the
SG position will be confirmed in the coming weeks and updates will be

included in future finance reports.
Equality and integrated impact assessment
29. There is no direct additional impact of the report’s contents.
Environment and sustainability impacts
30. There is no direct additional impact of the report’s contents.
Quality of care

31. There is no direct additional impact of the report’s contents.

10

Page 108



Consultation

32. There is no direct additional impact of the report’s contents.

Report Author

Moira Pringle,

Chief Finance Officer, Edinburgh Integration Joint Board
moira.pringle @nhslothian.scot.nhs.uk

Appendices

Appendix 1 Letter from Cabinet Secretary

Appendix 2 Letter to Cabinet Secretary

Appendix 3 Financial position for NHS delegated services

Appendix 4 Financial position for Council delegated services
Appendix 5 Progress with 2023/24 savings and recovery programme

11

Page 109


mailto:moira.pringle@nhslothian.scot.nhs.uk

LETTER FROM CABINET SECRETARY Appendix 1

Cabinet Secretary for NHS Recovery Health and
Social Care

Runaire a’ Chaibineit airson Ath-shlanachadh NHS, Slainte
agus Curam Soisealta

Michael Matheson MSP/BPA

T:0300 244 4000

E : scottish.ministers@gov.scot

Gary Gray
Gary.Gray@edinburgh.gov.uk

Our Reference: 202300368504
18 August 2023

Dear Ms Kasper,

Thank you for your letter dated 18t July regarding your funding concerns in relation to the Edinburgh
Integration Joint Board.

| am grateful for ongoing efforts to improve the support being provided to the people of Edinburgh and
| appreciate the feedback on what is being done to support those in need of care. The impacts and
plans you have highlighted in your letter are welcomed, are positive, and going in the right direction.

The Budget for 2023/24 provides record funding of over £19 billion for the health and social care
portfolio, providing new investment of over £1 billion and supporting recovery and reform to secure
sustainable public services. The health budget provides investment of over £1.7 billion for social care
and integration meaning the social care spending has increased by over £800 million compared to
2021-22 — well ahead of our trajectory to increase funding by 25% over the life of the Parliament.

Resources available to Local Government have increased by over £739 million 2023-24, a real term
increase of £376 million or 3%. In 2023-34, the City of Edinburgh Council will receive £953 million to
fund local services, which equates to an extra £37.7 million to support vital day to day services or an
additional 4.3% compared to 2022-23.

In addition to these sums, all councils will receive their fair share of the currently undistributed sum of
£329.8 million.

Scottish Ministers, special advisers and the Permanent Secretary are covered by the terms of the Lobbying (Scotland) Act 2016. See
www.lobbying.scot

Tha Ministearanna h-Alba, an luchd-comhairleachaidh sonraichte agus Runaire Maireannach fo chumhachan Achd Coiteachaidh (Alba)
2016. Faicibh www.lobbying.scot

St Andrew's House, Regent Road, Edinburgh EH1
3DG

confident

LEADER

Page 110


http://www.lobbying.scot/
http://www.lobbying.scot/
http://www.gov.scot/
mailto:scottish.ministers@gov.scot
mailto:Gary.Gray@edinburgh.gov.uk

Over the course of Winter 2022/23, the Scottish Government made available additional funding to 1JBs
to increase provision of interim care beds by enabling them to pay an additional 25% over the cost of
the National Care Home Contract. This was an in-extremis, time limited, measure which was intended
to support 13Bs, should they wish and have the ability to do so, expedite the discharge of patients from
acute sites, in turn alleviating pressure. It is our understanding that Edinburgh 1JB already made use of
interim beds, above the NCHC rate, prior to this additional funding being made available. Edinburgh
IJB did not claim any of the additional funding made available by Scottish Government.

IJBs have responsibility for managing and delivering financial balance for the health and social care
responsibilities that are delegated to them. Scottish Government provide funding to Health Boards and
local authorities and it is for local partners to agree a budget which will enable them to deliver the
ambitions of their Strategic Commissioning Plan. Integration Authorities regularly report on their in year
financial position to ensure partners can take decisions on whether further action is required to address
any pressures, including whether additional allocations from partner bodies are necessary. Concerns
about funding settlements should be made by the 1JB to the Health Board and local authority.

Integration Joint Boards (1JBs), Local Authorities, and Health Boards must undertake effective
engagement in advance of planning services. This has to be a continuous way of working that properly
seeks to understand the needs of local people and how best to meet them.

| acknowledge the significant challenges currently facing the health and social care sector due to
workforce shortages, financial constraints and increased demand. While agreeing budgets is the
responsibility of partnerships, we will continue to engage across the sector to ensure that solutions not
only address financial pressures but put the needs of local people, particularly those most vulnerable,
at the centre.

| am aware that you are meeting the Minister for Social Care, Mental Wellbeing and Sport on 11
August 2023 in order to discuss Edinburgh’s recent improvement plan, which | understand was
discussed at the 1JB in June 2023 along with the Medium-Term Financial Strategy. | have requested an
update on this discussion following the meeting.

00 uH—

MICHAEL MATHESON

Yours sincerely,

Scottish Ministers, special advisers and the Permanent Secretary are covered by the terms of the Lobbying (Scotland) Act 2016. See
www.lobbying.scot

Tha Ministearanna h-Alba, an luchd-comhairleachaidh sonraichte agus Runaire Maireannach fo chumhachan Achd Coiteachaidh (Alba)

2016. Faicibh www.lobbying.scot

St Andrew's House, Regent Road, Edinburgh EH1
3DG
Www.gov.scot

Page 111


http://www.lobbying.scot/
http://www.lobbying.scot/
http://www.gov.scot/

LETTER TO CABINET SECRETARY Appendix 2
@

a9
Edinburgh Infegration Joint Board ::-
®

Mr Michael Matheson
Cabinet Secretary for NHS Recovery, Health, and Social Care
Via email

5 September 2023
Dear Mr Matheson,

Thank you very much for your letter of 18 August 2023. On behalf of the Edinburgh Integration
Joint Board (EIJB) | would like to pass on our thanks for your recognition of the support we provide
for the people of Edinburgh.

Your letter appears to have been written before, but sent after, our meeting on 11 August 2023
with the Minister for Social Care, Mental Wellbeing and Sport and Scottish Government officials.
The meeting which was attended by the Council Leader, Chief Executives of City of Edinburgh
Council and NHS Lothian, EIJB Vice Chair, Interim Chief Officer and | was very productive and
focused on the significant improvement journey facing us in Edinburgh. The financial challenges
which are linked to this were also discussed, specifically our inability to continue funding the
interim beds which | referenced in my letter to you of 18 July 2023. Ms Todd agreed to discuss
potential options with you for funding these on a non-recurring basis to help us maintain the
position through winter, while we continue to explore all other options to improve our performance.

While interim beds are not a long-term solution to Edinburgh’s delayed discharge challenge, the
withdrawal of funding during 2023/24, will reduce our capacity from 1 October 2023 and we are all
concerned of the direct impact this will have on Edinburgh’s performance and outcomes for
people.

In addition to the non-recurring £2m requested of Scottish Government for interim beds, the EIJB
still need to identify a further £14m savings for 2023/24, hence our inability to fund this initiative
from our existing resources.

Ms Todd’s support in recognising our financial challenge with interim beds and more generally was
much appreciated and | have fed that back to the EIJB.

The Board’s Vice Chair and | would welcome the opportunity to engage with you and your officials
to explore any of the issues raised either in this letter or the original letter from July. However, we
are also aware of the time critical nature of this funding requirement, due to the disinvestment
being from 1 October 2023.

| appreciate that this is a very challenging time financially for the Scottish Government as well as
ourselves and therefore appreciate your consideration of our request and your continued support.

Yours sincerely
A

S

Katharina Kasper
Chair, Edinburgh Integration Joint Board

Page 112



FINANCIAL POSITION FOR NHS DELEGATED SERVICES

Appendix 3

Sub total set aside
Pay award funding

Total

111,913

2,423
519,942 |

Page 113

34,404

2,423
171,001

38,034
2,427
175,820

(3,630)

(4)
(4,818)

-11%
0%
-3%

Annual \ To July 2023 Year
Budget Budget Actual Var:eanc foreencist
£k £k £k £k
Core services
Community equipment 2,852 7 7 (0) -3% (1)
Community hospitals 14,585 4,863 4,629 233 5% 791
District nursing 15,723 5,441 4,897 544 10% 1,672
Geriatric medicine 3,666 1,222 1,155 67 5% 208
GMS 94,912 30,313 30,847 (534) -2% (1,134)
Learning disabilities 1,428 480 418 62 13% 174
Mental health 10,296 3,512 3,246 265 8% 786
PC Services 6,615 5,505 5,583 (78) -1% (342)
Prescribing 82,074 26,710 29,088 (2,378) -9% (4,960)
Resource transfer and reserves 60,851 15,229 15,177 52 0% 66
Substance misuse 4,727 1,597 1,414 183 11% 580
Therapy services 12,808 4,763 4,575 189 1% 441
Other 1,728 645 591 53 8% 47
101628
Hosted services
GMS (9,470) 1,616 1,721 (105) -7% (340)
Hospices & Palliative Care 2,971 990 992 (2) 0% (23)
Learning Disabilities 8,346 2,593 2,658 (65) -3% (61)
LUCS 7,429 2,060 2,068 (7 0% (24)
Mental Health 34,949 11,780 11,808 (28) 0% 329
Oral Health Services 5,254 937 931 6 1% 127
Pharmacy 6,565 1,878 1,948 (69) -4% 242
Primary Care Services 3,291 1,133 1,184 (52) -5% (568)
Psychology Services 5,774 1,586 1,752 (166) -10% (323)
Public Health 1,172 267 245 22 8% 21
Rehabilitation Medicine 5,693 1,825 1,552 273 15% 685
Sexual Health 4,818 1,511 1,531 (22) -1% (50)
Substance Misuse 3,103 1,131 1,054 77 7% 85
Therapy Services 10,715 3,571 3,479 92 3% 422
UNPAC 3,746 780 523 257 33% 713
Other (1,017) 230 283 (53) -23% (736)
33889 33731 157 0% 498
Set aside services
Acute management 3,664 1,221 1,296 (75) -6% (174)
Cardiology 4,384 1,461 1,458 3 0% 25
Diabetes & endocrinology 2,984 620 766 (146) -24% (1,007)
ED & minor injuries 12,120 3,955 4,546 (591) -15% (1,672)
Gastroenterology 8,760 2,886 3,818 (932) -32% (2,957)
General medicine 31,300 10,436 11,318 (882) -8% (2,571)
Geriatric medicine 21,646 7,085 7,304 (219) -3% (731)
Infectious disease 3,520 (1,440) (1,646) 206 -14% 512
Junior medical 2,574 880 1,025 (145) -17% (32)
Other 848 277 236 41 15% 19
Rehabilitation medicine 1,999 648 713 (65) -10% (204)
Respiratory medicine 7,299 2,527 3,031 (504) -20% (1,640)
Therapy services 10,813

(11,139)

(0)
(12,312)




Appendix 4
FINANCIAL POSITION FOR COUNCIL DELEGATED SERVICES

B ~ ToJuly2023 Year
Actual  Variance end
% forecast
£k £k £k
Employee costs 102,081 34,027 32,989 1,038 3% 3,114
Premises costs 1,398 466 579 (113) -24% (339)
Transport costs 2,838 946 1,215 (269) -28% (807)
Supplies, services and transfer payments 11,036 3,679 3,514 164 4% 493
Purchasing - residential and FPNC 88,734 29,578 30,740 (1,162) -4% (3,485)
Purchasing - day care and care at home 123,809 41,270 42,370 (1,100) -3% (3,301)
Purchasing - direct payments and ISF 50,160 16,720 16,999 (279) -2% (837)
Purchasing - grants and block contracts 31,324 10,441 10,370 71 1% 214
Purchasing - other 4,446 1,482 1,322 160 11% 480
Grants funding and cost recovery (87,306) (29,102) | (29,091) (12) 0% (33)
Income (19,441) (6,480) (7,129) 649 -10% 1,946
103,026 103,878
Budget gap (14,136) (4,712) (4,712) | 100% (14,136)
103,875

Page 114



Appendix 5
PROGRESS WITH 2023/24 SAVINGS AND RECOVERY PROGRAMME

Project Project Name 23/24 Progress Savings Progress update as of end July 2023
Number Savings RAG RAG

Target
(EM)

Review and Assessment

Recruitment underway for temporary team to address review and assessment
backlog. Team expected to be in place by early September. Reviews and
assessments will utilise a 3 Conversations approach and with a focus on
ensuring right sizing of any care and support provision. There will be a strong
focus on the principles of early intervention, signposting, community
engagement and use of non-costed services and supports.

Recruitment underway for lead commissioner role to drive this forward. Focus
will be on market shaping and new contract arrangements to ensure best value.
Work continues to improve performance in the internal homecare teams, with a
focus on improved sickness absence rates and higher contact time as a result
of the implementation of Total Mobile. £200k savings realised to date.

The savings are a combination of drug switches, grip and control actions and
improvements around the use of agency. The YTD delivery is slightly behind
the plan due to a slower delivery of workforce savings. However further cost
reductions are expected in the latter part of the financial year.

New continence product contract details have been released to clinical services
and work is ongoing to review and identify areas for savings. New ordering
system continues to embed. Care home pilot still ongoing with mixed result,
however confidence remains high that savings will be delivered in year.
Additional resource has been secured to support the organisational review of
operational services over the next 6 months.

Focus on areas of high agency spend, including internal care homes and
internal LD services. Reducing the overall agency spend in these two services
is challenging as safe staffing levels must be met to ensure residents needs
can be met however, a review of the existing staffing establishment is planned
to ensure the right skill mix is in place to meet residents’ needs.

SDS reclaim underway however savings will not be counted until the baseline
£3.4m has been reclaimed. Total reclaim target is £5.4m. Direct Payment policy
and procedure updated. PM recruited and further recruitment underway.

Enablers:

Digital Care Development
3 Conversations

Digital Front Door

2 Commissioning and brokerage £1.00

3 One Edinburgh £0.50

1
d

N

Hosted and set aside £2.80

oTT ’\R
oo

gttt

Continence £0.05

6 Structure reorganisation £0.13

7 Agency and overtime £0.60

8 Optimising SDS £2.00




Project
Number

Project Name

Purchasing (gross funding)

23/24
Savings
Target
(EM)

Progress
RAG

SEWIES
RAG

£0.40 4

10

Employability services (The Works)

£0.25

Progress update as of end July 2023

On track. To date, £908k has been invoiced with payments of £322k being
received.

This project is on hold whilst internal HR processes are completed. No monthly
flash report required whilst on hold.

11

Spot purchasing grip and control

£1.00 6 5

12

Decommissioning interim beds

£3.20

13

<“d

Community equipment

£0.28

D14

2C Practices

£0.05

OT T ’\EY\ 1

Prescribing

£2.60

16

Overnight support

£1.15

17

Community Transport

£0.50

18

Housing support

£0.45

Good progress made with circa £500k delivered to date through tighter control
of block contracts. Confidence is high that full saving will be achieved.

Notice given to cease block contracts from 1 October 2023. Proactive discharge
planning underway. Admissions ceased except for any residents with known
dates for onward discharge within period.

Analysis of non-core equipment orders over last financial year highlighted an
opportunity to make significant saving in relation to postural seating. 2 core
items identified to be added to stock list to prevent non-core orders. Confidence
remains high that savings will be delivered in year.

Whilst the savings forecast on track, 2C practices face a challenge with
vacancies and maternity cover.

Prescribing improvements are making good progress. There are a number of
workstreams underway and the total saving to date across all workstreams is
£740,000. One of the key workstreams is GPIP which has delivered 71%
against its target so far with further savings anticipated.

Overnight Support: The overnight remote responder service is an alternative to
more traditional methods of support for service users requiring support in their
own homes overnight. This project began in 22/23 and has now delivered 100%
of target savings. Work is underway to establish whether there remains scope
for any further savings in this area, potentially through focussing on a different
cohort of individuals.

Work is ongoing with the Corporate Transport Unit (CTU) to match people onto
shared vehicles. Risks identified due to increased taxi and core provision costs
not built into financial plan. Financial impact based on current usage has been

calculated, however full impact on financial plan will be unknown until the work
progresses to move people on to shared journeys.

Guidance for housing support under review to ensure that is linked into the
work on the implementing the 3cs assessment and personal support plan. The
review and triage team have begun to focus on reviewing people who receive




Project Project Name 23/24
Number Savings

Target
(EM)

19 Pentland ward investment £1.10
20 Community investment fund £1.00
21 Blood borne virus investment £0.20
22 Contract uplifts £0.20

Progress
RAG

SEWIES
RAG

Progress update as of end July 2023

housing support with clear performance measures in place. March - June 133
reviews were undertaken with 848.75 hours of housing support reducing to 384
hours

Saving delivered in full and project closed.

Savings delivered in full, and project closed.

Savings delivered in full and project closed.

Confidence is high in delivery of the saving. Slippage will be calculated by
Finance and Contracts colleagues throughout the year to realise the saving. No
monthly flash report required.




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 8.2

®
o0

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board ::i
®

REFERRAL REPORT

Membership Proposal— Referral from the Strategic Planning Group
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board
Thursday 21 September 2023

SO Ela/A The purpose of this report is to refer the attached report
on the Membership Proposal from the Strategic Planning
Group to the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board for
approval/consideration with the Committee’s
recommendations detailed below.

GECERIENCERCLUERI The (B Strategic Planning Group recommends that the
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board:

1. Approves the updated list of Appointments
endorsed by the |JB Strategic Planning Group at it’s
meeting on the 16 August 2023.

2. Notes the proposals to fill existing gaps in the SPG
membership with immediate effect.

Terms of Referral

1. Atits meeting on the 16" of August 2023, The Strategic Planning Group
considered a report on a Membership Proposal, which sought members
agreement on the appointment of Jean Gray CEO Viewpoint - housing
representative, Matt Kennedy, Principle Social Work Officer EHSCP and Jane
Perry — Director Bluebird Care Ayrshire, Edinburgh & Glasgow South.

2. During consideration of the report, the Committee discussed the following:

2.1 The updated membership list and ongoing efforts to communicate with
the Edinburgh Association of Community Councils regarding the
vacancy on the Strategic Planning Group for a representative.

3. The Committee agreed:

3.1 To note the changes to the SPG membership list.

Page 119



Edinburgh Integration Joint Board ]

3.2 To approve the proposals to fill existing gaps in the SPG membership
with immediate effect; and

3.3 To refer the nominations to the EIJB for formal ratification.

4.  The Integration Joint Board is asked to consider the recommendations of the
Strategic Planning Group.

Report Author

Councillor Tim Pogson

Chair, 1JB Strategic Planning Group

Contact for further information:
Name: Andrew Henderson

Email; Andrew.Henderson@edinburgh.gov.uk

Appendices

Appendix 1 Membership Proposal

Page 120


mailto:Andrew.Henderson@edinburgh.gov.uk

®
o0
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board :: ]

L
REPORT
Membership Proposal
Strategic Planning Group
16 August 2023
Executive 1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on
Summary the Strategic Planning Group (SPG) membership due

to recent changes to the membership list.

2. Several gaps in the membership list have been
managed over the past year and it has taken some
time to find suitable candidates to fill them.

3. On approval, the nominations will be referred to the
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board (EIJB) for
ratification.

=Yool Iz EXile Ikl It is recommended that the SPG:
1. Notes the changes to the SPG membership list.

2. Approves the proposals to fill existing gaps in the
SPG membership with immediate effect.

3. Refer the nominations to the EIJB for formal

ratification.
Directions
Direction to City
of Edinburgh No direction required v
Council, NHS Issue a direction to City of Edinburgh Council
Lothian or both Issue a direction to NHS Lothian
organisations Issue a direction to City of Edinburgh Council and NHS
Lothian

Report Circulation

1. SPG 16 August 2023 and then refer to next EIJB.

1

Page 121



Edinburgh Infegration Joint Board ]

Main Report

2.

The core membership of the SPG is set out in legislation and additional
members can be invited to join the SPG to increase key skills and experience.
All new appointees to the SPG have to be formally ratified by the EIJB.

The SPG approved its annual review of Terms of Reference (ToRs) in April
2023.

The updated SPG membership list as at 16 August 2023, is attached with the
SPG ToRs at Appendix 1. Changes and nominations are highlighted.

The key points to note are:

a. The Chair is now ClIr Tim Pogson.

b. The Vice Chair is now Katharina Kasper.

c. The Secretary post, Service Director Strategic Planning, will be vacant
until a replacement is recruited or a new structure is approved. Interim
cover will be provided (TBC).

d. The new EHSCP Principle Social Work Officer, Matt Kennedy.

e. The new housing representative is recommended to be Jean Gray, CEO
of Viewpoint.

f. The new private sector representative is Jane Perry, Director Bluebird
Care Ayrshire, Edinburgh & Glasgow South.

g. There is still no clarity on the EACC representative.

Implications for EIJB

Financial

6.

None.

Legal / risk implications

7.

The SPG ToRs will require to be updated as the membership changes.

Equality and integrated impact assessment

8.

None.

Environment and sustainability impacts

9.

None.

Page 122



®
o0

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board :: ]
®

Quality of care
10. NA.

Consultation

11. There has been consultation between the SPG Secretary and a range of
stakeholders to secure the new nominations.

Report Author

Name: Tony Duncan
Service Director Strategic Planning, EHSCP
Email: Tony.duncan@edinburgh.gov.uk Mobile: 07935208040

Appendix

1. SPG ToRs Membership List — updated as at August 2023.

Page 123


mailto:Tony.duncan@edinburgh.gov.uk

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board
Strategic Planning Group Committee
Terms of Reference

Constitution of the Committee

11

The Strategic Planning Group (SPG) is a statutory Committee established
by the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board (EIJB) to monitor, review and
report to the Board on the strategy, plans and delivery of the delegated
Partnership’s services.

Purpose and function

2.1

The purpose and function of the Committee, on behalf of the EIJB is to:

a) Oversee strategic planning processes to meet statutory obligations placed
on the EIJB in respect of strategies and plans.

b) Provide assurance to the EIJB that processes are fully inclusive of
stakeholders and partners and formal consultative processes are followed.

c) ldentify on behalf of the EIJB key priorities, progress arrangements and
outcomes in relation to the planning of services.

d) Approve Directions, in line with the current EIJB Directions policy, in order to
deliver the Strategic Plan. If the SPG accepts these Directions, they will be
recommended to the EIJB for formal adoption.

e) Consider ideas from all interested groups, including EIJB committees, on

ways to deliver the objectives of the Strategic Plan. If adopted this will
initiate revised Directions.

Authority

3.1

The Committee is:

a) A statutory Committee of the EIJB reporting directly to the EIJB, and has
no executive powers, other than those specifically delegated in these
Terms of Reference.

b) Authorised by the EIJB to investigate any activity within its Terms of
Reference, to seek any information it requires from any officer of the
Partnership, and to invite any employee of an organisation within the
Partnership to provide information by request at a meeting of the
Committee to support its work, as and when required, taking due

Page 124



cognisance of their employing organisation’s policies and procedures in doing
so.

c) Authorised by the EIJB to secure the attendance of individuals and
authorities from outside the Partnership with relevant experience and
expertise if it considers this necessary for the exercise of its functions,
including whatever professional advice it requires (as advised by the
Executive Leads of the Committee and / or Office of the Chief Officer).

3.2 The Committee shall have the power to establish, in exceptional circumstances,

3.3

sub-committees and / or task and finish groups for the purpose of addressing
specific tasks or areas of responsibility, if approved by the EIJB. In accordance
with the Partnership’s Standing Orders, the Committee may not delegate
powers to a sub-committee or task and finish group unless expressly
authorised by the EIJB.

The Terms of Reference, including the reporting procedures of any sub-

committees or task and finish groups must be approved by the EIJB and
reviewed on an annual basis.

Membership and quorum

Membership

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Members of the Committee shall be appointed by the EIJB and shall be made
up of four Voting Members of the EIJB, drawn equally from NHS Lothian and
The City of Edinburgh Council. Two non-voting members of the EIJB shall be
appointed to the Committee by the Board as non-voting members of the
Committee.

The Vice Chair of the EIJB will be the Chair of the Committee. The Chair of
the EIJB will act as Vice Chair of this Committee.

A further Voting member of the Committee can assume the role of Chair in
the formal absence of the appointed Chair, with the agreement of the
Committee members.

The Executive Lead (Service Director — Strategic Planning) or a designated
alternative from the Office of the Chief Officer, will be in attendance at all
meetings of the Committee. Other attendees at the Committee shall be
appointed by the EIJB and shall be made up of representatives drawn from
the following groups:

Non-voting members of the EIJB
NHSL Director of Planning
Health professionals

Service users of health care
Carers in health care

Page 125



Social care professionals

Service users of social care

Carers from social care

Independent providers of social care

Staff side representative

Registered Social Housing organisations

e Third sector bodies carrying our activities related to health care or social
care

4.5 The Chief Officer shall not be a member of the Committee but may be in
attendance.

4.6 Other than as specified above, only members of the Committee have the
right to attend Committee meetings. Other non-Committee members may be
invited to attend and assist the Committee from time to time, according to
particular items being considered and discussed.

4.7 Members are able to attend Committee meetings in person, virtually, or in
extremis, by telephone. Members who attend virtually will count towards the
quorum.

4.8 Secretariat support will be provided by a combination of the Office of the
Chief Officer and the City of Edinburgh Council Committee Services’ team.

4.9 All members of the Committee shall receive training and development
support before joining the Committee and on a continuing basis to ensure
their effectiveness as members, supported by a performance assessment
process, as agreed by the EIJB.

4.10 An attendance record shall be held for each meeting and an annual register
of attendance will be included in the annual report of the Committee to the
Board.

Quorum

4.11 The quorum necessary for the transaction of business shall be four members
as defined in 4.1 above, including the Chair (or the agreed representative in
accordance with paragraph 4.3) and at least one Voting member.

4.12 A duly convened meeting of the Committee at which a quorum is present
shall be competent to exercise all or any of the authorities, powers, and
discretions delegated to the Committee.

4.13 If inquorate, the Committee may meet informally to discuss reports but is
not permitted to make any decisions. Decisions including those based on
recommendations in a report must be agreed under quorum.

Page 126



5.

Duties

Core duties

5.1

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

9)

h)

Core duties on behalf of the EIJB:

Review reports (with business cases as necessary) and related Directions
measured against the Strategic Plan.

Ensure appropriate consultation and engagement activity has taken place with
Partners in the development of reports and Directions.

Ensure Directions have appropriate finance and performance measures in
place.

Provide a forum to debate the implications of emerging health and social care
themes and any local or national initiatives; to include input from Locality
Planning Groups.

Develop the Strategic Plan for sign off by the EIJB and thereafter review the
Strategic Plan annually and recommend any proposed amendments to the
EIJB.

Consider the implications of future Joint Strategic Needs Assessments and
other insights derived from engagement activities.

Collaborate on and oversee the production and delivery of future Strategic
projects and related Commissioning Plans.

Monitoring of the Financial and Performance Frameworks as they relate to the
Strategic Plan.

Cycle of Business

5.2

5.3

6.

The Committee will set an annual plan for its work to form part of the EIJB’s
Annual Cycle of Business, informed by the Board Assurance Framework, and
report to the EIJB on its progress.

An Assurance Statement will be produced and presented to the EIJB
annually.

Reporting and accountability

6.1

6.2

7.

The Committee Chair will report to the EIJB on its proceedings after each
meeting by way of formal minutes, on all matters within its duties and
responsibilities.

The Terms of Reference shall be reviewed by the Committee and approved
by the EIJB on an annual basis.

Committee Administration

Page 127



7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

The Committee shall meet a minimum of six times a year and at such other
times as the Chair of the Committee, in consultation with the Committee
Secretary, shall require, allowing the Committee to discharge all of its
responsibilities.

The Chair may at any time convene additional meetings of the Committee to
consider business that requires urgent attention.

The agenda will be set in advance by the Chair, with the office of the Chief
Officer and Partnership Executive leads reflecting a cycle of meetings and
business, which is agreed each year for the Board and its Committees, to
ensure it fulfils its duties and responsibilities in an open and transparent
manner.

Notice of each meeting confirming the venue, time and date, together with an
agenda of items to be discussed, shall be made available to each member of
the Committee, no less than seven working days before the date of the
meeting in electronic form. Supporting papers shall be made available no
later than five working days before the date of the meeting.

Committee papers shall include an outline of their purpose and key points in
line with the EIJB’s Committee protocol, and make clear what actions are
expected of the Committee.

The Chair shall establish, at the beginning of each meeting, the existence of
any conflicts of interest and ensure these are recorded in the minutes
accordingly.

The Committee Secretary shall minute the proceedings of all Committee
meetings, including recording the names of those present, in attendance and
absent. Draft minutes of Committee meetings shall be made available
promptly to all members of the Committee, normally within ten days of the
meeting.

The Committee shall, at least once a year, review its own performance, using
a process agreed for all Board committees by the EIJB.

Procedural control statement:

Date approved: awaiting approval by April 2023 EIJB
Approved by: Integration Joint Board

Review date: March 2024 or earlier

Page 128



Appendix 1 — Membership

Strategic Planning Group

Chair Councillor Tim Pogson (Chair)
Voting Katharina Kasper (Vice Chair)
Peter Murray
Councillor Max Mitchell
Non-voting Christine Farquhar

Bridie Ashrowan

Executive Lead

TBC Service Director Strategic Planning

Attendees

Grant Macrae — (Citizen Representative)

Allister McKillop — (Citizen Representative)

Colin Briggs — NHSL Director of Planning

Matt Kennedy, Principle Social Work Officer EHSCP

Alyson Falconer — Head of Adult Psychology Services,
NHSL, (Health Professional)

Peter McCormick — (Social Care Commercial Provider)

Rene Rigby — Independent Sector Lead (Social Care
Commercial Provider)

Stephanie-Anne Harris — Strategic Development
Manager, Edinburgh Community Health Forum (Health
Care Non-Commercial Provider)

Jean Gray CEO Viewpoint - housing representative

Jane Perry — Director Bluebird Care Ayrshire, Edinburgh &
Glasgow South.

Michelle Mulvaney - Community Engagement Manager

Page 129




Susan McMillan — Performance and Evaluation
Manager (Performance Lead)

Flora Ogilvie - Public Health Consultant Edinburgh

Vacancy — Representative from the Edinburgh Association of
Community Councils (EACC)

Committee
Secretary

Donna Rodger, Executive Assistant

Committee Services

Page 130




Agenda Item 8.3

o0
Edinburgh Infegration Joint Board ::i
®

REPORT

Chief Officer Appointment for the Edinburgh Integration Joint
Board and Health and Social Care Partnership

Edinburgh Integration Joint Board

21 September 2023

SEANACE a4 The purpose of this report is to seek approval from the
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board (EIJB) for the
appointment of Pat Togher to the permanent appointment
of the Chief Officer position.

Recommendations It is recommended that the Edinburgh Integration Joint
Board:

1. Approves the appointment of Pat Togher to the
permanent appointment of the Chief Officer

position.
Directions
Direction to City
of Edinburgh No direction required v
Council, NHS Issue a direction to City of Edinburgh Council
Lothian or both  ['|ssye a direction to NHS Lothian
organisations Issue a direction to City of Edinburgh Council and NHS
Lothian

Page 131



o0
Edinburgh Integration Joint Board ::i
®

Report Circulation

1.

This report has not been circulated to any other governance committees prior to
submission to the EIJB.

Main Report

2.

At the EIJB meeting on 13 June 2023 the EIJB approved the proposed
recruitment arrangements for the permanent appointment to the Chief Officer
position.

As an integrated post the recruitment panel was led by the EIJB with members
from the City of Edinburgh Council and NHS Lothian.

The panel comprised:

Katharina Kasper, Chair of EIJB

Andrew Kerr, Chief Executive of the City of Edinburgh Council
Calum Campbell, Chief Executive, NHS Lothian

Councillor Max Mitchell, EIJB Board Member

Peter Knight,EIJB Board Member

Reg Lloyd, Partnership Representative

Following the approved process the recruitment panel agreed to recommend
Pat Togher for the position of Chief Officer, subject to satisfactory pre-
employment checks.

Implications for Edinburgh Integration Joint Board

Financial

6.

The post and associated costs are contained within budget.

Legal / risk implications

7.

N/A

Equality and integrated impact assessment

8.

N/A

Environment and sustainability impacts

9.

N/A

Quality of care

10.

N/A

Page 132



®
o0

Edinburgh Infegration Joint Board :: o
®

Consultation

11. N/A

Report Author

Nareen Turnbull, Service Director, HR — City of Edinburgh Council

Contact for further information:
Name: Nareen Turnbull
Email: Nareen.turnbull@edinburgh.gov.uk Telephone: 07075 14927750

Page 133


mailto:Nareen.turnbull@edinburgh.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 11.1

by virtue of paragraph(s) 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 7A
of the Local Government(Scotland) Act 1973.

Document is Restricted

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	Notice of Meeting and Agenda
	Edinburgh Integration Joint Board
	1.00 pm, Thursday, 21st September, 2023
	Contacts


	4.1 Minutes
	5.1 Rolling Actions Log
	7.1 Edinburgh Integration Joint Board Audited Annual Accounts 2022-23
	IJB paper 22 23 audited annual accounts
	audited accounts 22 23 final
	MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY
	• A&E
	• District nursing
	• Assessment and care management including occupational therapy 
	• General medicine
	• Services relating to an addiction 
	• Geriatric medicine
	• Rehabilitation medicine
	• Services provided by allied health professionals (AHPs)
	• Residential care
	• Respiratory medicine
	• Extra-care housing and sheltered housing 
	• Psychiatry of learning disability
	• Community dental services
	• Primary medical services (GP)*
	• Intermediate care
	• Palliative care
	• General dental services*
	• Supported housing – learning disability
	• Hospital services provided by GPs
	• Ophthalmic services*
	• Pharmaceutical services*
	• Rehabilitation – mental health
	• Mental health services provided in a hospital with exception of forensic mental health services
	• Out-of-hours primary medical services
	• Day services
	• Local area coordination
	• Community geriatric medicine
	• Care at home services
	• Palliative care
	• Reablement
	• Services relating to an addiction or dependence on any substance
	• Mental health services
	• Rapid response
	• Continence services
	• Telecare
	• Kidney dialysis
	• Respite services
	• Prison health care service
	• Quality assurance and contracts
	• Public health services
	• Sensory impairment services
	• Drugs and alcohol services
	*    includes responsibility for those aged under 18
	STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILTIES
	REMUNERATION REPORT
	ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
	COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT
	BALANCE SHEET
	MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT
	NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
	1.   ACCOUNTING POLICIES
	2.   RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
	3.   CORPORATE EXPENDITURE
	4.   SHORT TERM DEBTORS
	5.   SHORT TERM CREDITORS
	6.   POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
	7.   CONTINGENT LIABILITIES and ASSETS
	8.   SEGMENTAL REPORTING
	9.   MOVEMENT IN RESERVES
	10.  FUNDING ANALYSIS
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF EDINBURGH INTEGRATION JOINT BOARD AND THE ACCOUNTS COMMISSION

	22-23 AAR EIJB draft_section 1_FINAL
	letter of representation
	Edinburgh Integration Joint Board Annual Accounts 2022/23
	General
	Financial Reporting Framework
	Accounting Policies & Estimates
	Going Concern Basis of Accounting
	Liabilities
	Fraud
	Laws and Regulations
	Related Party Transactions
	Remuneration Report
	Management commentary
	Corporate Governance
	Balance Sheet


	EIJB 2022_23 Internal Audit Annual Report and Opinion August 2023
	Contents
	Areas where improvements are required 


	7.2 Committees’ Annual Assurance Report - referral from the Audit and Assurance Committee
	8.1 Finance Update
	8.2 Membership Proposal - referral from the Strategic Planning Group
	Membership Proposal– Referral from the Strategic Planning Group
	Membership Proposal
	SPG_membership_Aug23_TD
	SPG draft TORs 2023_Amended Aug 23


	8.3 Chief Officer Appointment to the Edinburgh Integration Joint Board and Edinburgh Health and Social Care Partnership
	11.1 One Edinburgh

